
Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna El; lin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long R oge Pia ning 

Department Head: St en M. Manila, P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the 

filing of an instrument to vacate a 5 foot wide public utility easement located along 

the south side lot line of Lot 137 of Apache Shores, First Installment - Precinct 

Three. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 

5 foot wide public utility easement (PUE) located along the south side lot line of Lot 

137 Apache Shores, First Installment. The easement is dedicated per plat note. The 

subject lot fronts on Brass Buttons Trail, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 

vacating the subject easement. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 

meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 

inquiries in regards to this request. As such,TNR staff recommends the request. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like to build a garage 

on the existing slab, which encroaches in the subject easement. Vacating the 
easement will allow him to move forward with his plans and remedy the 
encroachement issue. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

Item 1Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR (512) 854-7561 

cc: 

Stacey Scheffel Permits Program 

Manager 
Permits (512) 854-7565 

SM:AB:ps 
1101 • Development Services Long Range Planning - Apache Shores, First Installment 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 3Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 4Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 

Prepared By: Adele Noel, Enviromental Project Manager 

Phone #: (512) 854-7211 

Division Director/Manager: Jon White/ff r w as Weber - NREQ 


Department HeadlTitle: s~b,~. Ip .E .. County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 

A) A resolution in support of the Ozone Advance Plan emission reduction measures 

. and 
, 

B) Renew 8-Hour Ozone Flex emission reduction commitments and commit to new 

additional measures. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Ozone Advance is a collaborative, voluntary effort between U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA), states, tribes, and local governments to help areas remain 

in attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NMQS). The Austin 

Round Rock Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) is very close to being out of 

attainment of the ozone health standard. Taking voluntary actions to reduce ozone 

emission now will benefit public health while minimizing our regulatory burden. 


Ozone Advance is the latest in a series of air quality improvement plans the MSA 

has undertaken over the past decade. It builds on the successes of previous plans 

and refocuses our region on the challenges of maintaining in attainment. In 2008, 

Travis County and other elected officials in the MSA became signatories to an 8
Hour Ozone Flex Plan to address reducing local sources of ozone. In May 2012, city 

and county elected officials in Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson 

counties signed a Commitment Letter to the EPA to develop an Ozone Advance 

Plan (OAP), to succeed the 8-Hour Ozone Flex Program that expires in December, 

2013. The Central Texas Clean Air Coalition (CAC), is now seeking commitments 

that will improve air quality from local governments and other organizations in the 

MSA. 


As a member and supporter of CAC, Travis County affirms to renew commitments 

made and implemented under the 8-Hour Ozone Flex Plan and commits to 

additional emission reduction and planning measures to help assure an ongoing 


Item 5Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



designation of "in attainment" under the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for 

Ground Level Ozone. 


Additional emissions reduction measures include several Travis County 

com mitments: 

--Commute Solutions Program, including Employer Funded Transit Passes; 

--Open Burning Restrictions on Ozone Watch Days; 

--Applying for Texas Emissions Reduction Program (TERP) and Diesel Emissions 

Reduction Act (DERA) funding; 

--Procurement Policy Prioritizing Purchases of Low-Emission Light-duty Vehicles; 

--Support Region-wide Measures (for example, rideshare program, school 

educational programs, research projects); 

--Track and Report Vehicle and Motorized Equipment Usage; and 

--Track and Report Electricity and Natural Gas Usage. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
TNR recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Keeping the region in compliance with federal ozone standards has long been a 
priority for Travis County, both to protect public health and to avoid the costly 
impacts of being designated nonattainment. Reducing ozone levels helps protect the 
health of children, seniors, and people with chronic respiratory problems such as 
asthma and bronchitis. If an area is designated non-attainment for ozone, it can have 
serious consequences for the regional economy, including new constraints on 
transportation planning, strict limits on industrial growth, and a host of costly pollution 
regulations. It would also result in the shift of air quality planning and impose new 
costs on the state for preparing State Implementation Plans for the MSA. 

Since 2007, the MSA has experienced 4-10 days a year when the ozone level 
exceeded the levels EPA considers healthy (75 parts per billion, or "ppb"), and in 
2012, the region was only 2 parts per billion (ppb) away from being out of 
compliance with the three-year average EPA uses to determine if areas are in 
attainment (the "design value"). With the EPA now considering tightening the 
standard (range of 60-70 ppb), additional efforts will be needed to ensure continued 
compliance. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
There will be no significant negative impact on Travis County's budget to confirm 
commitments under the OAP. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 

cc: 

Jon White Natural Resources 

Enviromental Quality 
Division Director 

TNR (512) 854-7212 

Thomas Weber Enviromental Program 
Manager 

TNR (512) 854-4629 

Adele Noel Air Quality Project 
Manager 

TI'JR (512) 854-7211 

0801 - NREQ- Air Quality 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RESOLUTION 


A RESOLUTION OF TRAVIS COUNTY TO IMPLEMENT EMISSION REDUCTION 

ACTIONS TO ASSIST IN CLEAN AIR EFFORTS PER THE OZONE ADVANCE 


PROGRAM ACTION PLAN TO MAINTAIN TRAVIS COUNTY'S DESIGNATION 

AS "ATTAINMENT" IN REGARDS TO GROUND LEVEL OZONE STANDARDS 


Whereas, The Citizens of Travis County recognize the value of and are conscious of the 
need for clean air; 

Whereas, the local governments within the Austin-Round Rock Metropolitan Statistical 

Area (MSA), which consists of Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, and Williamson 

Counties, recognize that they are near-violation of the 8-hour National Ambient 

Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone; 

Whereas, the Ozone Advance Program is a voluntary local approach to ozone attainment 

whose purpose is to encourage early emission reduction that will help keep the 
area in attainment of the ozone NAAQS; 

Whereas, A designation of non-attainment will inhibit local flexibility in planning and 
development and create economic impacts to the citizens of Travis County for up 

to twenty years; 

Whereas, Travis County is a member of the Central Texas Clean Air Coalition (CAC) of the 

Capital Area Council of Governments; 

Whereas, the CAC has signed up to participate in the Ozone Advance Program and has 
committed to submit an Action Plan by December 31,2013; 

Whereas, the CAC has requested that its members consider committing to emission 
reduction measures as part of this Action Plan by October 31, 2013; and 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the Travis County Commissioners Court: 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



That Travis County affirms to renew commitments made and implemented under the 8-Hour 
Ozone Flex Plan and commits to additional emission reduction and plmming measures to help 
voluntarily secure an ongoing designation of "in attainment" under the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards for Ground Level Ozone. 

Resolved, this 22nd day of October, 2013. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

County Judge 

RON DAVIS 
Commissioner, Precinct One 

BRUCE TODD 
Commissioner, Precinct Two 

GERALD DAUGHERTY 
Commissioner, Precinct Three 

MARGARET J. G6MEZ 
Commissioner, Precinct Four 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 6Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 7Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: October 22,2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna BOWY' ,Division Director of Development~

Services and Long Ra~ 

Department Head: St~ , .., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 

authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 5 foot wide public utility easement 

located along the south side lot line of Lot 137 of Apache Shores, First Insta"ment 
Precinct Three. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 

5 foot wide public utility easement (PUE) located along the south side lot line of Lot 

137 Apache Shores, First Insta"ment. The easement is dedicated per plat note.The 

subject lot fronts on Brass Buttons Trail, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 

vacating the subject easement. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 

meets a" Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 

inquiries in regards to this request. As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like to build a garage 

on the existing slab, which encroaches in the subject easement. Vacating the 
easement wi" allow him to move forward with his plans and remedy the 
encroachement issue. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

Item 8Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Req uest Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
TNR (512) 854-7561 

and Long Range 
Planning 

cc: 

Stacey Scheffel Permits Program 

Manager 
TNR (512) 854-7565 

SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - Apache Shores, First Installment 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



ORDER OF VACATION 


ST ATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owners request the vacation of a five foot wide public utility easement 
located along the south side lot line of Lot 137 of Apache Shores, First Installment as recorded at Volume 
43, Page 29 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas; 

WHEREAS, the utility companies known to be operating in the area have indicated they have no 
need for the public utility easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department recommends the 
vacation of the subject public utility easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners Court 
held a public hearing on October 22, 2013 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 
orders that the five foot wide public utility easement located along the south side lot line of Lot 137 of 
Apache Shores, First Installment, as shown and described in the attached field notes and sketch, is hereby 
vacated. 

ORDEREDTHISTHE ___ DAYOF_______ 2013. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



_~ TRI-TECH - ....... :;0, 

~SURvl£,~~';i~J!f_~~:~~:tt/\lY, L.P. 
Vm;J...· ,\,<err:: /.fJl: J SIIT'. <'i"'JrI. I~( 

EXHIBIT PARTIAL RELEASE OF EASEMENTS 

FIELD NOTES FOR OF A PORTION OF EASEMENTS THAT HAVE A TOTAL WIDTH OF 
TEN FEET, BEING FIVE FEET WIDE ON EACH SIDE OF THE DIVIDING LINE OF LOTS 
137 AND 138, OF APACHE SHORES FIRST INSTALLMENT, A SUBDIVISION IN TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN BOOK 
43 PAGE 29, OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID LOT 137 BEING 
CONVEYED TO RONALD C. ROCHE BY DEED OF RECORD lWDER DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 201200924 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, 
SAID LOT 138 BEING QUIT CLAIMED TO CATHERINE RENEE NORTHUP BY DEED OF 
RECORD IN VOLUME 12580 PAGE 647, OF THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID EASEMENTS ARE DEDICATED BY STATEMENT ON THE PLAT 
OF APACHE SHORES FIRST INSTALLMENT AND DEDICATED IN THE DECLARATION 
OF COVENANTS RECORDED IN VOLUME 3554 PAGE 200, OF THE DEED RECORDS OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, THE EASEMENTS AS DEDICATED ON THE PLAT, ARE 
DESCRIBED AS "FIVE FEET WIDE UTILITY EASEMENTS RETAINED ALONG THE SIDES 
OF EACH LOT", THE EASEMENTS AS DEDICATED IN THE DECLARATION OF 
COVENANTS ARE DESCRIBED AS "FIVE FEET WIDE UTILITIES AND DRAINAGE 
EASEMENTS ALONG THE SIDE LINE OF EACH AND EVERY LOT", THE PERIMETER OF 
THE PART OF THE ABOVE SAID EASEMENTS THAT IS TO BE RELEASED IS MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING at a Y2" diameter iron rod with a plastic cap stamped Tri-Tech set at the Southeast 
corner of the above said Lot 137, same being the Northeast corner of the above said Lot 138, said iron rod 
is in the West margin of Brass Buttons Trail, same being the East line of a ten feet wide utility easement 
which is dedicated by a statement on the subdivision plat of Apache Shores, First Installment, said iron 
rod is also in the East line of the a 10 feet wide drainage and utility easement located along the front lines 
of each lot as reserved in the above said Declaration of Covenants; 

THENCE N88°28' W, along the common dividing line of said Lot 137 and Lot 138, for a distance of 
10.00 feet to a point in the East line of the herein described easement area to be released, said East line is 
also the West line of the above said 10.00 feet wide drainage and utilities easements; 

THENCE SOI°32'W, entering Lot 137 along the East line of the herein described portion of the 
easements to be released, same being the West line of the above said 10.00 feet wide drainage and utilities 
easements along the front lines of each lot, for a distance of 5.00 feet to the Southeast corner and the 
PLACE OF BEGINNING hereof; 

THENCE N88°28 ' W, over and across a portion of said Lot 137, along the South line of the herein 
described easements to be released, for a distance of 111.50 feet to the Southwest corner hereof, 

Page 10f2 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



THENCE NOI °32'E, along the West line of the herein described easement to be released, same being the 
East line of a six feet wide drainage and utility easement along the rear lines of all lots as reserved in said 
Declaration of Covenants, passing at 5.00 feet the dividing line of said Lot 137 and Lot 138, and 
continuing for a total distance of 10.00 feet to the Northwest comer hereof; 

THENCE S88°28'E, along the North line of the easements to be released, over and across a portion of 
Lot 138, for a distance of 111.50 feet to the Northeast comer hereof, said Northeast comer lies in the 
West line of the above said 10.00 feet wide drainage and utilities easements retained along the front lines 
of each lot; 

THENCE SOl °32'W, along the East line of the herein described portion of the easements to be released, 
same being the West line of the above said "10.00 feet wide easements retained along the front lines of 
each lot", passing the dividing line of said Lots 138 and 137, at 5.00 feet and continuing for a total 
distance of 10.00 feet returning to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 1,115 square feet of 
land, more or less. 

SEE ACCO:MPANYING ilLUSTRATION 

David Bell 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 3994 
JOB # AUS344-07 

Page 2 of2 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



-------------
____________ 

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY SCALE 1 "=20' 
Bearing DistanceCourse METES AND BOUNDS 10' 20' 

L1 N 88°28' W 10.00' 


L2 
 5.00'S01°32' W 
N 88°28' W 111.50 'L3 

10.00'N 01°32' EL4 
S 88°28' E 111.50' 


L6 

L5 

10.00'S01°32' W 

(:) 
II'! 
r-
N,.. 
LLI 
Co 
N 
° CO 
CO 
en 

LOT 164LOT 163 

LOT 162 N 01°32'E 
N 01°32'E 60.00'16.61' 

b: == 
, 

5 

I 6' D.E. 

I 
I 
18
I:
'" I~ 
I~ 
I...; 

Ill: 
~ 

I~..;LOT 139 
::iI
I~ 

'« 

I..; 

I~...; 
ttiI

I'"I: 
'" 1<3 

I~... 
l:..i 
I~ 
I~ 
I~ 
I~ 
I~

I() 

I 
I 
I 
I 

U" PER PLAT B~~P~~ __ .1 _ L to I ___________ J 
~ == PER VOL-:J5~ ~ 200- - 1"L4 ~ ± - - - - - - - - - - - l 

I 
~1--'~----:7 

L6 
~ 

1
10' UTILITY ES/.I'T PER PLAT BK. 43 PG. 29 & II IL2 I..- 10' D.E. AND U.E. PER VOL. 2554 PG. 200 

I I --' I I 

S 00047'W C=37.43' S 01°32'W 

.t U.E. I , 1 

LOT 138 

PLACE OF BEGINNING ~'" 

<:> 
<:> 

'" 
<3 
Q.. 

... 
I() 

~ 
...; 
~ 

~ 
LOT 137 Q.. 

<..i 
:::i 

~ 
'« 

<..i 
c:i 

..j 

tti 

~ '" 
'" '" 
<3 
Q.. ..,
"'. 
~ 
.... 
:5 
Q.. 

~ 
Q.. 

<..i 
:::i 

AREA OF EASEMENTS TO BE 
RELEASED = 1115 SQUARE FEET '" 

LOT 165 

LEGEND 

B.L. BUILDING LINE 

U.E. UTILITY EASEMENT 

D.E. DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

LOT 136 

COPYRIGHT 201:3 TRI-TECH 

SURVEYING COMPANY. L.P, 

Use of this survey for any other purpose or 

other parties shall be at Iheir risk and 

undersigned is nol responsible 10 olhers lor 

any lass resulling Iherefrom. 

Daled Ihis Ihe 161h day of Augusl, 2013 

Job No. AUS-344-07 

16.61' 
PLACE OF COMMENCEMENT 

BRASS BUTTONS TRAIL (50' R.O.W.) 

~ TRf-TECH ~ 
~ SURVEYING COMPANY,L.P. 

Formerly Point-Line Services, Inc. 

Formerly D. Seelig Land Surveyors, PC 


Formerly Brandt Surveying, PC 


w w W. SUR V E YIN G COM PAN yeO M 
3802 Manchaca Road Phone: (512) 440-0222 
Austin, Texas 78704 Fax: (512) 440-0224 

DAVID BELL. R.P.L.S. :3994Phone: (512)339-0808 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Ronald C. Roche, P.l 
3108 Brass Buttons Trails 

Austin, Texas 78734 
(713) 775·4715 

rrocherr@yaboo.com 

8/2812013 

Paul Scoggins 
Travis COlUlty 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
700 Lavaca Street 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Tx. 78767 

Re: Vacating Public Utility Easement for Lot 137 

Mr. Scoggins: 

I am requesting to Vacate the five (5) foot Public Utility Easement on the South side for Lot 137 
in order to build a garage on the slab that has been there for over twenty five (25) years 
undeveloped. The slab is 3-112 inches off of the property line of the south end of Lot 137. 

I have received releases from the other utility companies and now need one from Travis County. 
Please review all of the supporting documents in order to obtain your release. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Ronald C. Roche, P .E. 
E-mail: rrocherr@yahoo.com 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

mailto:rrocherr@yahoo.com
mailto:rrocherr@yaboo.com


TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL 


AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17 


3812 Eck Lane. Austin, Texas 78734 
• Phone (512) 266-1111 • Fax (SI2) 266-2790 

UTILITY EASEMENT RELEASE APPLICATION 
Date: 7-10-"1 
A release of the following utility easement(s) is hereby requested. 

( $25.00 fee is required) 

Property 

, 


Address : 3//0 Br-4.-6f;, I3Vlitoit $ 1"cc-u/ 

AfeA..-C(A~ Sht:>lre$ FIr-sf :I' xsfA.},~;;tLegal Description: 

L-d 13'7 
A plat drawing with the easement highlighted must accompany 
this application, 

Applicant Name: C~:tJ1-er j ~e-, g. R" Git e.. 
Address: 3 i 128 B C4.sS B IA. f(t:M. 5 -trl. 

A-u.s-/ivL . n . '787 3,/ 
Reason for Request: p<<l U Id b ·/~ I -to =fA'H ;1 4 btt IJolJ~ . ~ 

':;-t~ #c:y;-(\<~ /. slpJJ lW'f;! -tt.A~ J,f./~ d f'tUclt.AAt/ 
~ p ret P t\ 'J

::t-Water District 17 DOES NOT have a need for an easement on the property as described in 

the accompanying document. The easement(s) is (are) hereby released, 

__Water District 17 DOES have a need for an easement on the property as described in the 

accompanying document. A description of the required easement is attached. 

Signature Date 

Deborah S. Gernes 

Printed Name 

General Manager 

Title 

Please return this completed form to: 

Name 

Fax:,___.. __-_____ 

City/State/Zip 

\t'-' c i D 17 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



5122064810 NFS 	 1006:04 a.m . 08-31-2007 2/3 
..s I 	 :n:i:.tnu:.sY1U 

p.3Nancy LeMieux 	 512-266-3910 

~0IITA1'IMUD HAMAL RDO\IIICES 
JOiDIM ~ __WM. DKlITM MNWIIII 

UgMlNI BlOP"JMPTUADMljNT 101VACATION Of rROfEBU 

All ~WioD iJ beina made 10 T1'IVlI. CDUDlY 1br tbc yacllJoD of Jll'OPCrtY-5A.! (
at ~fiQ ~t""A.t$S ~OH: 	 (ldeIN,.) adIor 
&~ AIfYe.1 Fie If II., @" 137 (legal dalGripdon) uu! .. 
dacrfbed DtlIbc CDClolCd drawiDa or dDcUll*lL AD IGticm oltlle Comm;.iDDcn' CollI! ofT,.g 
C01lIICy is pendi", )'Our mmD of this IlatCDCDt, your prompt reply is requested_ 

STATIMINT 

_ 	 We do no( have n~d for an cuamont aD 1bc: propCIl11 as described iD the ICCODlptlnyiaa 
document. 

i 

I 
I 

I 
j 

i 
I 
I 

I 

Utility Easem_ent along the 
rear and the 10' Public 
Utility Easement along 
Brass Buttons Trail. 

~ 

Pleat rlNnl this ccmpltted farm tD: 

I 

I 

I . 
I 
i 

• .-.~_.J I, "'•.M. ___ 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



~ 

~at&t 

SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 

RELEASE OF EASEMENT 

THIS RELEASE OF EASEMENT, entered into by SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY, GRANTOR, AND Catherine Roche, GRANTEE, wherein GRANTOR in consideration of One 
Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does by these 
presents ABANDON, RELEASE, RELINQUISH AND DISCLAIM to GRANTEE, as is, all or a specific 
portion of a certain easement for telecommunication purposes hereinafter described that affects land 
owned by GRANTEE situated in Travis County, Texas, and described as follows: 

Lot 137, Apache Shores, First Installment, Deed of record in Volume 12580, Page 647, Property Records 
of Travis County, Texas 

Said land of GRANTEES being subject to: 

Public utility easement recorded in Volume 43, Page 29, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

The portion of said easement to be hereby released is described as follows: 

The 5 foot PUE on the South property line of said Lot 137, described above, adjacent to the common 
property line of Lot 138, of said Subdivision, 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the same 
belonging, unto GRANTEE(S), their heirs, successors and assigns forever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GRANTOR has caused this Release of Easement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers this ~ day of JUL¥ ' 20l!!l. 

ELEPHONE COMPANY 

Name S1-Cl/fil= £~ eRtlJ 

Title: ~AlJl.6(rL ~/A.I~<J. ~~11(./
THE STATE OF '1"eyAs 
COUNTY OF Ufc=VJ S 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally 
appeared MevE. F DII ..&e()II , known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as Manager, Engineering-Design of Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, a Missouri corporation, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for purposes 
and considerations therein expressed in the capacity stated, and as the act and deed of said corporation. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the ~ day of I.- , O.ll!t. 

for t e ate of 1E,t!JJ6 
Expires ...::tAN. B, Z013 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



5122064810 	 NFS 0956:27a.m . 08-31-2007 2/3 
~ I !In lIS., :J.. 'U 

Nancy LeMieux 	 512-266-3910 p.3 

~1II'DmOfIIMD '-TUb&. JIIIOIJIICiI 
JOIIIIH ~~..... ~LI11ft awwIIIJt 

, 
i 

I 

I 

i 

I 

: IAg:MINT UOu'P!I!4QT UATIMII!I lOR VAHmm« or PBDPIJtTY
i 

i 


Aa appUCIIIoa 11 ball ..se 10 Tm1I. Calmly Jbr rbc vlAdoD at propertyI 

i 
 at 3t!." ~~§~ ~"H:'· 5«-1 I 	 cc.... ) IJ1IJJr4 
i +..w; ~C"'€jr ,f. II. ?if ,i1 CJ-pS ~pdan).nd_,,, 

I 

cSoIaIIbIId 011'" .ad0Md ........___• All .... 01... Conni......' Coull ofT"";' 


i 
I 
 Caaa&y • """ina your rctuna of......... yow prompt -ply is requesII!d.. 


1 
 . 	 "ADMINTi 
I L 	We da DOC haw nled tor aD caaneat DD die piopcnyas dcac:n'bcd ia the ~ 


documem. 


I 


j 

! 
i 


Pleue rBtunt. this CDmpleted fbrm 10: 

I 

i
I 
I 

! 

i 
I 
I 
•I 
I 

._.:..'" j, ,..",.... _... 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http:pdan).nd


TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
Sleven M. M"aniila , P.E., Coul1IY Exe, ulive 
700 La vaca Slr<:' <:'1 7 5'" Floor 
Trav is COUIlIY Adrnini , lralioll Building 
P.O. Box 1748 
AU~lin. Texas 78767 
lei 5 12~854 ~9383 

fax 51 2~854 ~4649 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

TO: 	 County Judge 
County Commissioners 
Travis County, Texas 

A Public Notice ofYacation sign for a five foot wide public utility easement was posted on 
OepJeYY\b/!.'Y oZ.~ , 2013, along the east ROW line of Brass Buttons Trail at the 
common lot line of Lots 137 and 138 of Apache Shores, First Installment at a point as near as 
practical to the area being vacated, and was also posted at the Travis County Courthouse. 

CERTIFIED THIS THE _~j=----_ __ DA Y OF Dt-Iobe ~ 	 ,2013. 


SIGNATURE: O~ G~ 
.,./" 

NAME (PRINT): .Jq,'Me. G~y-C('C.. 
TITLE: 7;vt<./t til> S¥e--tCJ '-SOY 

cc Garcia (sign shop) 

C:\Users\GarciaJ\AppData\LocaI\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\AJBA03JB\SignReque: 


Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



NOTICE OF 

PUBLIC HEARING 


OCTOBER 22. 2013 AT 900 AM 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT VACA liON 


TO APPROVE THE VACATION Of A FIVE 

FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

LOCATED ALONG THE SOUTH SID[ LOT 

UN[ Of LOT 137 Of APACHE SHORES. 


FIRST INSTALLATION. A SuaOIVISON 

IN PRECINCT THREE. 


A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT 
THE TRAVIS COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM 
700 LAVACA ST. AUSTIN TEXAS 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



NOTIC OF 

PUBl C HEARING 


OCTOBER 22. 2013, AT 9:00 AM 

PUBLIC U LITY EA EMENT VACATION 


TO APPROVE THE VACATION OF A FIVE 

FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

LOCATED ALONG THE SOUTH SIDE l OT 

LINE OF LOT 137 Of APACHE SHORES, 

FIRST INSTALLATION. A SUBDIVISON 


IN PRECINCT THREE. 


A HEARING WI L BE HELD AT 

THE TRAVIS COU Y 


COMMISSIO ERS COURTROOM 

700 LAVACA 5 AUS I ,TEX 5 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CALL 854-9383 


Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



095638 am 08-31-2007 3/3
5 12206481 0 r..---- NFS 

~ 
.; 

" ~, . ..". .1 

-/",":J""»'I_l
"-0.• . ) 

"3 1/(5 


Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



II 

Travis CAD - Map of Property 10 149579 for Year 2013 

149498149499 ~ 
149497\ 1495 00 


149496 ,// /
\
49495  II" 

./ / / II IIII 

149506 \ II 
149505 

149507 \ i I 
149508 ~~_---L-__'-_--" 1\ 


" ./ ---=----====~-===---:=.I


'" r~ 
I//,:,>lTi II 
10l 
1::0 

):0 
C/) 

Y.// 1 49688!.96.j1 496~90!1 
I(J)',,/ .. .. 1 I ICP7 /' n 

C/ /11 __ I~ 1'-1 
n...... ,;:;1" I 01 I C/) I '-I 

'\~/' I C I ::I 1 0 
Z~~>' I ·~ 149686 I ~ VI' 

II 
-I 

~" - '" 1):0 149691 13 

,\~<J, ; j '5" II
'\ . ,/ " 1-4 I~ 
,,> . 149674 1-1 149 685 ~ II~ Streets 

/ ' \ I~ I I II 
II 0 Selected Property1~""" · .. . ':9l6~t 'l 149684 1496 93 i'l 

~l ' 
149501 

149502 

149619 

--------
149618 

149617 

149616 

149614 

149613 

149612 

149611 

149609 

149577 

149652 

149654 

149578 

149579 

149580 

149582 

149583 

149584 

375582 

II 

Property Details 
Account 

Property ID: 149579 
Geo ID: 0147550318 

Type : Real 
Legal Description : LOT 137 APACHE SHORES FIRST INSTALLMENT 

Location 
Situs Address : 3110 BRASS BUTTONS TRL TX 
Neighborhood: APACHE SHORESS(Obsolete-MERGED INTO R4120) 

Mapsco : 490R 
Jurisdictions : OA, 03, 07, 2J, 52 

Owner 
Owner Name : ROCHE RONALD C 

Mailing Address: , 3108 BRASS BUTTONS TRL, , AUSTIN, TX 78734-2406 

Property 
Appraised Value : $28,506.00 

tftl1IIH-ri'.db,'" 

http: / /propaccess. traviscad .org/Ma p/View/ Map/1/149579/2013 
(~__pr~~~ ~~r7==~~S~__ Pw~~ =~~C=S~

Map Disclaimer . ThIs ~x map was compiled solely for the use of reAD. Are"s depicted by these digital products are 1:IpprOXImate, and are not necessa.... ly aCcurc"lte to mllpplng, surveying or enOl'n~enng standards. ConclUSions dr awn from thiS 
mformation are the responsibIlity of the usee The TeAD makes no claims, promises or guarantees about the accuracy. completeness or adeQuacy 01 this information and expressly disc/aims liability for an y errors and omissions. Th e mapped data 
does not constitu te a legal document. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http://propaccess
http:tftl1IIH-ri'.db
http:28,506.00


Site AreOJ 

ityof 
10 Vista 

, 

'" rn 

"'c"i'€"6 
irf?O 

~1f 

';f-J 

Village of 
Point 

Venture 

~lC(.~ 
'

City P( 
Lake~ay 

Village of 
The Hills 

Y,y 
Ji>¢ 

'lh
t ~ #~(j't- oc,'i
\;. ,....<.'?' 

~~~ 
? 

, ;tnellilfl Br.!nc/J 

MURFIN RO 

Honey Creel 

t 

'I 

~ 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



·'1,.-.11f'r_ . 

~eg."d 

••••• Ptwtt 

_~MII""""'ed 

"'CIO/JOf,..G 

-- Tr.mCa~"""",,,,,,, 

....,~i!"ltalNd 

R:."ebM1 al [)edb,lian 

~Pn\i•• 

- R:_OId-.
c.y~ 

...' 
2011 Commiuloner Precincts 

{ 

City of 
Lago Vista ,~ ' 

2/ 

§! 
'-1 _ tJ."..... 

-",'4. 

\ 
....... 'I 

~ 

, 
"'l ~ ."i ! 

~ 

J , '.-~ 
r Village of 

'I 

. Point 

..~ 

r' 

\ 

\ 
,~ 
~ 

Venture Cityo{ 
Lakeway 

\ 
'~ 
\\ ...... " 

Travis count~catlon Map 

SourCi!!(s )' City of AusM Roads - COA 20 13, 
Unlncorporatltd Roads· T, • •• Ctrutlty 
2013 , TottRoad ' ''''lous'lOu~, 
Creeks- NHD 2005 , Par" ' TravIS County 
2013, Corr.nYss!onel Pr~cls - TraYls County 
Voter Re9lstrar 2011. 

~/ 
( 

PRECINT 3 

i\r, - t\ 

\ 
., ' 

, ~ )i:' . ."!I'-' ;: .\"i 'l:  \ 
'i f' \, 
,I,: ~ _ 
fl. " ~.: ..~ . ' ... ...<::(h :,....... . 
y~ , 

! cS;' H-f~. 

Ijj "''\ 

Hays County 

...... "'" "-J. ~ , • . f 
.,,'!"'.... ~~ l\! ... 
i't'~"!~.... ~~/~I- ..... ( :... 

" ,
-;; 

./ 

"I 

j ' . . , " '~'J'-"~-:1' 

~~~ 

i:';~.~~~::;;:;:;:~.-:~:,:,u~~:::;d,;';,·:.~~:':V'::=~i:~P.,"'':';:;~;,~~~~ :~':.';. Tr a v I- S C 0 U nty R 0 a d waysMap D
and repr...ts ~nty the approxi~i!! leid Ye locatron of property boundarlu. TraVIS County 

~::;:'~::u~::~;:~~~t~~:,~ce purposes onty and oft'ers 00 warrantres for the , 

o 0.9 
~ 

"'~. 

I' 

'r 

1ll.,!..;"'", 
~ , . -. 
~ ' .C> .:\ 

l,~~~~ 
~ y " .~ 

City ot 
Austin 

Map Prepll1ed by. TUM$ County 
D« pl 01 TranspOrtition & NatUral 
Resources.. Datt . 512112013 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 9Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

 
Meeting Date:  October 22, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive briefing on the Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life Report by Teresa Perez Wisely, 
Chair Oversight Team. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attachment report and presentation 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends the approval of the CHIP report. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
See attachment report and presentation 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
No Fiscal Impact 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney’ 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office 
Cyd Grimes, CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, CAP, CMA, Travis County Auditor 
Patty Lennon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Aerin Toussaint, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, HHSVS 

Item 10Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



1

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



HISTORY
• May 2008  Austin City Council passed a resolution initiating the Hispanic Quality of Life 

Initiative (HQL)

• Evaluate the quality of life for Hispanics/Latinos in Austin, TX as compared to 
Hispanics/Latinos nationwide

• A consultant coordinated community engagement efforts and combined the first 
phase of the report

• The Community Oversight Team incorporated 
• the consultant’s information;
• census data; 
• expert’s testimony; and 
• community input into the second phase of the Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life Final 

Report

2

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



• The Community Oversight Team 
• met with hundreds of community members, 
• numerous community groups and 
• hosted a Hispanic Quality of Life Town Hall

• An additional set of recommendations for the City Council and the Austin community

• The Oversight Team requests that Council create a Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life 
Resource Advisory Commission

3

HISTORY

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



THE HQL COMMUNITY OVERSIGHT TEAM

Teresa Perez-Wisely (Chair)

Susana Almanza

Johnny Limon

Lupe Morin

Sylvia Orozco

Rose Reyes

Geronimo Rodriguez

4

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AREAS OF INTERESTS

Education

Youth 

Housing and Community Development

Cultural Arts

Economic Development

Health

Civic Engagement

Transportation

5

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



EDUCATION ISSUES
• Dropout rates in AISD in 2011 for Hispanic students in grades 9-12 was 13.1%

• 52% enrolled into a post-secondary school

• 39% were considered “college ready”

• Lack of summer youth programs, comprehensive mentoring programs, and
an overall lack of training programs

• Increase collaboration between governmental, corporate and educational
entities to foster student academic excellence

6

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



OUR EDUCATION RECOMMENDATIONS

• Collaboration between the Joint Subcommittee of AISD, City of Austin 
and Travis County to consider the HQL recommendations

• Enhance partnerships and collaborations with local ISDs, governmental 
entities, area colleges and universities and nonprofit organizations.

• Creation of a youth court for truancy, 

• Develop of educational programs, 

• Implement preventative measures that will keep truant youth in school.

• Develop a career leadership academy

7

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



YOUTH SERVICES ISSUES
• Hispanic/Latino youth make up a large population of the juvenile 

justice system

• Most Hispanic/Latino youth are unemployed or underemployed 

• A lack of internships geared toward Hispanic/Latino youth

• Lack of resources for organized sports and other activities that promote 
youth development 

• A need for organized activities for Hispanic/Latino females

8

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



OUR YOUTH SERVICES RECOMMENDATIONS

• An increase in opportunities for programs, trainings and youth 
development 

• Collaboration among local school districts to create programs to 
reduce truancy and increase graduation rates

• An increase of health services for youth.

• Programs that enhance career building and employment 
opportunities

9

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RECOMMENDATIONS TO MENTION

HEALTH
•An increased effort to cultivate and promote healthy lifestyles

• Address hunger in our community 
• Provide ongoing support for organizations that conduct and facilitate 

programs and outreach for healthy lifestyles and disease prevention
•Increase funding for teenage pregnancy prevention

TRANSPORTATION
•Improve on neighborhood transportation safety issues in low income areas
•City work with local  ISDs to ensure school zone signs are visible

10

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



MOVING FORWARD

City Council approved the creation of the 
Hispanic/Latino Quality of Life Resource 

Advisory Commission

11

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



HISPANIC QUALITY OF LIFE REPORT 

English Version

http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/Code_Compliance/HispanicReport-ver_5-
07-15-13.pdf

Spanish Version

http://www.austintexas.gov/sites/default/files/files/City_Manager/HispanicReportSpanish4-
08-26-13.pdf

12

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



13

hispanicqualityoflife@austintexas.gov

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 11Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 12Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 13Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 14Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 15Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB, 854-
9762/Marvin Brice, CPPB, 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Consider and take appropriate action on contract 
award to URS Corporation for Program Management Services for the 
Development of a New Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the 
statutes. 

 On May 7, 2013, the Commissioners Court confirmed the Evaluation 
Committee’s selection of URS as the highest qualified respondent to RFS 
No. S1301-008-CG and authorized the Purchasing Agent to commence 
contract negotiations with URS for program management services.  URS 
will advise the Commissioners Court, and represent the County’s interests, 
through the development of the new Civil and Family Courthouse Program.  
Please see the attached summary for a detailed description of the scope of 
services that URS will provide to the County. 

 The Court requested that staff have URS perform some preliminary services 
immediately to assist the Court in selecting a project delivery method.  
Scope, terms and fees for these services were successfully negotiated and 
a purchase order was issued on May 29, 2013, in the amount of 
$49,885.19, for “Phase IA” services.  On July 23, 2013, upon completion of 
their work, URS presented an analysis and report for the Court’s 
consideration.  After deliberation, the Court ultimately selected Design-Build 
as the project delivery method.  

 Over the past several months, County staff has refined the scope of 
services for the Program through a collaborative process with URS.  It was 
ultimately determined that the Program would consist of the following five 
phases: Phase I-Initiation Services; Phase II-Program Definition 
Development; Phase III-Procurement Document Preparation and Open 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 16Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Solicitation Period; Phase IV-Bid Evaluation, Selection and Negotiation 
Period; and, Phase V-Construction and Implementation. 

 The Purchasing Agent and her staff, along with representatives from the 
Planning and Budget Office, Justice and Public Safety, Facilities 
Management Department and the County Attorney’s Office began 
negotiating the terms and fees for a contract with URS.  During negotiations, 
it was determined that it would be prudent to delay fee negotiations for 
Phase V until the Program construction budget is established, thereby 
allowing URS to proceed with the work required to move toward placing an 
item on the November 2014 Bond Election.  Completing fee negotiations for 
Phase V at that time will also allow for a more accurate fee proposal since 
all parties will have more certainty and clarity on the scope and cost of the 
Program.   

 Contract negotiations for Phases I - IV were successfully completed on 
October 9, 2013, and the final contract is now presented for the Court’s 
review and approval.  County staff recommends that a contract be awarded 
to URS Corporation in the amount of $2,979,946.70, consisting of the 
following per phase fee breakdown:  Phase I - $359,323.50; Phase II - 
$1,420,086.80; Phase III - $599,917.50; Phase IV - $600,618.90.  The 
contract has been negotiated to require the issuance of a Notice to Proceed 
prior to commencement of each phase of the services.  Staff recommends 
that a Notice to Proceed be issued for only Phases I & II at this time.   

 As a matter of interest to the Court, based on the difference between the 
initial fee proposal for Phases I - IV of $3,945,440.00 and the final 
negotiated fee of $2,979,946.70, negotiations yielded the County a cost 
savings of $965,493.30. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $2,979,946.70   
Contract Type: Professional Services  
Contract Period: Through Completion of Services  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  150  Responses Received:  7  
HUB Information:  No  % HUB Subcontractor:  20.45%  

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments:  Funding for this contract is slated for Commissioners 

 Court approval on October 22, 2013.  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



PLANNING AND BUDGET OFFICE 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

 

700 Lavaca Street 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
MEMORANDUM                October 14, 2013 
               
TO:    Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO, Purchasing Agent 
    Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB Purchasing Agent Assistant  
 

FROM:   Belinda Powell, Strategic Planning Manager 
     
SUBJECT:    Recommendation to award contract to URS, Corporation for Program 

Management Services for the development of the Travis County Civil and Family 
Court House and issue Notice to Proceed for Phase I & II of the scope of services 
in the amount of $1,779,411.00. 

 
Summary and Recommendations: 
Staff recommends award of the contract to URS Corporation for Program Management Services 
for the development of the Civil and Family Court House.  The Contract has been negotiated for 
fixed fees services for Phases I through IV in the amount of $2,979,946.70, with Phase V to be 
negotiated after the budget  for the Program,  including the construction budget, has been set 
by  the  Commissioners  Court  and  funding  authorized.    Additionally,  the  contract  has  been 
negotiated  to  require  the  issuance of  a Notice  to Proceed  for each Phase of  the  services  to 
begin. 
 
Staff recommends that Notice to Proceed be given for only Phases I & II at this time. Therefore, 
a budget  transfer  from  the Civil and Family  Justice Center Reserve  to  the Planning & Budget 
Office,  10900200001  511890  in  the  amount  of  $1,779,411.00,  has  been  placed  on  the 
Commissioners Court agenda for October 22, 2013, to fund the contract.     
 

COPY TO:   
Copies to: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety 
Marvin Brice, CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director  
Diana Ramirez, Assistant Budget Director 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director  
Peg Liedtke, Civil Court Administrator 
Roger El Khoury, Director Facilities Management 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 5) to Contract No. 4400000027 
(HTE Contract No. 08T00263OJ), Frost Insurance Agency, for Excess Workers 
Compensation Insurance. 

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

This contract provides Excess Workers Compensation Insurance coverage for 
Travis County. 

This Modification No. 5 extends the contract for an additional twelve (12) months, 
from November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014. 

The premium rate offered by Frost Insurance Agency with Midwest Employers 
Casualty Company as the carrier is $0.0792 per $100 of actual payroll based on an 
annual audit.  The deposit premium will be $212,972.00 with an additional flat 
charge of $16,303.75 per helicopter due with the deposit premium and the minimum 
premium for a one year policy will be $207,978.75.  The final premium will be based 
on the actual payroll developed over the period and determined by audit. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $207,978.75 (Estimated amount) 
Modification Type: Bilateral / Requirements   
Modification Period: November 1, 2013 to October 31, 2014 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart # / Funds Reservation #: 300000895 
  Comments: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



 

Memorandum 
 
 
         October 16, 2013 
 
To: Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent 
 
From: William Paterson, Risk Manager, HRMD 

  
 
Re: Excess Workers Compensation Renewal Review 
 
 
After reviewing the options from Frost Insurance Agency, Inc.:   
 
 It is the recommendation of Risk Management that Travis County exercise its option to renew the 
contract with Frost Insurance Agency, Inc. with Midwest Employers Casualty Company as the 
carrier.  The recommendation is based on Renewal Option # 1 due to statutory limits and the 
catastrophic occurrence protection. The renewal rate as quoted under option #1 is $.0792 per 
$100, the deposit premium is $278,187.00 based on an estimated payroll of $268,904,371.00, and 
with a minimum premium of $207,978.75. The line item from which the premium will be paid from 
is GL 515310 and cost center # 1110048955. If you have any questions please call me at 854-
9650. Thank you. 
 
 
 
CC: Leslie Browder, County Executive Planning and Budget  

Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 
 C.W Bruner/Purchasing 
 
 

 

HRMD 
 

Human Resources Management Department 

700 Lavaca St. 4th Floor P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-4203 • • • 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



EXCESS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROPOSAL 
 

 
Carrier 

 
Midwest Employers 

EXPIRING 
 

 
Midwest Employers 
RENEWAL OFFER 

OPTION 1 

 
Midwest Employers 
RENEWAL OFFER 

OPTION 2 

Policy Term 
November 1,  
2012 - 2013 

November 1, 
2013 - 2014 

November 1, 
2013 - 2014 

States Covered TX TX 
 

TX 

Estimated Annual Payroll $244,568,544 $268,904,371 
 

$268,904,371 

Specific WC Limit Statutory Statutory 
 

Statutory 

EL Limit $1,000,000 $1,000,000 
 

$1,000,000 

Specific Retention $600,000 $700,000 
 

$800,000 

Rate Per $100 of Payroll .0733 .0792 
 

.0706 

Policy Period Minimum Premium 
 

$186,100 (1) $207,978.75 (2) 
 

$186,607 (3) 

Deposit Premium $179,269 $212,972 
 

$189,846 

 Aircraft Flat Charge $74,274 for 3 Aircraft $65,215 for 4 Aircraft 
 

$62,980 for 4 Aircraft 

Total Deposit Due $253,543 $278,187 
 

$252,826 

Terrorism Risk Insurance Premium Included Included 
 

Included 
 

(1) Minimum premium $161,342 plus 1 aircraft flat charge of $24,758 
(2) Minimum premium $191,675 plus 1 aircraft flat charge of $16,303.75 
(3) Minimum premium $170,862 plus 1 aircraft flat charge of $15,745 
 
Option 1:  Premium rate per $100 payroll increased 8% over expiring rate. 
  Cash Flow Protection: $315,000, $210,000, $175,000 
 
Option 2:  Premium rate per $100 payroll decreased 4% over expiring rate. 
  Cash Flow Protection: $360,000, $240,000, $200,00 
 
 
 
 
 
Cgs/TravisCounty/2013Revised WC Premium Due to Aircraft Charge Adjustment 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Funds Reservation 300000895
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 10/03/2013

Posting date 10/03/2013

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by SOLANOM

Last changed by

Created on 10/03/2013

Last changed

More Data

Text Contract renewal Excess Workers Compensation

Reference

Overall Amount             278,187.00  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 515310

Fund 8955

Cost center 1110048955

Vendor 1000004612

Funds center 1110048955

G/L account 515310

Due on

Customer

Text Workers Comp Premium

Amount           278,187.00  USD

Earmarked fund 300000895 printed on 10/11/2013/10:18:27 Side 1 of 1

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 08T002630J, Excess Workers Compensation PAGE! OF 2 PAGES

(SAP # 4400000027)

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: DATE PREPARED:

PURCHASING OFFICE CW Bruner September 27, 2013
700 LAVACA STREET TEL. NO: (512) 854-9760
8 FLOOR FAX NO: (512) 854-4211
AUSTIN, TX 78701

ISSUED TO: 1000004612 MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF

Frost Insurance Agency ORIGINAL CONTRACT:

Attn: Cyndi White 5
3611 Paesanos Parkway, Suite 100 October 28, 2008

San Antonio, TX 78231
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: November 1. 2008— October 31. 2010 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: November 1. 2013— October 31, 2014

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $197,819.00 Current Modified Amount: $278.187.00

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

This modification number five to Policy Number EWC007085 Issued to Travis County, Texas by Midwest
Employers Casualty is made by the following parties: Frost Insurance Agency (“Contractor”) and Travis County, Texas
(“County”).

RECITALS:

In 2008, County and Contractor entered into a contract for Excess Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage to be
provided by Midwest Employers Casualty that began November 1, 2008 and ended October 31, 2010. Paragraph 7.0 of the
Contract authorized County to extend the Contract for one additional two year period. County exercised its option for the
period from November 1, 2010 to October 31, 2012.

In 2012, County issued RFP P120213-CW. Contractor submitted the best negotiated response. Modification 4
created the first novation this contract and the extension of Policy Number EWC007085 by Midwest Employers Casualty.
This modification 5 amends the contract as stated in modification 4. During this additional term and the options all other
terms and conditions remain unchanged.

AMENDMENT

Contractor and County agree to amend the Contract as follows:

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION: Pursuant to 7.1 of the Contract as amended in Modification 4, Travis County
exercises its option to extend this agreement for the first option to extend the Novation from November 1, 2013 through
October 31, 2014.
Note to Vendor:

[X I Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

LEGALBUSINESSNAME: Frost Insurance Agency, Inc. UDBA

BY
CORPORAT1ON

S1GNA’1RE D OTHER

BY
Cyndi White

• PRINT NAME
DATE.

TITLE: Sr. Vice President 09/30/2013
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

:‘Tr DATE:;

I
CYD V. RIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COTY PURCHASING AGENT / / /

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:___________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOB, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Modification # 5 Contract # 08T002630J PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

2.0 RETENTION LEVEL FOR NOVATION: Pursuant to 7.1 of the Contract as amended in Modification 4, Contractor has
advised that the self retained retention level be increased, thus section 3.1 of the Contract as amended in Modification 4 is
deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

3.1 Details of Workers Compensation Coverage Commencing November 1, 2012: The coverage complies with the
Workers’ compensation law of Texas. The specific workers compensation limit is the statutory requirement.
The Business Operations of County include all its governmental functions, including the operation of a rescue
program. The Aircraft Coverage Endorsement Part A and Part B shall continue to be part of the coverage.

3.2 Self-Retained Retention Initial Term During the initial one year term of the Novation commencing November
1, 2012, the workers’ compensation retention is $600,000 per occurrence for all classification codes.

3.3 Self-Retained Retention First Novation Option During the first option to extend the Novation commencing
November 1, 2013, the workers’ compensation retention is $700,000 per occurrence for all classification codes.

3.0 PREMIUM PAYABLE FOR NOVATION: Pursuant to 7.1 of the Contract as amended in Modification 4, section 8.1 of
the Contract as amended in Modification 4 is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

8.1 Premium During Initial Term of Novation: During the initial one year term of the Novation:
8.1.1 The annual premium rate shall be $0.0733 per $100 of actual payroll based on an annual audit.
8.1.2 The minimum premium shall be $161,342.00 48.1.3 The amount of the Deposit Premium is $179,269.00 based on an estimated payroll of $244,568,54,(.
8.1.4 An additional flat charge of $24,758 per Aircraft and totaling $74,274 for three aircraft is payable in

addition to and at the same time as the Deposit.

8.2 Premium During First Option to Extend Novation: During the First Option to Extend Novation:
8.2.1 The annual premium rate shall be $0.0792 per $100 of actual payroll based on an annual audit which is

within ten percent (10%) of the rate stated for the Initial Term of the Novation.
8.2.2 The minimum premium shall be $207,978.75.
8.2.3 The amount of the Deposit Premium is $212,972.00 based on an estimated payroll of $268,904,371.
8.2.4 An additional flat charge of $16,303.75 per Aircraft and totaling $65,215 for four aircraft is payable in

addition to and at the same time as the Deposit.

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Mike Long, 854-4850; Marvin Brice, 854-
9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 3, to Contract No. 
4400000920, Cynthia C. Brinson, M.D., for Specialized Medical Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The Contractor, Dr. Brinson, provides specialized medical services (HIV, 
AIDS, and other chronic medical conditions) to the inmate population 
within the Travis County Detention Facilities, including the Travis County 
Jail, the Travis County Correctional Complex, and the Travis County 
Central Booking Facility to serve the needs of those inmates affected. 

Modification No. 3 will increase the hours Dr. Brinson is currently 
working from a not-to-exceed 40 hours per month to a not-to-exceed 66 
hours per month. The additional hours Dr. Brinson will be performing 
along with the hours currently being provided by Dr. Dan Hart will ensure 
the facilities would be staffed with a full time physician at all times.  

Modification No. 2 reduced the malpractice liability requirements from 
$1,000,000 to $200,000 per incident and reduced the $3,000,000 
aggregate to $600,000 as substantiated by legislation (HB-4) passed 
June of 2003. 

Modification No. 1 increased Dr. Brinsons monthly rate to $5,000, not to 
exceed $60,000 per month. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $60,000 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 18Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $42,000 annually    
Contract Type: Professional Service   
Contract Period: July 1, 1999 through September 30, 1999   

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $39,000   
Modification Type: Professional Service    
Modification Period: Auto Renewal   

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations: N/A  

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s): 137-049-0001/GL 511060 
  Comments:* Funding for this modification will result from a salary 

adjustment to the current TSCO physician’s salary. 
 
 

 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000920 Specialized Medical Services PAGE 1 OF 1 PAGES
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Michael Long DATE PREPARED:

P0 BOX 1748 TEL. NO: (512) 854-4850 September 24, 2013
AUSTIN, TX 78767 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: Cynthia C. Brinson, M.D. MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUThD DATE OF ORIGINAL
2812 Glenview 3 CONTRACT: July 12. 1999
Austin, TX 78703

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: July 12. 1999 - Sentember 30. 2007 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: Until terminated by either natty

FOR TRAVIS COIJNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $45,000.00 Current Modified Amount $99.000.00

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Upon execution of this modification, the contract is modified as provided below:

1. Reference Section VII, Compensation, Paragraph A, Contract Amount. The not-to-exceed amount of $60,000, as modified on
November 6, 2001, is changed to a not-to exceed amount of $99,000, an increase of $39,000. This change will increase the
number of hours Dr. Brinson provides for specialized medical services for inmate patients at the Travis County Jail Facilities.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

Note to Vendor/City:

I X Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I I DO NOT execute and retun to Travis County. Retain for your records.

C DBA

C CORPORATION

OTHER

DATE:

DATE:

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:______________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

L

PA

TRAVIS COUNTY, TE

BY: r
PURCHASING AGCYD V. RIMES, C.P.M., PPO, TRA

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Richard Villareal/512-854-4881, Marvin 
Brice, CPPB/512-854-9765, Purchasing  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for Professional 
Architectural and Engineering Services for the Design of the 416 West 11th 
Street Office Building and Parking Structure, RFQ No. Q1306-014-RV, to 
the highest qualified respondent, Page Southerland Page (PSP). 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

Subject RFQ closed on August 14, 2013. Nine (9) responses 
(Qualifications Statements) were received in response to the solicitation.  
The Evaluation Committee, supervised by the Purchasing Office and 
comprised of representatives from the Facilities Management 
Department (FMD), reviewed and evaluated (scored) the responses.  
Based on the scores received, the following four (4) firms shortlisted 
were PSP, HKS, Gensler and Atkins North America. 

Oral interviews with these firms were conducted on September 4th -5th. 
2013.  The oral presentations were scored on pre-established questions.  
On September 17, 2013, the Court authorized the Purchasing Agent to 
commence negotiations with the team of PSP.  The negotiation team 
met with PSP to clarify and discuss the Scope of Work.  PSP team was 
asked to provide a fee based on those clarifications.  The initial fee 
proposal was $2,289,618.00.  After negotiations with PSP, the final 
negotiated fee is $1,990,000.00, which is comprised of the PSP fee, and 
the fees of their subconsultants, resulting in a cost savings of 
$299,618.00.  Each sub-consultant’s fee was discussed in detail, to 
ensure there was a clear understanding of the County’s expectations, 
and that there was no “overlap” or “gap” in services by any of the 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

 

Item 19Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

consultants.  The firm did an excellent job in meeting the County’s HUB 
goals.  A total of six (6) HUB’s are working on their team with a total of 
35.3% of the total fee. 

Therefore, it is the recommendation of the Purchasing Agent and FMD 
that a contract be awarded to the firm of PSP, in the amount of 
$1,990,000.00.  The contracts are being routed for signature.  A draft 
copy is provided for the Court’s review, with the originals to be provided 
for approval upon receipt.    

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $1,990,000.00 (Not-to-Exceed)    
Contract Type: Professional Service Agreement   
Contract Period: Through Project Completion    

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received: 9   
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: 35.3%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: As a matter of interest to the Court, funding for this 

contract will be available contingent reimbursement resolution approval 
on October 15, 2013. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

1010 Lavaca St. Suite 400 • P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 • Phone: (512) 854-9661 • Fax: (512) 854-9226

MEMORANDUM FM# 416-01-14C-3N
File: 402

TO: Cyd Grimes, CPM, CPPO, Purchasing Agent

FROM: Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

DATE: October 9, 2013

SUBJECT: 416 W. 11th St. Office Building and Parking Structure
RFQ #Q1306-014-RV
Recommendation for Award of Contract for Professional AlE Services

Facilities Management Department (FMD) recommends Court approval of contract award to
Page Southerland Page, LLP (PSP) for professional architectural/engineering services related to
the 416 W. 11th St. Office Building and Parking Structure. The contract amount is $1,950,000
for basic services and $40,000 for reimbursable expenses as described in the Professional
Services Agreement included in the above-referenced RFQ and as further clarified in the contract
negotiations. Funding for this contract is budgeted and will be available upon approval of a
Reimbursement Resolution which is on the Commissioners Court October 15, 2013 Voting
Session agenda. FMD recommends placing this item for contract award on the Commissioners
Court agenda for consideration on October 22, 2013.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call Ken Gaede at extension
49894. Your assistance in obtaining Commissioners Court approval of this contract is
appreciated.

COPY TO:
Leslie Browder, Executive Manager, PBO
Ken ede, AlA, Senior Project Manager, FMD
Amy raper, CPA, Financial Manager, FMD
Ten1ezrA1thedge, Assistant County Attorney, County Attorney’s Office
Iich Vareal, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Purchasing Office

(_)

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Contract No. 4400001668 Page 61 of 87 
 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART WITH KEY PERSONNEL IDENTIFIED 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Richard Villareal/512-854-4881, Marvin 
Brice, CPPB/512-854-9765, Purchasing    
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and take appropriate action on request to 
issue Request for Proposal (RFP) No. P1309-005-RV, for Construction 
Manager at Risk (CMAR) Services for the new 416 West 11th Street Office 
Building and Parking Structure.    
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The Court elected to use the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) 
project delivery method for the design and construction of the 416 West 
11th Street Office Building and Parking Structure. The first step in the 
process was to hire an Architectural/Engineering firm to complete the 
design.  On September 17, 2013, the Court authorized the Purchasing 
Agent to commence negotiations with Page Southerland Page (PSP) for 
the required A/E services, after they were selected as the highest 
ranked respondent firm through RFQ No. Q1306-014-RV.   

On October 1, 2013, the Court reviewed and approved issuance of RFQ 
No. Q1309-004-RV to solicit qualifications of Construction Management 
firms for the project.   RFQ No. Q1309-004-RV was issued on October 
2, 2013, with a proposal submission deadline of October 23, 2013.  
Respondents to the RFQ will then be shortlisted to approximately three 
to five firms from which to solicit pricing via subject Request for Proposal 
(RFP).   

Facilities Management Department and Purchasing are requesting the 
Court to authorize issuance of RFP No. P1309-005-RV as the next step 
of the procurement process to hire a CMAR.  The RFP is attached for 
the Court’s review and approval. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 

The final step of the procurement process will be to negotiate a contract 
with the selected CMAR.       

    
    

REQUIRED ACTION 

 

Approved __________ Disapproved __________ 

 

________________________________________ 

                                   Samuel T. Biscoe   Date 

                                   County Judge 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

1010 Lavaca Street, Suite 400 • P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 • Phone: (512) 854-9661 • Fax: (512) 854-9226

The Facilities Management Department (FMD) and the County Attorney’s Office have reviewed
and approved the RFP for the requested CMAR services for the new 416 W. 11th St. Office
Building and Parking Structure. FMD requests Purchasing Office assistance with obtaining
Commissioners Court approval for issuance ofthe RFP for the subject project. Following Court
approval, the REP can be issued in accordance with the Procurement Schedule: after the
Evaluation Team finalizes the short list ofRFQ Respondents.

The FY2014 project funds, including the CMAR Pre-Construction Services fee, will be
requested as a Reimbursement Resolution in October prior to requesting Commissioner Court
approval ofthe CMAR contract award. Award of the CMAR contract is anticipated to occur in
December 2013.

When we were last in Court on October 1, 2013 to receive approval for issuance of the CMAR’s
RFQ, the Court requested that we return to obtain Court approval for the RFP document. We
would appreciate your assistance with posting this item for Court approval at the October 15,
2013 Voting Session. If you have any questions or need additional information, please call me at
extension 44579.

COPY:
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO
Tenley Aidredge, Assistant County Attorney
Ken Gaede, MA, Senior Project Manager
Richard Villareal, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Purchasing Office

Project No: 416-OI-14C-3N
File: 703

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cyd Grimes, CPM, Purchasing Agent

FROM: Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

DATE: October 2, 2013

SUBJECT: 416 W. 11th St. Office Building and Parking Structure
Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) Procurement
Request to Issue RFP #P1309-005-RV for CMAR

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



 

 

 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 

                      Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent 
  700 Lavaca  Street ▪   Suite 800  ▪   Austin, Texas 78701 ▪   (512) 854-9700 ▪  Fax (512) 854-9185                                                                                    

 

 
 

 

 

November 6, 2013 

  
 

Dear Proposers:  

  
You are invited to submit your proposal in accordance with the requirements in this REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

(RFP) # P1309-005-RV, Construction Manager at Risk for the New 416 West 11
th

 Street Office Building and 

Parking Structure.  

 

Proposals must be submitted with an ORIGINAL  (MARKED "ORIGINAL") AND FIVE (5) COPIES to 

the Travis County Purchasing Agent, 700 Lavaca Street, Suite 800, Austin Texas 78701, no later than 2:00 

P.M. CST ON WEDNESDAY, November 13, 2013. 
 

Any questions concerning this Request for Proposal should be directed to Richard Villareal, Purchasing Agent 

Assistant IV, at richard.villareal@co.travis.tx.us 

 

NOTE:  During this procurement process, potential respondents ARE NOT to contact Travis County 

program employees regarding this solicitation.  Any such contact may result in disqualification of the 

proposal.   

 

All proposals shall be submitted to the Travis County Purchasing Agent in a sealed envelope marked: 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

         RFP # P1309-005-RV 

Construction Manager at Risk for the New 416 West 11
th

 Street Office  

Building and Parking Structure   

 

DO NOT OPEN IN MAILROOM 

 

 

Your consideration of this Request for Proposal is appreciated. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Purchasing Agent 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

mailto:richard.villareal@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Request for Proposal 
 

for 
 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK FOR THE NEW 
416 WEST 11

TH
 STREET OFFICE BUILDING 

 AND PARKING STRUCTURE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 

 
 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  
STATE OF TEXAS 

Austin, Texas 
 

RFP # P1309-005-RV 
 

 

  
 

 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION           PAGE 
 
 
00210  Prevailing Wage Rate Determination      1  
    
   ATTACHMENT 1 – Wage Rate Poster     2 
   ATTACHMENT 2 – Wage Rate Poster (Spanish)   3 
 
00220  Texas Workers Compensation Coverage (TWCC)    4 
      
00230  Conflict of Interest Questionnaire      7 
    
00240  Forfeiture of Contract        8 

ATTACHMENT 1 - Ethics Affidavit     9 
    EXHIBIT A - List of Key Persons     11 
 
00300  CMAR’s Proposal        13 
 

Certificate of Secretary      14 
 
Performance Bond       15 
 
Payment Bond       16 
 
Safety Record Questionnaire      17 

   
 00400  HUB REQUIREMENTS       19 
 

 
00500  Agreement for Construction Services      20 
 

EXHIBIT A  General Conditions Costs 
EXHIBIT B Hub Declaration   
 

00700  General Conditions        50 
 

 
 01010  Summary of Work        89 

 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 92 
 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 93 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

1 

SECTION 00210 - PREVAILING WAGE RATE DETERMINATION 

SITE CONSTRUCTION & BUILDING CONSTRUCTION CRAFTS 

 

NOTICE 

The Travis County Commissioners Court has adopted the prevailing wage rates for Travis County as determined by the 

United States Department of Labor in accordance with the Davis –Bacon Act and its subsequent amendments.  The 

prevailing wage rates for this project are those rates set forth for Travis County in the U.S. Department of Labor General 

Decisions for: 
 

(1) Building Construction Projects and 
 

(2) Highway Construction Projects. 
 

Bidders may obtain copies of the U.S. Department of Labor General Decisions referenced above by contacting the 

Travis County Purchasing Office or by accessing the following website: 
 

http://www.access.gpo.gov/davisbacon/tx.html 
 

This determination of prevailing wages shall not be construed to prohibit the payment of more than the rate named.  Under 

no condition shall any laborer, workman, or mechanic employed on this job be paid less than the minimum wage scale.   
 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws, including, but not limited to, laws concerned with 

labor, equal employment opportunity, safety, and minimum wage.  The Contractor shall post the applicable Prevailing 

Wage Rate Determination in a prominent, easily accessible place at the work site.  To ensure that the Contractor, and/or 

subcontractors are paying the posted specified rates (including fringe benefits when applicable) to all classifications of 

workmen, mechanics, and laborers, the County reserves the right to perform “spot labor interviews” and examine 

Contractor payroll information. 
 

Pursuant to Chapter 2258 of the Texas Government Code: 
 

  1. A worker employed on a public work by or on behalf of the County shall be paid: 

(a)  not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in 

which the work is performed; and 

(b)  not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for legal holiday and overtime work.  NOTE:  This 

Paragraph Number 1 does not apply to maintenance work. 
 

  2. A worker is employed on a public work for the purposes of Paragraph Number 1 if the worker is employed by a 

contractor or subcontractor in the execution of a contract for the public work with the County or any officer or 

department of the County. 
 

  3. The contractor who is awarded a contract by the County or a subcontractor of the contractor shall pay not less 

than the rates (plus fringe benefits when applicable) as listed in the U.S. Department of Labor General Decisions 

referenced above to a worker employed by the contractor to work on the project. 
 

  4. A contractor or subcontractor who violates this section shall pay to the County $60.00 for each worker employed 

for each calendar day or part of the day that the worker is paid less than the wage rates set forth in the U.S. 

Department of Labor General Decisions referenced above.  The County shall use any money collected pursuant to 

this section to offset the cost incurred in the administration of the requirements of Chapter 2258. 
 

  5. The County will take notice of complaints of all violations of this chapter committed in the execution of the 

contract and withhold money forfeited or required to be withheld under Chapter 2258 from the payments to the 

contractor under the contract, except that the County may not withhold money from other than the final payment 

without a determination by the County that there is good cause to believe that the contractor has violated this 

chapter. 

  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

2 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

YOU CAN DIRECT ANY WAGE DISPUTES OR QUESTIONS TO: 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 
700 LAVACA STREET, SUITE 800 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 
512-854-9700 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 2258.023(a) of the Government Code, “The 
contractor who is awarded a contract by a public body or a 
subcontractor of the contractor shall pay not less than the 

rates determined under Section 2258.022 to a worker 
employed by it in the execution of the contract.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

3 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

TU PUEDES DISCUTIR O PREGUNTAR DE TU SALARIO DIRECTAMENTE CON: 
 

OFICINA DE COMPRAS DE TRAVIS COUNTY 
700 LAVACA STREET, SUITE 800 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 
512-854-9700 

 
 

De acuerdo con la seccion 2258.023(a) del Codigo del 
Gobierno, “El contratista al que le fue adjudicado un contrato 

por el Gobierno, o su subcontratista, debaran pagar a un 
trabajador contratado, no menos que las tarifas determinadas 

bajo la seccion 2258.022, para la ejecucion del contrato.” 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

4 

SECTION 00220 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE  
 

NOTICE TO ALL BIDDERS 
 

The Texas Workers' Compensation Commission (“TWCC”) has adopted Rule 110.110 effective with all bids 
advertised after September 1, 1994 and this does affect your bid on this project.   
 
The TWCC has stated that it is aware that statutory requirements for workers' compensation insurance 
coverage are not being met.  Rule 110.110 is designed to achieve compliance from both contractors and 
governmental entities.  This affects both the County and the Contractor on this project. 
 
Providing false or misleading certificates of coverage, failing to provide or maintain required coverage, or failing 
to report any change that materially affects the coverage may subject the Contractor(s) or other persons 
providing services on this project to legal penalties.  This affects your subcontractors. 
 
Therefore, the attached is provided in accordance with the requirements applicable to governmental entities.  
Please read carefully and prepare your bid in full compliance to TWCC Rule 110.110.  Failure to provide the 
required certificates upon submission of a bid could result in your bid being declared non-responsive. 
 
According to TWCC, "This rule does not create any duty or burden on anyone which the law does not 
establish."  Therefore, the County should not experience any increase in cost because of the need to comply 
with the Texas Workers' Compensation laws. 
 

 
Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
County Purchasing Agent 

 
 
Additional questions may be addressed to the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, 7551 Metro Center 
Drive, Austin, Texas 78744-1609, (512) 804-4000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

5 

TWCC RULE 110.110 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 
A. Definitions: 
 

1. “Certificate of Coverage” - A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-
insure issued by the TWCC, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, OR 
TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or 
entity's employees providing services on the project, and valid for the duration of the project. 

 
2. “Duration of the Project” - Includes the time from commencement of the Contractor’s work on 

the project until completion and acceptance of such work by the governmental entity. 
 

3. “Persons/employees providing services on the project” and/or “Subcontractor" (as used  in 
Section 406.096 of the Texas Labor Code) - Includes all persons or entities performing all or 
part of the services the Contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of 
whether that person contracted directly with the Contractor and regardless of whether that 
person has employees. 

 
This term includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing 
companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any 
entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project.  "Services" include, without 
limitation, providing, hauling or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor 
transportation, or other service related to the project.  "Services" does not include activities 
unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of 
portable toilets. 

 
B. The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification code and payroll 

amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of the Texas 
Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all employees of the Contractor providing services on the project, 
for the Duration of the Project. 

 
C. The Contractor must provide a Certificate of Coverage to the governmental entity prior to being 

awarded the contract. 
 
D. If the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current Certificate of Coverage ends during the 

Duration of the Project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new 
Certificate of Coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended. 

 
E. The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on the project, and provide to the 

governmental entity: 
 

1. A Certificate of Coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the 
governmental entity will have on file Certificates of Coverage showing coverage for all persons 
providing services on the project; and 

 
2. No later than seven (7) calendar days after receipt by the Contractor, a new Certificate of 

Coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current 
certificate ends during the Duration of the Project. 

 
F. The Contractor shall retain all required Certificates of Coverage for the Duration of the Project and for 

one (1) year thereafter. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

6 

G. The Contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, 
within ten (10) calendar days after the Contractor knew or should have known, of any change that 
materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project. 

H. The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the 
TWCC, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered, and 
stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage. 

 
I. The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a 

project, to: 
 

1. Provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and 
filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor 
Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all of its employees providing services on the project, for the 
Duration of the Project: 

 
2. Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project, a Certificate of 

Coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing 
services on the project, for the Duration of the Project: 

 
3. Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new Certificate of Coverage 

showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current Certificate of 
Coverage ends during the Duration of the Project: 

 
4. Obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor: 

 
4.1 A Certificate of Coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project;  

 
4.2 A new Certificate of Coverage showing an extension of coverage,  if the coverage period 

shown on the current certificate ends during the Duration of the Project; 
 

5. Retain all required Certificates of Coverage on file for the Duration of the Project and for  one (1) 
year thereafter; 

 
6. Notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten (10) 

calendar days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially 
affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and 

 
7. Contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as required by paragraphs 

I.1.- I-7., with the Certificates of Coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are 
providing services. 

 
J. By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a Certificate of Coverage, the Contractor 

is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the Contractor who will provide services 
on the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the Duration of the Project, that 
the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all 
coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier (or, in the case of self-insured 
persons or entities, with the TWCC’s Division of Self-Insurance Regulation).  Providing false or 
misleading information may subject the Contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil 
penalties, or other civil actions. 

 
 
K. The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the Contractor 

which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the Contractor does not remedy the 
breach with ten (10) calendar days after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental entity. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

7 

SECTION 00230 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
If required under Chapter 176 Texas Local Government Code, Contractor shall file a completed Conflict of 

Interest Questionnaire in accordance with the requirements of that Chapter. Within the applicable, authorized 

time period prescribed in Chapter 176, Contractor shall file the completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 

with the Travis County Clerk, Recording Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. Contractor shall 

file an updated, completed questionnaire with the Travis County Clerk not later than the seventh (7th) business 

day after the date of an event that would make a statement in the questionnaire incomplete or inaccurate. The 

Contractor should note that the law requires that the County provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the 

official Travis County Internet website. However, the law does not require that the County release information 

which is excepted from disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act. As between County and Contractor, 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for the preparation of its Conflict of Interest Questionnaire, the accuracy 

and completeness of the content contained therein and ensuring compliance with all applicable requirements of 

Chapter 176, Local Government Code. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

8 

SECTION 00240 – FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT 
 

Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of the Contract and County shall retain all performance by 
Contractor and recover all consideration or the value of all consideration paid to Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract if: 
 

Contractor was doing business at the time of executing the Contract or had done 
business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date on which Contractor 
executed the Contract with one or more Key Contracting Person listed in Exhibit A to 
Attachment 1 (Ethics Affidavit) if Contractor has not disclosed the name of the Key 
Contracting Person in the space provided in Exhibit A; 
 
-or- 

 
Contractor does business with any Key Contracting Person after the date on which 
Contractor executes the Contract and prior to full performance of the Contract and fails 
to disclose the name of that Key Contracting Person in writing to each member of the 
Commissioners Court, the Purchasing Agent, and to the County Clerk within ten (10) 
days after commencing business with that Key Contracting Person. 

 
  Definition of “was doing/does business”:  
 

 (i)  “Was doing business” and “does business” mean: 
 
 (ii)  paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing 

which is worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal 
services or for the purchase of any property or property interest, either real or 
personal, either legal or equitable; or, 

 
 (iii) loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or 

having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in 
the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 
  but does not include  

 
 (iv)   any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting 

Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the public, 
 

(v) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business; and  

 
(vi) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, 
employee or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in 
a position that he or she should have known about the Contract. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

9 

 ATTACHMENT 1- ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  
 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
Date:     
 
Name of Affiant:            
 
Title of Affiant:            
 
Business Name of Contractor:           
 
County of Contractor:            

 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 
 
1. Affiant is authorized by Contractor to make this Affidavit for Contractor.   
2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this Affidavit.  
3. Affiant can read the English language.  
4. Contractor has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Contract which is 

attached to this Affidavit as Exhibit "A".  
5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit "A" to this Affidavit.  
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit "A" with whom Contractor is doing 

business or has done business during the 365 calendar day period immediately before the date of this 
Affidavit whose name is not disclosed below. 

 
 

       
Signature of Affiant 

 
       
 
       
Address 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by   on                  , 20 .  
 
 
       
Notary Public, State of      

 
       
Typed or printed name of notary 

 
My commission  
expires:       

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

10 

Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is doing business or has done business during the 365 calendar day 
period immediately prior to the date on which this Contract is made/entered with the following Key Contracting 
Persons and warrants that these are the only such Key Contracting Persons: 

 
           
 
           
 
           
 
           
 
           
 
           
 
           
 
 
If no one is listed above, Contractor warrants that Contractor is not doing business and has not done business 
during the 365 calendar day period immediately prior to the date on which this Contract is made/entered with 
any Key Contracting Person. 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

11 

EXHIBIT A to Attachment 1 

LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 
September 13, 2013 

 

CURRENT 
      Name of Individual  Name of Business 

Position Held     Holding Office/Position   Individual is Associated       

 

  County Judge ...  ..............  .............  .............  ..............Samuel T. Biscoe 

  County Judge (Spouse) ...  .............  .............  ..............Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe ............. MHMR 

  Executive Assistant  ........  .............  .............  ..............Cheryl Brown 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Melissa Velasquez 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Josie Z. Zavala 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............David Salazar* 

  Commissioner, Precinct 1 .............  .............  ..............Ron Davis 

  Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) ............  ..............Annie Davis ........  .............  .............. Seton Hospital 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Deone Wilhite 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Felicitas Chavez 

  Commissioner, Precinct 2  ............  .............  ..............Bruce Todd* 

  Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) ............  ..............Elizabeth Christian ...........  .............. Consultant  

  Executive Assistant  ........  .............  .............  ..............Sara Krause* 

  Executive Assistant  ........  .............  .............  ..............Joe Hon 

  Executive Assistant  ........  .............  .............  ..............Peter Einhorn 

  Commissioner, Precinct 3 .............  .............  ..............Gerald Daugherty* 

  Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) ............  ..............Charyln Daugherty ...........  .............. Consultant 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Bob Moore* 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Martin Zamzow* 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Barbara Smith* 

  Commissioner, Precinct 4 .............  .............  ..............Margaret Gomez 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Edith Moreida 

  Executive Assistant .........  .............  .............  ..............Norma Guerra 

  County Treasurer ............  .............  .............  ..............Dolores Ortega-Carter  

  County Auditor   ..............  .............  .............  ..............Nicki Riley* 

  County Executive, Administrative  .............  ..............Vacant 

  County Executive, Budget & Planning .......  ..............Leslie Browder 

  County Executive, Emergency Services .....  ..............Danny Hobby 

  County Executive, Health/Human Services  ..............Sherri E. Fleming 

  County Executive, TNR  .  .............  .............  ..............Steven M. Manilla, P.E.* 

  County Executive, Criminal Justice Planning ............Roger Jefferies 

  Director, Facilities Management ...  .............  ..............Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E. 

  Interim Chief Information Officer  .............  ..............Tanya Acevedo 

  Director, Records Mgment & Communications ........Steven Broberg 

  Travis County Attorney  .  .............  .............  ..............David Escamilla 

  First Assistant County Attorney  ...  .............  ..............Steve Capelle 

  Executive Assistant, Civil Division ............  ..............James Collins 

  Director, Land Use Division .........  .............  ..............Tom Nuckols  

 Attorney, Land Use Division ........  .............  ..............Julie Joe 

  Attorney, Land Use Division ........  .............  ..............Christopher Gilmore  

 Director, Transactions Division  ...  .............  ..............John Hille 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Elizabeth Winn 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Daniel Bradford 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Mary Etta Gerhardt  

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Barbara Wilson 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Jim Connolly 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ...  .............  ..............Tenley Aldredge 

  Director, Health Services Division  .............  ..............Beth Devery 

  Attorney, Health Services Division  ...........  ..............Prema Gregerson 

  Purchasing Agent  ...........  .............  .............  ..............Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

  Assistant Purchasing Agent  .........  .............  ..............Marvin Brice, CPPB 

  Assistant Purchasing Agent ..........  .............  ..............Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

12 

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............C.W. Bruner, CTP 

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Lee Perry  

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Jason Walker 

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Richard Villareal 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Patrick Strittmatter 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Lori Clyde, CPPB, CPPO 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Scott Wilson, CPPB 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Loren Breland, CPPB  

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............John E. Pena, CTPM  

 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Rosalinda Garcia 

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....  .............  ..............Angel Gomez*  

  Purchasing Agent Assistant III .....  .............  ..............Shannon Pleasant, CTPM  

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............David Walch 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............Michael Long, CPPB 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............Sydney Cedar* 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............Ruena Victorino* 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......  .............  ..............L. Wade Laursen 

 Purchasing Agent Assistant II .......  .............  ..............Sam Francis 

  HUB Coordinator ............  .............  .............  ..............Sylvia Lopez 

 HUB Specialist .  ..............  .............  .............  ..............Betty Chapa 

 HUB Specialist .  ..............  .............  .............  ..............Jerome Guerrero 

  Purchasing Business Analyst ........  .............  ..............Scott Worthington  

  Purchasing Business Analyst ........  .............  ..............Jennifer Francis  

  Facilities Management ....  .............  .............  ..............Ken Gaede, AIA 

  Facilities Management ....  .............  .............  ..............Jim Barr, AIA, LEED AP 

  Facilities Management ....  .............  .............  ..............Richard Avery, AIA, LEED AP 

 

 

  

FORMER EMPLOYEES 
 

   Name of Individual 

Position Held    Holding Office/Position   Date of Expiration  

Purchasing Agent Assistant II .........  .............  ..............Jayne Rybak, CTP ............  ..............  ............. 12/14/13 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 .  .............  .............  ..............Karen Huber .......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 

Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Garry Brown ......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 

Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Julie Wheeler ......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 

Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Jacob Cottingham .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 

Commissioner, Precinct 2   .............  .............  ..............Sarah Eckhardt ...  .............  ..............  ............. 05/ 31/14 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III .......  .............  ..............Nancy Barchus, CPPB .....  ..............  ............. 06/28/14 

 

 

 *  - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

13 

SELECTION CRITERIA FOR PROPOSAL PHASE 
 

Those firms that were short-listed, based on the review of the RFQ submittals, have been sent this Request for 
Proposal.  The same firms will be invited to participate in interviews with the County’s Evaluation Committee.  
Following the receipt of proposals and subsequent interviews, the County will rank the RFP respondents based 
on who is determined to offer the best value to the County.  The final ranking of the short-listed firms that are 
providing proposals will be based on the following criteria: 
 

Interview:    40 points 
  
Proposal;    60 points 
 
Total score: 100 points 

 
 

SECTION 00300 
CMAR’s PROPOSAL 

 
(On CMAR Letterhead) 
 
Cyd Grimes 
Purchasing Agent 
Travis County Purchasing Office 
700 Lavaca, Suite 800 
Austin, Texas 78701  
 
November 6, 2013 
 
Dear Ms. Grimes, 
 
We propose to provide Construction Manager at Risk services for the New 416 West 11th Street Office Building 
and Parking Structure (the “Project”).  Our proposed General Conditions cost for the Project is 
$_______________________  (See attached Exhibit A). 
 
Our proposed percentage fee (Overhead and Profit) for the Project is _________%. 
 
Our proposed percentage for CMAR Contingency upon determining the GMP is __________% 
 
We acknowledge and agree that all Buy-Out savings will transfer into the CMAR Contingency. 
 
We also acknowledge and agree that all transfers out of CMAR Contingency must be approved by Owner. 
 
Lastly, we acknowledge and agree that any and all unused CMAR Contingency will be retained by Owner upon 
Final Completion. 
 
 
 
________________________________                                            _____________________ 
Name                                                                                                  Date 
 
________________________________ 

Title 
 

 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

14 

 

 CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
I CERTIFY that: 
 
I am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of  ______________________________, a duly organized and 
existing  
 
corporation of the State of           
       [Name of State] 
 
The following is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of such corporation in a 
meeting legally held on the                       day of                         , 20       , and entered in the minutes of such 
meeting in the minute book of the Corporation. 
 
RESOLVED, that this corporation enter and that ______________________________  [Insert Name of Person 
Executing Contract], the _____________________  [Position With Corporation] of this corporation, is 
authorized and directed to execute on behalf of and as the act of this corporation the Contract for the Travis 
County ______________________________  together with all associated documents.  The Secretary is 
directed to attach a copy of the Contract Documents to the minutes of this meeting and to make them a part of 
the corporate records. 
 
The above Resolution is in conformity with the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation has 
never been modified or repealed and is now in full force and effect. 
 
 

 
Date         
 
 

 
Secretary        
 
 

 
President        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

15 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That we, _____________________________ as Principal (the “Principal”), and the other undersigned as 
Surety, are held and firmly bound to Travis County, Texas in the penal sum of 
__________________________________ Dollars ($_TBD ), lawful money of the United States, well and truly to 
be paid to Travis County, Texas, and we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors, and administrators, 
jointly and severally, firmly by this document. 
 
Whereas, the above bound Principal has entered into a contract with Travis County, Texas, for the purpose of 
_______________________________, which is attached to this performance bond, and whereas, pursuant to 
TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., Ch. 2253 Principal is required before commencing the work provided for in that 
contract to execute a bond in the amount of that contract. 
 
The condition of this obligation is that if the above bound Principal, his or its heirs, successors, executors, and 
administrators shall well and faithfully do and perform each and every obligation required in the contract, in 
accordance with the Plans, Specifications, and Contract Documents, including warranties as provided for in the 
attached Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it is to remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Witness our hands this   day of   , 20  . 
 
 
              
Principal      Surety 
 
 
By:     By:        
 
Title:     Title:        
 
Attest:     Attest:        
 
*Note: If signed by an officer of the Surety Company, there must be on file a certified extract from the By-laws 
showing that this person has authority to sign such obligations.  If signed by an Attorney-in-Fact, we must have 
a copy of the Power of Attorney for our files. 
 
 
Surety Company Notice of Claim Information: 
 
 Name:            
 Mailing Address:          
            
 Physical Address:          
            
 Telephone Number:          
  
 Bond Number:          

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

16 

PAYMENT BOND 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That we, _____________________________ as Principal (the ”Principal”), and the other undersigned as 
Surety, are held and firmly bound to Travis County, Texas in the penal sum of 
__________________________________ Dollars ($ TBD ), lawful money of the United States, well and truly to 
be paid to Travis County, Texas, and we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors, and administrators, 
jointly and severally, firmly by this document. 
 
Whereas, the above bound Principal has entered into a Contract with Travis County, Texas,  for the purpose of 
___________________________________,  which is attached to this Payment Bond, and whereas, pursuant to 
TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., Ch. 2253 Principal is required before commencing the work provided for in that 
Contract to execute a Bond in the amount of that Contract solely for the protection of all claimants supplying 
labor and materials as defined by law, in the prosecution of the work provided for in that Contract, for the use of 
each such claimant. 
 
The condition of this obligation is that if the above bound Principal, his or its heirs, successors, executors, and 
administrators shall well and faithfully make payments to each and every claimant as defined by law, supplying 
labor and materials as defined by law, in the prosecution of the work provided for in the attached Contract, then 
this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it is to remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Witness our hands this   day of   , 20  . 
 
 
              
Principal      Surety 
 
 
By:     By:        
 
Title:     Title:        
 
Attest:     Attest:        
 
 
*Note: If signed by an officer of the Surety Company, there must be on file a certified extract from the By-laws 
showing that this person has authority to sign such obligation.  If signed by an Attorney-in-Fact, we must have a 
copy of the Power of Attorney for our files. 

 
Surety Company Notice of Claim Information: 
 
 Name:            
 Mailing Address:          
            
 Physical Address:          
            
 Telephone Number:          
  

 Bond Number:          

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

17 

  
SAFETY RECORD QUESTIONNAIRE 

(must be submitted with executed Contract) 

 

The Travis County Commissioners Court desires to avail itself of the benefits of Chapter 2269 of the Texas Government Code, 

and thereby consider the safety records of potential contractors prior to awarding bids on County contracts.  Pursuant to Chapter 

2269 of the Texas Government Code, Travis County has adopted the following written definition and criteria for accurately 

determining the safety record of a bidder prior to awarding bids on County contracts. 

 

The definition and criteria for determining the safety record of a bidder for this consideration shall be: 
 

If the bidder in response to the questions in this Questionnaire reveals more than two (2) cases in which final 

orders have been entered by the Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission (OSHRC) against the 

bidder for serious violations of OSHA regulations within the past three (3) years, County will, at its discretion, 

determine whether to disqualify the bidder. 
 

If the bidder in response to the questions in this Questionnaire reveals more than one (1) case in which bidder 

has received a citation from an environmental protection agency for violations within the past five (5) years, 

County will, at its discretion, determine whether to disqualify the bidder.  Environmental Protection Agencies 

include the U.S. Army Corps of Engineer (USACOE), the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), and its 

past associated agency: the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission (TNRCC), the Texas 

Department of Health, the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD), the Structural Pest Control Board 

(SPCB), agencies of local governments responsible for enforcing environmental protection laws or regulations, 

and similar regulatory agencies of other states of the United States.  Citations include notice of violation, notice 

of enforcement, suspension/revocations of state or federal licenses or registrations, fines assessed pending 

criminal complaints, indictments, or convictions, administrative orders, draft orders, final orders, judicial final 

judgments.  Notice of Violations and Notice of Enforcement received from TCEQ shall include those 

classified as major violations and moderate violations under TCEQ’s regulations for documentation of 

Compliance History, 30TAC, Chapter 60.2 (c) (1) and (2). 
 

If the bidder in response to the questions in this Questionnaire reveals that the bidder has been convicted of a 

criminal offense within the past ten (10) years which resulted in serious bodily harm or death, County will 

determine whether to disqualify the bidder. 

  

In order to obtain proper information from bidders so that Travis County may consider the safety records of potential 

contractors prior to awarding bids on County contracts, Travis County requires that bidders answer the following three (3) 

questions and submit them with their bids: 

 

QUESTION ONE 
 

Has the bidder, or the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by the bidder, or anyone acting for such firm, 

corporation, partnership or institution, received citations for violations of OSHA within the past three (3) years? 

 

YES   NO         

 

If the bidder has indicated YES for question number one above, the bidder must provide to Travis County, with its bid 

submission, the following information with respect to each such citation: 

 

Date of offense, location of establishment inspected, category of offense, final disposition of offense, if any, and penalty 

assessed. 

 

QUESTION TWO 
 

Has the bidder, or the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by the bidder, or anyone acting for such 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

18 

firm, corporation, partnership or institution, received citations for violations of environmental protection laws or 

regulations with the past five years? Citations include notice of violation, notice of enforcement, suspension/revocations 

of state or federal licenses, or registrations, fines assessed pending criminal complaints, indictments, or convictions, 

administrative orders, draft orders, final orders, judicial final judgments.  Notice of Violations and Notice of Enforcement 

received from TCEQ shall include those classified as major violations and moderate violations under TCEQ’s regulations 

for documentation of Compliance History, 30TAC, Chapter 60.2 (c) (1) and (2). 

 

YES   NO         

 

If the bidder has indicated YES for question number two above, the bidder must provide to Travis County, with its bid 

submission, the following information with respect to each such conviction: 

 

Date of offense, location where offense occurred, type of offense, final disposition of offense, if any, and penalty 

assessed. 

 

QUESTION THREE 
 

Has the bidder, or the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by bidder, or anyone acting for such firm, 

corporation, partnership, or institution, ever been convicted, within the past ten (10) years, of a criminal offense which 

resulted in serious bodily injury or death? 

 

YES   NO         

 

If the bidder has indicated YES for question number three above, the bidder must provide to Travis County, with its bid 

submission, the following information with respect to each such conviction: 

 

Date of offense, location where offense occurred, type of offense, final disposition of offense, in any, and penalty 

assessed. 

  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

 

I certify that I have made no willful misrepresentations in this Questionnaire nor have I withheld information in my 

statements and answers to questions.  I am aware that the information given by me in this questionnaire will be 

investigated, with my full permission, and that any misrepresentations or omissions may cause my bid to be rejected. 

 

      

Signature 

 

 

      

Title 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

19 

SECTION 00400 - HUB PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 
 

It is the policy of Travis County that HUBs will have the maximum opportunity to participate in the 
performance of County contracts and subcontracts.  The Travis County HUB Program goals for HUB 
contractor and subcontractor participation in the Construction category is an Overall 13.7% Minority-
Owned Business Enterprise (MBE) goal and an Overall 13.8% Women-Owned Business Enterprise 
(WBE) goal (Sub-goals:  1.7% African-American, 9.7% Hispanic, 2.3% Native/Asian-American). The 
program strongly encourages prime contractors to initiate a “Good Faith Effort” to provide 
subcontracting opportunities to Certified HUBs. 

To be considered as a “Certified HUB” the contractor must have officially been certified as a HUB, 
M/WBE, or a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) by either the State of Texas, the City of Austin, 
or the Texas Unified Certification Program, and hold a current certification at the time the subcontract is 
entered into.   

  A “Subcontractor,” for the purpose of this section, is defined as any contractor/vendor who provides 
supplies, materials and/or services to a second contractor/vendor if the supplies/materials/services are 
used in fulfillment of the second contractor’s/vendor’s contractual obligations with the County.  

The OWNER is interested in obtaining information on the CMAR’s philosophy and approach to the 
outreach and inclusion of local small businesses and execution of the Work.   

Include historical information on how the CMAR has been successful in this area on similarly scoped 
projects. 

Include discussion of strategies the CMAR has been successful in complying with minority and women 
owned/historically underutilized/small business programs, requirements and processes. 

For specific contract requirements see Agreement Section 21.22 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

20 

SECTION - 00500 
AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

CONTRACT NO.  13K01309RV 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
 

Travis County, Texas 
 

AND 
 

(CMAR), 
 

 
This Agreement is effective as of ____________, 2013 (the "Effective Date"), by and between Travis County, a political subdivision of 
the State of Texas ("Owner" or “County”) and (CMAR), Construction Manager at Risk (General Contractor ("CMAR"), collectively 
known as the “Parties,” for the: Construction of the New 416 West 11th Street Office Building and Parking Structure, Austin, 
Texas (the "Project").   
 
The parties acknowledge and agree that Page Southerland Page, LLP will serve as the Architect/Engineer (hereafter "A/E"). 
 
OWNER/County will be referred to as if singular in number and masculine in gender.  The term “OWNER” means the Travis County 
Commissioners Court, the Travis County Purchasing Agent, the Director of the Travis County Facilities Management Department (the 
“Director”), or authorized representative of the Director.  References to OWNER implies the Director, or his authorized representative, 
where applicable and appropriate.  CMAR agrees to take direction from the Director and maintain a positive and professional working 
relationship with the Director.  All communications to and from the CMAR on the Project shall be through the Director. 
 
OWNER intends to construct the Project at 416 W. 11th Street, Austin, Texas, within a construction cost limitation of 
Twenty-nine Million Three Hundred Thousand dollars ($29,300,000).  This sum is referred to as the Amount Available 
for the Construction Contract ("AACC"), which is further defined in paragraph 2.1.  
 
OWNER and CMAR agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
CMAR has overall responsibility for and shall provide Pre-Construction Phase and Construction Phase Services (the 
“Work”) and furnish all materials,  equipment, tools and labor as necessary or reasonably inferable to complete the Work, or  
any phase of the Work, in accordance with OWNER's requirements and the Contract Documents.  
 

ARTICLE 2 
DEFINITIONS 

 
The terms, words and phrases used in this Agreement have the meanings provided in the General Conditions for Travis 
County Building Construction Agreements and as follows. 

2.1 “Amount Available for the Construction Contract” or “AACC” means the maximum monetary amount 
budgeted by OWNER for all Construction Phase services, materials, labor and other work required of CMAR for 
completion of the Work in accordance with this Agreement. The AACC includes, without limitation, the General 
Conditions Costs, the Cost of the Work, the Construction Phase Fee and CMAR’s Contingency. The AACC may 
be adjusted by the parties for changes in the scope of the Project before or after acceptance of the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price Proposal. The AACC does not include OWNER’s Construction Contingency. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

21 

2.2 “Contract Documents” means this Agreement and the following documents: (i) all exhibits and attachments listed, contained 
or referenced in this Agreement, specifically including the CMAR’s Proposal, Terms and Conditions stated in Request for 
Proposal (“RFP”) #P110231RV and any Addenda or Amendments to the RFP, General Conditions for Travis County Building 
Agreements (the “General Conditions”) and OWNER’s General Requirements Specifications; (ii) the Drawings, Specifications, 
details and other documents developed by A/E or OWNER’s other consultants, if any, and accepted by OWNER which 
describe the Project; (iii) all Addenda issued prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement; (iv) the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Proposal when accepted by OWNER and executed by the Parties; (v) all Change Orders issued after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement; and (vi) the HUB Subcontracting plan submitted by CMAR. These Contract Documents form the entire and 
integrated contract between OWNER and CMAR and supersede all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written 
or oral. 

 
2.3 “Construction Phase Fee” means the percentage (%) amount set forth in the CMAR Proposal. 
 
2.4 “Construction Phase Services” means the coordination, implementation and execution of the Work required by this 

Agreement, which are further defined in Article 7. 

2.5 “Cost of the Work” means those costs described in Article 10.2. 

2.6 “Direct Construction Cost” has the meaning set forth in Article 10. 
 

2.7 “Estimated Construction Cost” or “ECC” means the amount calculated by CMAR for the total cost of all elements of the 
Work based on this Agreement available at the time(s) that the ECC is prepared. The ECC will be based on current market 
rates with as-proposed overhead and profit and will include and consider, without limitation, all alternates, allowances and 
contingencies, designed and specified by A/E and the cost of labor and materials necessary. The ECC will include all the cost 
elements included in the AACC, as defined above, and will represent CMAR’s best current estimate of the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price it will propose for the Project based on the information then available. The ECC will not include A/E’s Fees, or 
any other costs that are the direct responsibility of OWNER. 

2.8 “Guaranteed Maximum Price” or “GMP” means the amount proposed by CM/R and accepted by OWNER as the maximum 
cost to OWNER for construction of the Project in accordance with this Agreement. The GMP includes CMAR’s Construction 
Phase Fee, the General Conditions Cost, the Cost of the Work, and CMAR’s Contingency amount, as set forth in the GMP 
proposal. 

2.9 “General Conditions Cost” means costs incurred and minor work performed by CMAR without the need for competitive 
bids/proposals as allowed under Texas Government Code Chapter 2269. The maximum allowable General Conditions Cost 
payable to CMAR during the Construction Phase of the Project is set forth in Exhibit “A” and the allowable General Conditions 
items are further described and limited by Section 10.1 of this Agreement.   

2.10 “Monthly Salary Rate” means the amount agreed to by OWNER that can be used on Applications for Payment throughout 
the Construction Phase to account for the monthly salary and employer contributions costs (payroll burden) of CMAR’s 
salaried personnel assigned to the Project. A Monthly Salary Rate must be established for each salaried person and must be 
approved in writing by OWNER in advance of any Application for Payment for that person. The Monthly Salary Rate is for 
convenience only and any payments made for CMAR’s personnel are subject to audit to determine the actual cost of the 
wages and allowable employer contributions incurred by CMAR for services performed. 

 

2.11    “Pre-Construction Phase Services” means the participation, documentation and execution of CMAR’s Pre-Construction 
Phase deliverables as required by this Agreement and further defined in Article 5.  Due to the constraints of the Work Project 
Schedule, these Pre-Construction Phase Services are limited in nature and duration, and are established as a lump sum – 
paid on a percentage complete basis. 

 

2.12 “A/E” refers to the professional firm employed by OWNER as architect/engineer of record for the Project and its consultants. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

22 

2.13 “Project Team” means OWNER, CMAR, A/E and consultants, any separate contractors employed by OWNER, and others 
employed for the purpose of programming, design, and construction of the Project. The members of the Project Team will be 
designated in writing by OWNER and may be modified from time to time in writing by OWNER. 

 
2.14 "Subcontractor" means a person or entity who has an agreement with CMAR to perform any portion of the Work.  The term 

Subcontractor does not include A/E or any person or entity hired directly by OWNER. 

2.15 “Work” means the provision of all services, labor, materials, supplies, and equipment that are required of CMAR to complete 
the Project in strict accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. Work includes, but is not limited to, the Construction 
Phase Services, additional work required by Change Orders, and any other work reasonably inferable from this Agreement. 
The term “reasonably inferable” takes into consideration the understanding of the parties that some details necessary for 
completion of the Work may not be shown on the Drawings or included in the Specifications, but they are a requirement of 
the Work if they are a usual and customary component of the Work or otherwise necessary for complete installation and 
operation of the Work.  This standard of “reasonably inferable” is heightened due to the involvement of the CMAR in Pre-
Construction Phase Services; it is anticipated that the CMAR has superior knowledge by virtue of its participation in Pre-
Construction Phase Services. 

2.16 “Work Progress Schedule” or “WPS”  has the meaning given in Section 5.3.1. 

ARTICLE 3 
CMAR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
3.1 CMAR shall perform all services specifically allocated to it by the Contract Documents as well as those services reasonably 

inferable from the Construction Documents as necessary for completion of the Work and the Project. CMAR agrees to 
perform these services using its best efforts, skills, judgments and abilities. 

 

3.2 CMAR shall cooperate with A/E and endeavor to further the interests of OWNER and the Project. CMAR shall furnish Limited 
Pre-Construction Phase Services and Construction Phase Services and complete the Project in an expeditious and 
economical manner consistent with the interests of OWNER and in accordance with the Work Project Schedule. 

 3.3 CMAR shall designate a representative authorized to act on CMAR’s behalf with respect to the Project. 

3.4 CMAR shall establish procedures for communication and coordination among the Project Team, Subcontractors, separate 
contractors, and others with respect to all aspects of the construction of the Project, and implement such procedures. 

 

3.5 CMAR shall establish and maintain a numbering and tracking system for all Project records, including changes, requests for 
information, submittals, and supplementary instructions and shall provide updated records at each OWNER meeting and when 
requested. 

3.6 CMAR shall identify to OWNER the employees and other personnel that it will assign to the Project and provide the Monthly 
Salary Rate for each of them. CMAR shall also identify any consultants that will be performing services for the Project. After 
execution of this Agreement by OWNER, CMAR shall not remove or replace the persons or entities assigned to the Project 
except with OWNER’s written consent, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. CMAR shall not assign to the Project 
or contract with any person or entity to which OWNER has a reasonable objection. CMAR shall promptly update the list of 
persons and consultants if they change during the course of the Project.     

 
ARTICLE 4 

OWNER’s RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 OWNER has designated an Architect/Engineer for the Project. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

23 

4.2 OWNER will provide the AACC and general schedule for the Project. The AACC provided by OWNER will be established with 
due consideration for separate contingencies for changes in the Project during construction, and for other Project costs that 
are the responsibility of OWNER. The general schedule will set forth OWNER’s plan for milestone dates and completion of the 
Project. 

 
4.3 The Director, or his authorized representative, is authorized to act on OWNER’s behalf with respect to the Project, including 

final determination of fees and costs earned by CMAR and equitable back charges against CMAR. The Director shall examine 
the documents submitted by CMAR and shall render decisions on behalf of OWNER. The Director shall have all the 
responsibilities and authorities allocated to him/her in the General Conditions. 

4.4 OWNER, at its sole cost, will secure the services of environmental surveys or other special consultants to develop 
such additional information as may be necessary for the design or construction of the Project. 

4.5 OWNER shall arrange and pay for materials, structural, mechanical, chemical and 
other laboratory tests as required of the OWNER by the Construction Documents, except as provided in the General 
Conditions. 

 

4.6 OWNER shall furnish all legal, accounting, auditing and insurance counseling services for itself and its own 
purposes as may be necessary for the Project.  

4.7 OWNER shall furnish required information and services and shall render approvals and decisions as expeditiously 
as is consistent with reasonable skill and care and the orderly progress of CMAR’s services and of the Work. 

 

4.8 OWNER may designate one or more construction inspectors who shall be given access to the Work as requested 
or needed. The provision of inspection services by OWNER shall not reduce or lessen CMAR’s responsibility for 
the Project. CMAR is fully and solely responsible for constructing the Project in strict accordance with this Agreement. 

4.9 With respect to defective Work, OWNER shall have the rights set out in this Agreement as well as the rights and remedies 
set out in the General Conditions. 

4.10 OWNER shall provide the Contract Documents in digital copy format to CMAR for its use in, preparing a GMP 
proposal, obtaining bids/proposals for the work and constructing the Project. OWNER shall also make available to 
CMAR any supplemental Contract Documents such as addenda, equipment procurement packages, RFI responses 
and change order documentation. CMAR shall be responsible for preparing copies of these documents needed for 
its use and that of any of its consultants or subcontractors for performing revi ews, preparing cost estimates and a 
GMP proposal, obtaining bids/proposals for the work and constructing the Project as set forth in this Agreement. 
CMAR shall also be responsible for maintaining a register of document distribution, and distributing docume nts to 
its consultants, subcontractors, bidders, proposers and plan rooms.  

ARTICLE 5  
PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

CMAR shall perform the following Pre-Construction Phase Services: 

5.1 General Coordination 

5.1.1  CMAR’s Pre-construction Phase Services team shall attend weekly Project Team meetings with OWNER, OWNER 
representatives, and A/E at regularly scheduled intervals throughout the Pre-Construction Phase. Frequent Project 
Team meetings are anticipated prior to OWNER acceptance of the GMP. 

5.1.2 Review and understand the standards and requirements in OWNER’s Specifications and perform all services in 
accordance with those standards and requirements. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

24 

5.1.3 Visit the site and inspect the existing facilities, systems and conditions to ensure an accurate understanding of the 
existing conditions as required. 

 
5.1.4 Provide recommendations and information to the Project Team on: site usage, equipment and construction 

feasibility; selection and availability of materials and labor; time requirements for installation and construction; 
assignment of responsibilities for safety precautions and programs; temporary Project facilities; equipment, materials 
and services for common use of CMAR and OWNER’s separate contractors, if any; cost factors, including costs of 
alternative materials or designs, preliminary budgets, and possible cost savings; recognizing and tracking the 
resolution of conflicts in the proposed Drawings and Specifications; methods of delivery of materials, systems, and 
equipment; and any other matters necessary to accomplish the Project in accordance with the Work Progress 
Schedule (as described in detail below) and the AACC. 

5.1.5  Assist OWNER in selecting and directing the services of environmental surveys or other special consultants hired by 
OWNER to develop additional information for the construction of the Project. 

 

  

5.2 Constructability Program 

 
5.2.1 Implement and conduct a constructability program to identify and document Project cost and schedule savings 

opportunities. The constructability program shall follow accepted industry practices and be approved by OWNER. 
Whenever the term “value engineering” is used in conjunction with this Agreement or the Project, it has its commonly 
accepted meaning within the construction industry and does not imply the practice of professional engineering or 
architecture without a license. If any value engineering activities constitute the professional practice of engineering or 
architecture, then such activities shall be performed by an engineer or architect licensed in Texas.   

 
5.2.2 Provide and implement a system for tracking questions, resolutions, decisions, directions and other information 

matters that arise during the development of the Drawings and Specifications for the Project. The decision tracking 
system shall be in a format approved by OWNER and updated weekly during the Pre-Construction Phase.  

 

5.3 Scheduling 

 

5.3.1 Develop a Work Progress Schedule (“WPS”) for Project Team review and OWNER’s approval that coordinates and 
integrates activities on the Project, including CMAR’s services, A/E’s services, the work of other consultants and 
suppliers, and OWNER’s activities with the anticipated construction schedules for other contractors. The WPS must 
identify all major milestones through Project Final Completion. The WPS shall be created and maintained in 
accordance with OWNER’s Specifications using OWNER specified format and software. 

5.3.2 Update the WPS throughout the Pre-Construction and Construction Phases as described in the General Conditions, 
OWNER’s requirements and Specifications. 

5.3.3 The WPS shall include other detailed schedule activities as directed by OWNER including, but not limited to, 
OWNER managed work under separate contracts. 

5.3.4 The WPS will become an attachment to this Agreement and incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes 
through modification of this Agreement in accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions.  

5.4 Budget and Cost Consultation 

5.4.1 Prepare and update all procurement progress and construction cost estimates and distribute them to the Project 
Team. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

25 

5.4.3 Provide continuous cost consultation services throughout the duration of the Project, including identification and 
tracking of decisions that affect the scope or quality of the Project and providing ongoing updates of their cost and 
budget impact.  

5.4.4  Promptly identify all variances between estimated costs and actual costs during the Construction Phase, and promptly 
report such variances to the Project Team along with recommendations for action, but in any event no more than two 
(2) business days after acquiring such information. 

5.5 Coordination of Design and Construction Contract Documents 

5.5.1 Review all Drawings, Specifications, and other Construction Documents as they are developed by A/E during the 
construction documents design phases of the Project. 

5.5.2 Consult with OWNER and A/E on the selection of materials used on the Project.  Advise OWNER on site use, 
construction feasibility, availability of labor and materials, procurement time requirements, and construction 
coordination. 

5.5.3 Advise OWNER of any error, inconsistency or omission discovered in the Drawings, Specifications, and other 
Construction Documents. 

 
5.5.4 Advise OWNER on reasonable adjustments in the Project scope, quality or other options for keeping the Project cost 

within the AACC. 
 

5.5.5 Review the Construction Documents for compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Contract 
Documents, and OWNER requirements. 

5.6 Construction Planning and Subcontractor Buyout Strategy 
 

5.6.1 Identify equipment or material requiring extended delivery times and advise OWNER on expedited procurement of 
those items. Advise OWNER and A/E on the preparation of performance specifications and requests for technical 
proposals for the procurement and installation of systems and components and for the procurement of long lead 
items. If requested by OWNER, and subject to OWNER’s prior written approval, issue requests for technical 
proposals to qualified sources and receive proposals and assist in their evaluation. 

5.6.2  Make recommendations to the Project Team regarding organization of the Construction Documents to facilitate the 
bidding and awarding of construction subcontracts in a manner that promotes the interests of the Project and 
OWNER. These recommendations may include, but are not limited to multiple separate contracts. The 
recommendations shall take into consideration such factors as time of performance, type and scope of work, 
availability of labor and materials, overlapping trade jurisdictions, provisions for temporary facilities, comparisons of 
factory and on-site production costs, shipping costs, code restrictions, OWNER’s goals for HUB subcontractor 
participation, and other constraints.  

 
5.6.3  Review the Construction Documents with the Project Team to eliminate areas of  conflict and overlap in the work to 

be performed by the various Subcontractors or OWNER’s separate contractors. 

5.6.4 Develop a bid/proposal package strategy that addresses the entire scope of each phase and stage of the Project. In 
developing the bid/proposal package strategy, CMAR shall identify all bid/proposal packages on which CMAR 
intends to submit a self-performance bid/proposal. The bid/proposal package strategy shall be reviewed with 
OWNER on a regular basis and revised throughout the buyout of the Project so as to best promote the interests of 
the Project and OWNER. 

5.6.5 Assist OWNER, A/E, OWNER’s other consultants, and OWNER’s separate contractors in obtaining all applicable 
risk management, code, and regulatory agency reviews and approvals for the Project including, without limitation, the 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

26 

City of Austin, Travis County Risk Manager, Travis County Fire Marshal, the local fire department, and OWNER’s 
insurance provider. 

 
5.6.6 Recommend to OWNER and A/E any Quality Assurance tests to be performed, and assist OWNER in selecting 

testing laboratories and consultants, without assuming direct responsibility for the performance of such laboratories 
and consultants. 

 

5.6.7 Review the Construction Documents to ensure that they contain adequate provision for job site areas required for 
construction, all temporary facilities necessary for performance of the Work, and provisions for all of the job site 
facilities necessary to manage, inspect, and supervise construction of the Project. 

5.6.8 Provide an analysis of the types and quantities of labor required for the Project and review the appropriate categories 
of labor required for critical phases or stages. Make recommendations that minimize the adverse effects of labor 
shortages. 

5.6.9 CMAR will invite the local small business community to at least one networking event, the purpose of which is to 
enhance the good faith efforts towards HUB participation and expose the HUB contractor community to potential 
opportunities.  The CMAR will provide Project information and details as well as answer any questions or concerns 
voiced by the attendees.  A list of attendees will be provided to Travis County HUB staff. 

 

5.7 Obtaining Bids/Proposals for the Project 

5.7.1 In accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2269, publicly advertise and solicit at least three (3) 
competitive lump sum bids/proposals from trade contractors or subcontractors for the performance of all major 
elements of the Project other than the minor work that may be included in General Conditions. Criteria for determining 
the bid/proposal that provides the best value to OWNER shall be established by the Project Team and included in the 
request for bids/proposals. CMAR shall notify OWNER in advance in writing of the date it will receive the 
bids/proposals.  CMAR shall include the WPS in the solicitation to trade contractors or subcontractors. 

 

5.7.2  Schedule and conduct pre-bid conferences with interested bidders/proposers, Subcontractors, material suppliers, and 
equipment suppliers, and record minutes of the conferences. 

5.7.3 Together with OWNER, review all trade contractor or Subcontractor bids/proposals in a manner that does not disclose 
the contents of any bid/proposal to persons outside of the Project Team during the selection process. Based on the 
selection criteria included in the request for proposals, CMAR shall recommend to OWNER the bid/proposal that 
provides the best value for the Project. Upon OWNER’s written concurrence in the recommendation, CMAR may 
negotiate with the apparent best value bidder/proposer. 

 
5.7.4 All subcontracts must be on a lump sum basis unless other payment terms are approved in writing and in advance by 

OWNER, and shall contain or incorporate by reference the terms and conditions of the CMAR agreement as they 
may apply. Upon OWNER’s concurrence in the final terms of the subcontract, CMAR shall enter into a written 
subcontract for the subcontract work and provide a copy to OWNER. All bids/proposals shall be publicly available 
after award of the subcontract or within seven (7) days after the date of final selection, whichever is later. 

5.7.5  If CMAR reviews, evaluates, and recommends to OWNER a bid/proposal from a trade contractor or subcontractor, but 
OWNER requires another bid/proposal to be accepted, OWNER shall compensate CMAR by a change in price, time, 
or Guaranteed Maximum Price for any additional cost and risk CMAR incurs because of OWNER’s requirement that 
the other bid/proposal be accepted.  Such compensation shall fully discharge the OWNER’s duties to the CMAR 
regarding any substituted trade contractor or subcontractor. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

27 

5.7.6 CMAR may seek to self-perform portions of the Project identified for self-performance in the bid/proposal strategy. 
CMAR must submit a lump-sum bid/proposal for the self-performance work in the same manner as all other trade 
contractors or Subcontractors. However, CMAR bid/proposal must be sealed and submitted to OWNER not less than 
twenty four (24) hours before the submission date for all other trade contractors or Subcontractors. OWNER will, at its 
sole discretion, determine whether CMAR’s bid/proposal provides the best value for OWNER, and its determination 
shall be final. CMAR must perform approved self-performance work in accordance with the same terms and 
conditions as its other Subcontractors. For payment purposes, CMAR shall account for self-performance work in the 
same manner as it does all other subcontract costs. 

5.7.7 CMAR shall identify every Subcontractor it intends to use on the Project, including Subcontractors used for self-
performed work, to OWNER in writing and deliver to OWNER the HUB Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form 
at least ten (10) days before entering into any subcontract.CMAR shall not use any Subcontractor to which OWNER 
has a reasonable objection. CMAR shall not be required to subcontract with any Subcontractor to which it has 
reasonable objection.  Following OWNER’s acceptance of a Subcontractor, that Subcontractor shall not be changed 
without OWNER’s written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If OWNER has reasonable objection to 
any Subcontractor, CMAR shall submit a substitute to whom OWNER has no reasonable objection.  The GMP shall 
be increased or decreased by the properly documented difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an 
appropriate amendment shall be issued.  However, no increase in the GMP shall be allowed for such substitution if 
CMAR has not acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required by the Contract Documents. CMAR 
shall request approval from OWNER for any substitution for any Subcontractor, person, or entity previously selected 
and shall not commence with substitution unless OWNER does not make a timely and reasonable objection to such 
substitution. 

5.7.8 If a selected trade contractor or Subcontractor fails to execute a subcontract after being selected in accordance with 
this section or defaults in the performance of its work, CMAR may, in consultation with OWNER and without further 
advertising, fulfill the subcontract requirements itself or select a replacement trade contractor or subcontractor to do 
so. 

 
5.8 Safety 
 

5.8.1 In accordance with the General Conditions, CMAR is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the Project. The safety program shall comply with all applicable 
requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 and all other applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations without limitation. 

5.8.2 CMAR shall provide recommendations and information to OWNER and A/E regarding the assignment of 
responsibilities for safety precautions and programs, temporary Project facilities, and equipment, materials, and 
services for common use of the Subcontractors.  CMAR shall verify that appropriate safety provisions are included in 
the Construction Documents. 

ARTICLE 6 
GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE PROPOSAL 

 
6.1 When the parties agree that the design of the Project is sufficiently developed and 

documented to allow detailed pricing of its construction, CMAR shall prepare and submit a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Proposal to OWNER. The GMP Proposal must be prepared in accordance with the guidelines and delivered in the format 
specified by OWNER.  OWNER, at its sole option and discretion, may specify different requirements for the GMP Proposal. 
CMAR shall not withdraw its Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal for ninety (90) days following submission to OWNER. 

6.2 In developing the GMP Proposal, CMAR shall coordinate efforts with OWNER and A/E to identify qualifications, clarifications, 
assumptions, exclusions, value engineering and any other factors relevant to establishment of a GMP. CMAR shall review 
development of the GMP Proposal with OWNER on an ongoing basis to address clarifications of scope and pricing, 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

28 

administration and distribution of contingencies, schedule, assumptions, exclusions, and other matters relevant to the 
establishment of a GMP. 

 

6.3 The GMP Proposal must include a written description of how it was derived that specifically identifies the clarifications and 
assumptions made by CMAR in the GMP and the monetary amounts attributable to them. The GMP Proposal must include, 
without limitation, a breakdown of CMAR’s General Conditions Costs and Construction Costs organized by trade and CSI 
Division; contingency amounts; the Construction Phase Fee; and the proposed Contract Time, including dates for Notice to 
Proceed, Substantial Completion and Final Completion. 

 

6.4 The Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal must allow for reasonably expected changes and refinements in the Drawings and 
Specifications through completion of the Construction Documents, except for material changes in scope. 

 

6.5 The GMP Proposal may include CMAR’s Contingency amount that is reflective of the risk inherent in the state of completion 
of the Construction Documents at the time the GMP Proposal is submitted. 

 

6.6 Included with its GMP Proposal, CMAR shall provide three complete, bound sets of the drawings, specifications, plans, 
sketches, instructions, requirements, materials, equipment specifications and other information or documents that fully describe 
the Project as developed at the time of the GMP Proposal and that are relevant to the establishment of the GMP. The bound 
supporting documents shall be referenced in and incorporated into the GMP Proposal. 

 

6.7 The GMP Proposal and all supporting documents must identify and completely describe all items, assumptions, costs, 
contingencies, schedules and other matters necessary and relevant for proper execution and completion of the Work and for 
establishment of the GMP. The GMP Proposal and the supporting documents are complementary and, in the event of an 
irreconcilable conflict between or among them, the interpretation that provides for the higher quality or quantity of material 
and/or workmanship shall prevail over all other interpretations. 

6.8 In submitting the GMP Proposal, CMAR represents that it will provide every item, system or element of performance that is 
identified, shown or specified in the GMP Proposal or the supporting documents, along with all necessary or ancillary 
materials and equipment for their complete operating installation, unless specifically excepted by OWNER. Upon OWNER’s 
written acceptance of the GMP Proposal, CMAR shall not be entitled to any increase in the GMP due to the continued 
refinement of the Construction Documents or the absence or addition of any detail or specification that may be required in 
order to complete the construction of the Project as described in and reasonably inferable from the GMP Proposal or the 
supporting documents used to establish the GMP. 

6.9 The GMP Proposal will become an attachment to this Agreement and  incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes 
through modification of this Agreement in accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. Any proposed deviation from 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement must be clearly and conspicuously identified to OWNER in writing and specifically 
accepted in writing by OWNER. In the event of a conflict between any term of the GMP Proposal that was not clearly and 
conspicuously identified and approved by OWNER and the terms of this Agreement and its attachments, the terms of this 
Agreement and its attachments will control. 

 
6.10 OWNER may accept or reject the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal or attempt to negotiate its terms with CMAR. Upon 

acceptance by OWNER of the GMP Proposal in writing, both parties shall execute the GMP Proposal which shall become part 
of this Agreement. If OWNER rejects the GMP Proposal or the parties are unable or unwilling to agree on a GMP, OWNER 
may terminate this Agreement. 

6.11 CMAR shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the GMP if it is required to pay or bear the burden of any new federal, 
state, or local tax, or any rate increase of an existing tax, except taxes on income, adopted through statute, court decision, 
written ruling, or regulation taking effect after acceptance of the GMP Proposal.  This equitable adjustment does not apply to 
tax increases borne solely by Subcontractors. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

29 

6.12 CMAR shall document the actual Cost of the Project at buyout as compared to the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal and 
shall report this information to OWNER monthly and with CMAR’s recommendation for selection of a bid/proposal for each 
subcontracting package.  

 

ARTICLE 7 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 
The Construction Phase will be deemed to commence upon the date specified in a written Notice to Proceed issued by OWNER after 
approval of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal and will continue until Final Completion of all Work. Pre-Construction Phase 
Services may overlap Construction Phase Services. CMAR shall not incur any Subcontractor costs for construction of the Project prior 
to issuance by OWNER of written authorization to commence such Work. CMAR shall perform the following Construction Phase 
Services: 

7.1 Construct the Work in strict accordance with this Agreement and as required by the General Conditions, Supplementary 
Conditions, Special Conditions and OWNER’s Specifications within the time required by the Work Progress Schedule 
approved by OWNER. 

7.2 Organize and maintain a competent, full-time staff at the Project site with clearly defined lines of authority and communication 
as necessary to coordinate construction activities, monitor and direct progress of the Work, and further the goals of the Project 
Team. 

7.3 Designate in writing a representative who is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Construction Phase Services. 
The designated representative shall be OWNER’s primary contact during the Construction Phase and shall be available as 
required for the benefit of the Project and OWNER. The designated representative shall be authorized to act on behalf of and 
bind CMAR in all matters related to Construction Phase Services including, but not limited to, execution of Change Orders and 
Applications for Payment. 

7.4 Attend regularly scheduled Project progress meetings and fully advise the Project Team of the Project status including 
schedule, costs, quality and changes. 

7.5 In addition to attending regularly scheduled Project progress meetings, CMAR shall schedule, direct and attend interim 
progress meetings (i.e., commissioning meetings, coordination meetings, pre-installation meetings) with other members of the 
Project Team as required to maintain Project progress. CMAR shall record and distribute the minutes of each meeting, both 
regular progress meetings as well as interim progress meetings, to each Project Team member. The minutes must identify 
critical activities that require action and the dates by which each activity must be completed. 

7.6 Coordinate delivery and installation of OWNER-procured material and equipment. 

 
7.7 In accordance with OWNER’s General Conditions, provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction 

equipment and machinery, transportation, and all other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and 
completion of the Work in strict accordance with the requirements of the Construction Documents. 

7.8 Assist OWNER or A/E in obtaining all approvals required from authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

7.9 Coordinate, monitor and inspect the work of Subcontractors to ensure conformance with the Construction Documents. 

7.10 Be responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures, and for coordinating all portions 
of the Work. CMAR shall keep OWNER informed of the progress and quality of the Work. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

30 

7.11 CMAR shall promptly correct any defective Work at CMAR’s sole expense, in compliance with the General Conditions, unless 
OWNER specifically agrees to accept the Work in writing. 

 
7.12 Warrant that the materials and equipment provided for the Project will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or 

permitted by the Construction Documents; that the construction will be free from faults and defects; and that the construction 
will conform with the requirements of the Construction Documents. CMAR shall be responsible for correcting all items that do 
not comply with the Construction Documents at its sole expense without cost to OWNER.  

 

7.13 In accordance with the General Conditions provisions regarding record documents and OWNER’s Project Closeout 
Procedures, CMAR shall maintain and deliver the required documents that describe changes or deviations from the 
Construction Documents that occurred during construction and that reflect the actual “record drawings” of the completed 
Work. 

ARTICLE 8 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE FEE 

 
CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee is the maximum amount payable to CMAR for overhead and profit incurred in the performance of the 

Work that is not specifically identified as being eligible for reimbursement by OWNER elsewhere in this Agreement. References in the 

General Conditions to CMAR’s “overhead” and “profit” mean CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee.  The Construction Phase Fee 

includes, but is not limited to, the following items: 

 
8.1 All profit, profit expectations and costs associated with profit-sharing plans such as personnel bonuses, incentives, and 

rewards; company stock options; or any other like expenses of CMAR. 

8.2 Salaries of CMAR’s officers, project manager(s), estimators, schedulers and all other employees not stationed at the Project 
site and performing services directly related to the Project. 

 
8.3 Any and all overhead, labor or general expenses of any kind unless specifically allowed under the General Conditions. These 

costs include, but are not limited to: costs for the purchase, lease, rental of or allowance for vehicles and their maintenance, 
radios/communication equipment, jobsite computers and other business equipment, and specialized telephone systems, 
including cellular/digital phones; trade or professional association dues; cost for relocation of any of CMAR’s personnel; and 
travel, per diem and subsistence expense of CMAR, its officers or employees except as specifically allowed under the General 
Conditions or specifically delineated elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

8.4 Any financial costs incurred by CMAR, including the cost of capital or interest on capital, regardless of whether it is related to 
the Project, and costs associated with construction warranty reserves. 

8.5 Any legal, accounting, professional or other similar costs incurred by CMAR, including costs incurred in connection with the 
prosecution or defense any dispute, mediation, arbitration, litigation or other such proceeding related to or arising from the 
Project. 

8.6 Any Federal and/or State income and franchise taxes paid by CMAR. Any fines, penalties, sanctions or other levies assessed 
by any governmental body against CMAR. 

 

8.7 Any cost arising out of a breach of this Agreement or the fault, failure or negligence of CMAR, its Subcontractors, or any 
person or entity for whom they may be liable. These costs include, without limitation: costs to remedy defective, rejected, or 
nonconforming Work, materials or equipment; costs due to failure to coordinate the Work or meet WPS milestones; costs 
arising from CMAR’s contractual indemnification obligations; liquidated or actual damages imposed by OWNER for failure to 
complete the Work within the Contract Time; costs due to the bankruptcy or insolvency of any Subcontractor; and damage or 
losses to persons or property. 

8.8 The cost of any and all insurance deductibles payable by CMAR and costs due to the failure of CMAR or any Subcontractor to 
procure and maintain insurance as and to the extent required by this Agreement. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

31 

 
8.9 Any and all costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded. 
 
8.10 Any and all costs not specifically identified as an element of the Direct Construction Cost. 
 
 

ARTICLE 9 
PAYMENTS 

 
CMAR shall comply with all requirements and procedures set forth in Article 9 (“Payments and Completion”) of the General Conditions. 
 
9.1 General Requirements 
 

9.1.1 Each Schedule of Values submitted with an Application for Payment shall include the originally established value for 
each Work classification line item or subcontract and shall identify any revisions to the costs or cost estimates for 
each work classification or subcontract. The format and tracking method of the original Schedule of Values and of all 
updates shall be subject to approval by OWNER.  At all times, the estimated cost of performing the uncompleted and 
unpaid portion of the Work, including CMAR’s overhead and profit, shall not exceed the unpaid balance of the GMP 
less the retainage held by OWNER on Work previously completed. 

 

9.1.2  Retainage, as specified in the General Conditions, will be withheld from the entire amount approved in an Application 
for Payment, including the Cost of the Work, General Conditions, and CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee.  

 
9.1.3 OWNER is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and materials and services utilized in the construction of the 

Project may be exempted from state and local taxes. CMAR is responsible for taking full advantage of all tax 
exemptions applicable to the Project. OWNER will deduct from the Applications for Payment  and from the 
Request for Final Payment any taxes paid for materials or services that were entitled to tax exemption, as specified in 
the GMP Proposal.  

9.1.4 This Agreement is subject to the assessment of liquidated damages against CMAR.  Amounts assessed as 
liquidated damages, and other amounts  to which OWNER is entitled by way of setoff or recovery, may be deducted 
from any moneys due CMAR. 

9.1.5  OWNER shall have the right to withhold from payments due CMAR such sums as are necessary to protect OWNER 
against any loss or damage which may result from negligence by CMAR or any Subcontractor or failure of CMAR or 
any Subcontractor to perform their obligations under this Agreement. 

9.1.6 Notwithstanding any other contractual provision to the contrary, OWNER shall not be obligated to make any payment 
to CMAR for any reason enumerated in Article 9 of the General Conditions and under any of the following 
circumstances: 

 
9.1.6.1 CMAR fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or is otherwise in material 

breach or default under this Agreement; 

9.1.6.2 The payment request includes services that are not performed in accordance with the Construction 
Documents; provided, however, OWNER shall pay for those services performed in accordance with the 
Construction Documents; 

 
9.1.6.3 The payment request has insufficient documentation to support the amount of payment requested for 

Project costs; provided, however, OWNER shall pay for allowable Project costs for which there is sufficient 
documentation; 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

32 

9.1.6.4 CMAR is in violation of the Prevailing Wage requirements or has failed to make payments promptly to 
Subcontractors or other third parties used in connection with any services or materials for which OWNER 
has made payment to CMAR; 

 

9.1.6.5  If OWNER, in its good faith judgment, determines that the unpaid balance of the GMP is not sufficient to 
complete the Work in accordance with the Construction Documents; 

9.1.6.6 CMAR has failed to complete the Work in accordance with the Work Progress Schedule requirements or if 
OWNER, in its good faith judgment, determines that the remaining Work will not be completed within the 
agreed timeframe; 

9.1.6.7 CMAR is insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors or otherwise seeks protection 
under the laws and regulations of the bankruptcy courts; or 

9.1.6.8   CMAR fails to obtain, maintain or renew insurance coverage as required by this Agreement. 

9.1.6.9 No partial payment made by OWNER will constitute, or be construed to constitute, final acceptance or 
approval of the work to which the partial payment relates or of the documentation provided in support of the 
partial payment. No partial payment made by OWNER will constitute, or be construed to constitute, a 
release of CMAR from any of its obligations or liabilities with respect to the Project. 

9.1.6.10 OWNER shall have the right to verify and audit the details of CMAR’s billings, certificates, accountings, cost 
data, and statements, either before or after payment, by (1) inspecting the books and records of CMAR 
during normal business hours; (2) examining any reports with respect to the Project; (3) interviewing 
CMAR’s employees; (4) visiting the Project site; and (5) any other reasonable action. CMAR’s records must 
be kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles. 

9.2 Construction Phase Payments 

9.2.1 Payments for Construction Phase Services will be made as provided for in the General Conditions and OWNER’s 
General Requirements Specifications. All payment requests must be submitted on an Application for Payment with a 
Schedule of Values approved by OWNER and include all required attachments identifying payments to Historically 
Underutilized Businesses and to all Subcontractors. Payment for approved Change Orders will be made as part of 
CMAR’s Application for Payment. Failure to comply with OWNER’s monthly HUB reporting requirements described 
in Article 21 may cause rejection of the application by OWNER and its return to CMAR. 

9.2.1.1 CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee must be shown as a separate line item on the Schedule of Values. 
Payment of CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee will be made with each Application for Payment in the same 
proportion as the percentage completion of the Cost of the Work of the Project. 

9.2.1.2 For General Conditions Costs, CMAR’s Application for Payment must include complete copies of all 
receipts, invoices with check vouchers or other evidence of payment, payrolls, and any and all other 
evidence which OWNER or its designated representatives shall deem necessary to support the amount 
requested. This information is subject to audit and payment for these costs is dependent on OWNER’s 
receipt of accurate and complete records of all transactions. OWNER may reduce the amount requested for 
General Conditions Costs in any Application for Payment if OWNER, in its good faith judgment, determines 
that the unpaid balance of the General Conditions line item in the Schedule of Values is not sufficient to fund 
necessary General Conditions Costs for the remainder of the Project. 

9.2.1.3 Pay requests for Subcontractor work included in an Application for Payment must not exceed the 
percentage of Work allocated to that Subcontractor for each respective Schedule of Values work 
classification which has been actually completed and must not exceed the total value of the subcontract 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

33 

amount. Payment to Subcontractors must comply with the requirements of Article 9 of the General 
Conditions. 

9.2.1.4 Final Payment will be made in accordance with the provisions of Article 9 of the General Conditions.  

9.2.1.5 OWNER shall have no obligation to make Final Payment until a complete and final accounting of all the 
allowable costs has been submitted by CMAR and has been audited and verified by OWNER or OWNER’s 
representatives. 

9.2.1.6 Nothing contained herein will require OWNER to pay CMAR an aggregate amount for Construction Phase 
Services that  exceeds the Guaranteed Maximum Price or to make any payment if, in OWNER’s belief, the 
cost to complete the Work would exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price less previous payments to CMAR. 
The total amount of all Construction Phase payments to CMAR must not exceed the actual verified Direct 
Construction Cost for the Project plus CMAR’s Construction Phase Fee. 

   

9.2.1.7 The acceptance by CMAR or CMAR’s successors of Final Payment under this Agreement, will constitute a 
full and complete release of OWNER from any and all claims, demands, and causes of action whatsoever 
that CMAR, its Subcontractors, suppliers and consultants or any of their successors or assigns have or may 
have against OWNER arising from the Project or any provision(s) of this Agreement except for those 
previously made in writing and identified by CMAR as unsettled at the time of the Request for Final 
Payment. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

DIRECT CONSTRUCTION COST 
 
 
Direct Construction Cost means the sum of the amounts that CMAR actually and necessarily incurs constructing the Project in strict 
compliance with the Construction Documents. Direct Construction Cost includes only the cost categories set forth in this Article and 
does not include the Construction Phase Fees unless specifically noted. References in the General Conditions to adjustments in “cost” 
or “costs” mean the Direct Construction Cost. 

 

General Conditions Costs 

10.1 CMAR is entitled to receive payment for the actual cost of the allowable General Conditions items incurred after receipt of a 
Notice to Proceed with Construction from OWNER through Substantial Completion of the Project, plus 30 calendar days. 
CMAR is not entitled to reimbursement for General Conditions Costs incurred before receipt of the Notice to Proceed. General 
Conditions Costs incurred after Substantial Completion, plus 30 calendar days, must be approved in advance by OWNER. 

Allowable General Conditions items are identified below and by the attached Exhibit A.  These items must be included in the 
General Conditions cost amount shown as a line item in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal and as detailed on the 
Schedule of Values. Items not specifically included below or in Exhibit A will not be allowed as General Condition Costs. 

10.1.1  Personnel Costs. The actual Worker Wage Rate for CMAR’s hourly employees and the Monthly Salary Rate of 
CMAR’s salaried personnel who are identified to OWNER in advance and in writing but only for the time actually 
stationed at the Project site with OWNER’s prior consent. The Project Manager’s Monthly Salary Rate may be 
included in the General Conditions Costs only when the Project Manager is directly located on and managing the 
Project. All personnel costs are subject to audit to determine the actual cost of the wages, salaries and allowable 
employer contributions incurred by the CMAR for services performed for the Project. 

 
10.1.2  Costs of long-distance telephone calls, telegrams, postage, package delivery and courier service, cell phone 

service, hardwired telephone service, and reasonable expenses of CMAR’s jobsite office if incurred at the Project 
site and directly and solely in support of the Work. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

34 

10.1.3  Costs of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, equipment, and hand tools (except those customarily owned by 
construction workers), supplied to the Project site by CMAR, if such items are fully consumed in the construction of 
the Work and are included in the list of allowable General Condition Line Items. Cost for used items shall be based 
on fair market value and may include transportation, installation, and minor maintenance costs, and removal costs. If 
an item is not fully consumed in the construction of the Work, its cost will be based on actual cost of the item less its 
fair market salvage value. 

10.1.4  Rental charges for temporary facilities, equipment, and hand tools (except those customarily owned by construction 
workers), supplied to the Project site by CMAR, provided they are included in the list of allowable General Condition 
Line Items and OWNER has approved the rentals and the rental rates in advance and in writing. Rental rates may 
include transportation, installation, and minor maintenance costs, and removal costs. For tools, machinery or 
construction equipment rented directly from CMAR, the rental rate, including freight and delivery costs and all 
operating expenses except labor, shall be approved in advance by OWNER and shall be in accordance with the 
“Rental Rate Blue Book for Construction Mobilization Costs” published by Primedia, latest edition, but no higher than 
the prevailing competitive rates for rental of similar equipment in the Project vicinity. 

10.1.5  The aggregate rental cost of any item charged to OWNER must not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the purchase 
price and maintenance cost of the item. If the anticipated aggregate rental cost for an item of equipment exceeds 
eighty percent (80%) of the purchase and maintenance price, CMAR shall purchase the equipment and turn it over 
to OWNER upon Final Completion of the Work or, at OWNER’s option, credit OWNER with the fair market resale 
value of the item. 

 
10.1.6  Permit and inspection fees that are not subject to exemption. 
 

10.1.7  Premiums for insurance and bonds to the extent directly attributable to this Project. 

10.1.8  Governmental sales and use taxes directly attributable to the General Conditions Items that are not subject to 
exemption. Taxes paid on materials or services that were entitled to tax exemption will not be reimbursed by 
OWNER as Direct Construction Costs. 

 
10.2 Cost of the Work 
 
CMAR is entitled to receive payment for the actual cost of the allowable Cost of the Work items incurred after receipt of OWNER’s 
written authorization to commence the Construction Phase Work through Final Completion of the Project. CMAR is not entitled to 
reimbursement for Cost of the Work costs incurred before receipt of OWNER’s written authorization. Cost of the Work includes the 
following: 

10.2.1  Costs of materials and equipment purchased directly by CMAR and incorporated into or consumed in the 
performance of the Work, including transportation charges, and a reasonable and customary allowance for waste 
and spoilage. Payment for stored materials is subject to the General Conditions and OWNER’s General 
Requirements Specifications. 

10.2.2  Costs of site debris removal and disposal in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations if not otherwise 
specifically provided for under the General Conditions Costs. 

10.2.3  Payments made to Subcontractors and their vendors or suppliers by CMAR for the subcontract work in accordance 
with the Construction Documents and the requirements of the subcontracts with the Subcontractors, vendors or 
suppliers. 

10.2.4 Payments earned by CMAR for self-performed subcontract work, other than General Conditions work, in accordance 
with the Construction Documents and the terms of this Agreement and approved by OWNER. 

10.2.5 Testing fees borne by CMAR pursuant to the General Conditions. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

35 

10.2.6 Intellectual property royalties and licenses for items specifically required by the Construction Documents which are, 
or will be, incorporated into the Work. 

10.3 CMAR'S Contingency 

10.3.1  The Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal may include CMAR’s Contingency amount to be used to fund increases in 
the Direct Construction Cost of the Project identified through the refinement, development and completion of the 
Construction Documents or procurement of the Work. 

10.3.2  Any re-allocation of funds from CMAR’s Contingency to cover increases in the Direct Construction Cost must be 
approved by OWNER in advance and in writing, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. In written requests 
to use CMAR’s Contingency, CMAR shall provide detailed documentation of the scope of work affected and the 
bases for any increases in costs. 

 

10.3.3  CMAR’s Contingency is specifically not to be used for CMAR rework, unforeseen conditions, cost increases caused 

by lack of coordination or communication with A/E or trade Subcontractors, or to correct errors or omissions in the 

Construction Documents. 

 

10.3.4  As the buyout of the Work progresses, CMAR’s Contingency amount will be reduced by mutual agreement of 
OWNER and CMAR. Any balance in CMAR’s Contingency fund remaining at the end of the buyout will be returned 
to OWNER as savings. 

 

ARTICLE 11 
CONTRACT SAVINGS, ALLOWANCES, REBATES & REFUNDS 

11.1 If the allowable, final, verified, audited amount of the General Conditions Costs, Cost of the Work, and CMAR’s Contingency 
is less than the amount established for each of those categories in the originally approved Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Proposal, the entire difference shall be credited to OWNER as savings, and the final GMP shall be adjusted accordingly. 
When buyout of the Project is at least 90% complete, OWNER may recognize any savings achieved to that point by issuing a 
deductive change order for the saved amount. 

11.2 OWNER will be entitled to deduct amounts for the following items from any Application for Payment or from the Request for 
Final Payment submitted by CMAR: 

11.2.1 The fair market value of all tools, surplus materials, construction equipment, and temporary structures that were 
charged to the Work (other than rental items) but were not consumed during construction or retained by OWNER. 
Upon completion of the Work or when no longer required, CMAR shall either credit OWNER for the fair market value 
(as approved by OWNER) for all surplus tools, construction equipment and materials retained by CMAR or, at 
OWNER’s option, use commercially reasonable efforts to sell the surplus tools, construction equipment and materials 
for the highest available price and credit the proceeds to OWNER’s account. 

11.2.2 Discounts earned by CMAR through advance or prompt payments funded by OWNER. CMAR shall obtain all 
possible trade and time discounts on bills for material furnished, and shall pay bills within the highest discount 
periods. CMAR shall purchase materials for the Project in quantities that provide the most advantageous prices to 
OWNER. 

11.2.3 Rebates, discounts, or commissions obtained by CMAR from material suppliers or Subcontractors, together with all 
other refunds, returns, or credits received for materials, bond premiums, insurance and sales taxes. 

11.2.4 Deposits made by OWNER and forfeited due to the fault of CMAR. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

36 

11.2.5 Balances remaining on any Allowances, CMAR’s Contingency, or any other identified contract savings. OWNER 
shall be entitled to recover any net savings realized between the GMP and the buyout price for subcontracting work 
once the buyout is complete. During the buyout CMAR may use savings from one procurement effort to offset 
overages in other procurement efforts, so long as the total Cost of Work proposed in the GMP does not increase. 

 
11.3 OWNER shall be entitled to recognize and recover 100% of any savings identified by cost review or audit at any time, before 

or after Final Payment. 

ARTICLE 12 
OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS 

12.1 Drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by A/E, its consultants, or other consultants retained by OWNER for 
the Project that describe the Work to be executed by CMAR are and will remain the property of the OWNER whether the 
Project for which they are made is constructed or not.  CMAR shall be permitted to retain one record set of the Construction 
Documents.  CMAR and its Subcontractors are authorized to reproduce and use portions of the Construction Documents as 
necessary and appropriate for the execution of the Work. CMAR and its Subcontractors shall not use the Construction 
Documents on any other projects. 

12.2  Submission or distribution of the Construction Documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in 
connection with the Project will not diminish OWNER’s or other author’s rights. 

 
12.3 The CMAR will be furnished electronic copies of the Drawings and Specifications.  Complete or partial sets of the Drawings 

and Specifications may be purchased at reproduction cost. 

 

ARTICLE 13 
TIME 

 

13.1  TIME LIMITS STATED ARE OF THE ESSENCE OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS. 

13.2 Unless otherwise approved, OWNER and CMAR shall perform their respective obligations under this Agreement as 
expeditiously as is consistent with reasonable skill and care and the orderly progress of the Work. 

 
13.3 Prior to commencement of the Construction Phase Services and concurrently with submission of the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price Proposal, CMAR shall submit an up-to-date WPS for the performance of Construction Phase Services as specified. The 
WPS shall include reasonable periods of time for OWNER’s and A/E’s review and approval of shop drawings and submissions 
and for the approval of other authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

 
13.4 CMAR shall achieve Substantial Completion of the Work and Final Completion of the Work, as such terms are defined in the 

General Conditions, on or before the dates agreed to in the GMP Proposal, subject to time extensions granted by Change 
Order. 

13.5 THE TIMES SET FORTH FOR COMPLETION OF THE WORK IN THE NOTICE TO PROCEED AND THE GMP PROPOSAL 
ARE ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

13.6 The Construction Phase will be deemed to commence on the date specified in a written Notice to Proceed issued by OWNER 
after approval of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal. 

ARTICLE 14 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

37 

14.1 The rights of the Parties’ to terminate this Agreement are as set forth in Article 14 of the General Conditions.   

14.2 In addition, this Agreement may be terminated: 

14.2.1 during the Pre-Construction Phase by either party upon fifteen (15) days written notice should the other party fail 
substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination and the 
breach is not cured or a plan to cure the breach acceptable to the non-breaching party is not established within the 
fifteen (15) day period; 

14.2.2 by OWNER during the Pre-Construction Phase upon at least three (3) business days written notice to CMAR in the 
event that the Project is to be temporarily or permanently abandoned; and 

 

14.2.3 by OWNER at the GMP Proposal stage upon at least three (3) business days written notice to CMAR in the event 
that the parties are unable or unwilling to agree on a GMP Proposal. 

 

14.3 In the event of termination that is not the fault of CMAR, CMAR shall be entitled to compensation for all services performed to 

the termination date provided CMAR has delivered to OWNER such statements, accounts, all reports, documents and other 

materials as required together with all reports, documents and other materials prepared by CMAR prior to termination. Upon 

such payment, OWNER shall have no further obligation to CMAR. 

 

14.4 Termination of this Agreement will not relieve CMAR or any of its employees, subcontractors, or consultants of liability for 

violations of this Agreement or for any act or omission, or negligence, of CMAR related to the Project. In the event of a 

termination, CMAR expressly acknowledges the right of OWNER to employ a substitute Construction Manager at Risk to 

complete the services under this Agreement. 

 
14.5 In the event of termination, OWNER shall have the right to use any documents or other materials prepared for the Project and 

the ideas and designs they contain for the completion of the services described by this Agreement, for completion of the 
Project, or for any other purpose. 

 

ARTICLE 15 
PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS & DESIGN ERRORS AND OMISSIONS 

15.1 CMAR acknowledges that it has been provided unrestricted access to the existing improvements and conditions on the 
Project site and that it has thoroughly investigated those conditions. CMAR’s investigation will be instrumental in preparing its 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal for the Work. CMAR shall not make or be entitled to any claim for any adjustment to 
the Contract Time or the GMP for Pre-Construction Phase Services or for Construction Phase Services arising from Project 
conditions that CMAR discovered or, in the exercise of reasonable care, should have discovered in CMAR’s investigation. 

 
15.2 CMAR acknowledges that as part of its Pre-Construction Phase Services it shall participate in the review of the Construction 

Documents. CMAR’s participation in the design process will be instrumental in preparing its Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Proposal for the Work. Before submitting its Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal, the CMAR shall review the drawings, 
specifications and other Construction Documents and notify OWNER of any errors, omissions or discrepancies in the 
documents of which it is aware, and report such findings in accordance with Article 4 of the General Conditions. CMAR shall 
not make or be entitled to any claim for any adjustment to the Contract Time or the GMP for errors or omissions in the 
Construction Documents that CMAR discovered or, in the exercise of reasonable care, should have discovered in CMAR’s 
Pre-Construction Phase design review process that CMAR did not bring to the attention of OWNER and A/E in a timely 
manner.                          

 
 

ARTICLE 16 
BONDS AND INSURANCE 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

38 

16.1 Upon execution of this Agreement, CMAR shall provide a security bond on the form provided by OWNER in the amount of 5% 
of the AACC. The surety for a security bond shall meet the same requirements as set forth for payment and performance 
bonds. 

 
16.2  Upon acceptance by OWNER of a Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal, CMAR shall provide performance and payment 

bonds on forms prescribed by OWNER and in accordance with the requirements set forth in the Contract Documents. The 
penal sum of the payment and performance bonds must be equal to the GMP. If construction is phased or staged with 
different Guaranteed Maximum Prices established at different times, the penal sum of the bonds must be increased at the 
start of each stage or phase based on the cumulative total value of all Guaranteed Maximum Prices in effect. 

 

16.3  CMAR shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required insurance and until evidence of the 
required insurance has been reviewed and approved by OWNER. OWNER’s review of the insurance will not relieve nor 
decrease the liability of the CMAR. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, CMAR shall provide evidence of all 
insurance coverages described in Article 11 of the General Conditions. 

 

16.4 The cost of premiums for any additional insurance coverage desired by CMAR in excess of that required by this Agreement, 
the General Conditions or the other Contract Documents will be borne solely by CMAR out of its fees and not included in the 
GMP Proposal as a Direct Construction Cost. 

ARTICLE 17 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
17.1 DISPUTES AND APPEALS.  The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the issuance and administration of 

this Agreement in relation to disputes.  Any document, notice, or correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent in 
relation to disputes is void unless otherwise stated in this Agreement.  If the CMAR does not agree with any document, notice, 
or correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, the CMAR must submit a written 
notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence outlining 
the exact point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is not resolved to the CMAR’s satisfaction, the CMAR may submit a 
written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) 
calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply.  The CMAR then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court. 

  
17.2 When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a 

mutually agreed upon mediator, or person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction for mediation as described in the 
Tex. Civ. Prac. And Rem. Code, 154.023.  Unless both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will 
not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation must remain 
confidential as described in Tex. Civ. Prac. And Rem Code 154.073, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the 
confidentiality.  

 
 

ARTICLE 18  
INDEMNITY 

18.1 SEE ARTICLE 4 OF THE GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR CMAR'S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS. 

18.2  The indemnities contained in this Agreement, including the indemnities set forth in Article 4 of the General Conditions, will survive 
the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever. 

 

ARTICLE 19  
SPECIAL WARRANTIES 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

39 

19.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, OWNER and CMAR agree and acknowledge OWNER is 
entering into this Agreement in reliance on CMAR’s represented expertise and ability to provide construction management 
services. CMAR agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations and to further the interests of 
OWNER in accordance with OWNER’s requirements and procedures. 

19.2 CMAR represents, and agrees that it will perform its services in accordance with the usual and customary standards of CMAR’s 
profession or business and in compliance with all applicable national, federal, state, municipal, laws, regulations, codes, 
ordinances, orders and with those of any other body having jurisdiction over the Project. CMAR agrees to bear the full cost of 
correcting CMAR’s negligent or improper work and services, those of its consultants and subcontractors, and any harm caused 
by the negligent or improper work or services. 

19.3 CMAR’s duties will not be diminished by any approval by OWNER nor shall CMAR be released from any liability by any approval 
by OWNER, it being understood that OWNER is ultimately relying upon CMAR’s skill and knowledge in performing the services 
required hereunder. 

19.4  CMAR represents and agrees that all persons connected with CMAR directly in charge of its services are duly registered and/or 
licensed under the laws, rules and regulations of any authority having jurisdiction over the Project if such registration and/or 
license is required. 

19.5  CMAR represents and agrees to advise OWNER of anything of any nature in any drawings, specifications, plans, sketches, 
instructions, information, requirements, procedures, and other data supplied to CMAR (by OWNER or any other party) that is, in its 
opinion, unsuitable, improper, or inaccurate for the purposes for which the document or data is furnished. 

19.6  CMAR represents and agrees to perform its services under this Agreement in an expeditious and economical manner consistent 
with good business practices and the interests of OWNER. 

19.7  CMAR represents and agrees that there are no obligations, commitments, or impediments of any kind that will limit or prevent 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

19.8  CMAR represents and agrees that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CMAR has been duly authorized to act 
for and to bind CMAR to its terms. 

19.9  Except for the obligation of OWNER to pay CMAR certain fees, costs, and expenses pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 
OWNER shall have no liability to CMAR or to anyone claiming through or under CMAR by reason of the execution or performance 
of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any obligation or liability of OWNER to CMAR, no present or future affiliate of OWNER or any 
agent, officer,  or employee of OWNER, or anyone claiming under OWNER has or shall have any personal liability to CMAR or to 
anyone claiming through or under CMAR by reason of the execution or performance of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 20 

CERTIFICATION OF NO ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS OR WORK 

20.1 CMAR shall provide a certification statement, included with each materials submittal, stating that no asbestos containing 
materials or work is included within the scope of the proposed submittal. 

20.2 CMAR shall ensure that Texas Department of Health licensed individuals, consultants or companies are used for any required 
asbestos work including asbestos inspection, asbestos abatement plans/specifications, asbestos abatement, asbestos project 
management and third-party asbestos monitoring. 

 

20.3 CMAR shall provide at Substantial Completion, a notarized affidavit to OWNER and A/E stating that no asbestos containing 
materials or work was provided, installed, furnished or added to the Project. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

40 

20.4 CMAR shall take whatever measures is deemed necessary to insure that all employees, suppliers, fabricators, materialmen, 
subcontractors, or their assigns, comply with this requirement. 

20.5 All materials used on this Project shall be certified as non-Asbestos Containing Building Materials (ACBM). CMAR shall insure 
compliance with the following acts from all of its subcontractors and assigns: 

20.5.1  Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act and the Regulations promulgated under the Act (AHERA—40 
CFR 763, Subpart E); 

20.5.2  National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP— EPA 40 CFR 61, Subpart M, 
National Emission Standard for Asbestos); 

 
20.5.3  Texas Asbestos Health Protection Rules (TAHPR—Tex. Admin. Code Title 25, Part 1, Ch. 295, Subchapter 
C, Asbestos Health Protection) 

20.6 Every subcontractor shall provide a notarized statement that no ACBM has been used, provided, or left on this Project. 

20.7 CMAR shall provide, in hard copy and electronic form, all necessary material safety data sheets (MSDS) of all products used 
in the construction of the Project to the Texas Department of Health licensed inspector or A/E who will compile the information 
from the MSDS and, finding no asbestos in any of the product, make a certification statement. 

20.8 At Final Completion CMAR shall provide a notarized certification statement per TAC Title 25 Part 1, Ch. 295.34(c)(1) that no 
ACBM was used during construction of the Project. 

 
ARTICLE 21 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

21.1 Assignment.  Neither party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other 
party.  It is acknowledged by CMAR that no officer, agent, employee or representative of OWNER has any authority to assign any part of 
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by the Travis County Commissioners Court.. 

21.2 Antitrust. CMAR, by virtue of signing the contract, assigns to OWNER any and all claims for overcharges associated with the 
contract which arise under the antitrust laws of the United States, 15 U.S.C.A., Section 1, et seq. (1973). 

 
21.3 Discrimination. CMAR warrants that upon execution of a contract with OWNER, CMAR will not engage in employment 

practices which have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of age, religion, race, 
color, sex, handicap, or national origin and will submit reports as OWNER may require to assure compliance. 

 

21.4 Certification of Eligibility. This provision applies if the anticipated contract exceeds $100,000.  CMAR certifies that at the time 
of execution of this Agreement, it is not on the federal government's list of suspended, ineligible or debarred contractors and 
that CMAR has not been placed on this list between the time of its Proposal submission and the time of execution of this 
Agreement.  If CMAR is placed on this list during the term of this Agreement, CMAR shall notify the Travis County Purchasing 
Agent.  False certification or failure to notify may result in termination of this Agreement for default.  

21.5 Solicitation Prohibition. CMAR represents and warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 
solicit or secure this Agreement upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting 
bonafide employees and established commercial selling agencies maintained by CMAR to secure business.  If CMAR 
breaches this warranty, then OWNER shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 
deduct from the amount due to CMAR from OWNER, or otherwise recover, the full amount of commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

41 

21.6 Gratuities.  OWNER may terminate this Agreement if it is found that CMAR offered or gave gratuities to any employee of 
OWNER with the intent to influence the purchasing process in any manner, either before or after the award of this Agreement.  
The Travis County Commissioners Court shall determine if CMAR used gratuities to influence the process.  If so determined 
and OWNER terminates this Agreement, OWNER shall be entitled to (i) pursue the same remedies against CMAR as it could 
pursue if this Agreement were breached by CMAR, and (ii) collect exemplary damages in an amount determined by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court which shall be not less than three nor more than ten times the amount given to any officer or 
employee of OWNER.  The rights and remedies in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and 
remedies provided by law. 

21.7 Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, written or oral, between CMAR and 
OWNER and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the Project. This 
Agreement and each of its provisions shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified, amended or altered 
except by a writing signed by CMAR and OWNER.  
Modifications to this Agreement will be processed in accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. CMAR 

EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, REPRESENTATIVE OR EMPLOYEE OF TRAVIS COUNTY 

HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO MODIFY OR AMEND THE TERMS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT UNLESS THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT HAS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT 

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY.. 

21.8 Captions. The captions of paragraphs in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be considered or referred to 
in resolving questions of interpretation or construction. 

21.9 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement is construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and is 
performable in  Travis County, Texas. 

 
21.10 Waivers.  The waiver of a breach of any term or condition of this Agreement is not a waiver of a subsequent breach of that 

term or condition, or a breach or subsequent breach of any other term of condition. No official, agent, employee, or 
representative of OWNER may waive any breach of any term of condition of this Agreement unless expressly granted that 
specific authority by the Travis County Commissioners Court. All rights of OWNER under this Agreement are specifically 
reserved and any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to OWNER under it. Any right or 
remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law, 
nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

21.11 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted 
assigns and successors. 
 

21.12 Records Availability and Retention. CMAR agrees to maintain appropriate accounting records of costs, expenses, and payrolls of 
employees working on the Project, for a period of four (4) years after final payment for completed services and all other pending matters 
concerning this Agreement have been closed. CMAR further agrees that OWNER or its duly authorized representatives shall have access 
to any and all books, documents, papers and records of CMAR, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this 
Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

 

21.13 Severability. Should any term or provision of this Agreement be held invalid or unenforceable in any respect, the remaining 

terms and provisions will not be affected and this Agreement shall be construed as if the invalid or unenforceable term or 

provision had never been included. 

 
21.14 Illegal Dumping. CMAR shall ensure that it and all of its Subcontractors and assigns prevent illegal dumping of litter in 

accordance with Title 5, Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 365. 

 
21.15 Notices. All notices, consents, approvals, demands, requests or other communications relied on by the parties must be in 

writing. Written notice will be deemed to have been given when delivered in person to the designated representative of 
CMAR or OWNER for whom it is intended; or sent by U. S. Mail to the last known business address of the designated 
representative; or transmitted by fax machine to the last know business fax number of the designated representative. Mail 
notices are deemed effective upon receipt or on the third business day after the date of mailing, whichever is sooner. Fax 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

42 

notices are deemed effective the next business day after faxing. Such notices of claims or disputes or other legal notices 
required by this Agreement must be sent to the following persons at the indicated locations: 

 
 
If to OWNER: Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director 
  Travis County Facilities Management Department 
  P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin, TX 78767 
 

 With copy to: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or successor)  
   Travis County Purchasing Agent 
   P.O. Box 1748 
   Austin, TX 78767 
 

If to CMAR: _____  
 
 

The parties may make reasonable changes in the person or place designated for receipt of notices upon advance written 
notice to the other party. 

 
 
21.16 Funding Out.  If at any time during the performance of this Agreement the Travis County Commissioners Court (i) fails to 

provide funding for this Agreement or during the following fiscal year of Travis County, Texas, (ii) does not adopt a budget for 
expenditures, or (iii) is able only to partially fund the expenditures required by this Agreement, then OWNER may, upon giving 
CMAR written notice of such failure to fund and termination, terminate this Agreement, or a part thereof, without any further 
liability, effective thirty (30) days after OWNER notifies CMAR in writing of such failure to fund and termination.  OWNER shall 
pay CMAR for any portion of the Work completed up to the effective date.  CMAR shall have no recourse as to sums beyond 
those for any portion of the Work performed up to the effective date, including without limitation any recovery for lost profits 
anticipated to be made hereunder. 

 
21.17 Texas Public Information Act.  Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement and/or the Contract Documents to the 

contrary, disclosure of any information obtained by OWNER or any of its officials, employees, agents or representatives in 
connection with this Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of the Texas Public Information Act and all legal authorities 
relating thereto, including but not limited to opinions, decisions and letter rulings issued by the State Attorney General’s Office.  

 
21.18 Rights Cumulative. The rights and remedies herein granted to OWNER in the event of default are cumulative and the exercise 

thereof shall be without prejudice to the enforcement of any other right or remedy authorized by law or in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
21.19 Interest on Overdue Payments.  Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of 

the Texas Government Code. 
 
21.20 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt. In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if 

notice of indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the indebtedness of CMAR to 
the State, the County or a salary fund, a warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in favor of CMAR, or an agent or 
assignee of CMAR until:  

 
 (i)  the County Treasurer notifies Proposer in writing that the debt  is outstanding; and 

(ii)  the debt is paid. 
 
"Debt" includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with OWNER. OWNER may 
apply any funds OWNER owes CMAR to the outstanding balance of debt for which notice is made under this section , if the 
notice includes a statement that the amount owed by OWNER to CMAR may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

43 

21.21 Tax Identification Number. CMAR shall provide OWNER with an Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request For Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification, that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and 
regulations, before any contract funds are payable. 

 
21.22 Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUB) Program Reporting Requirements. 
 

HUB Program Requirements. 
In consideration of award of this Agreement to CMAR, there are certain requirements the CMAR will be requested to fulfill as 
they relate to the utilization of HUBs.   In fulfilling these requirements, the HUB SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION 
DECLARATION FORM (EXHIBIT B) should be completed and returned at least ten (10) days before entering into any 
subcontract.  CMAR agrees to maintain a Subcontractor relationship with any HUB Subcontractors identified on the 
HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) DECLARATION Form.   CMAR will make good faith efforts to meet or 
exceed the HUB participation goals in the Construction category for an overall 13.7% for Minority-Owned Business 
Enterprises (MBE) and an Overall 13.8% for Woman-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE).  (Sub-goals:  1.7% African-
American, 9.7% Hispanic-American, 2.39% Native/Asian-American) of the GMP.  Additional information, along with completion 
instructions for these forms, is found in Section 2 of Exhibit B. 
 
21.22.1            HUB SUBCONTRACTOR FORM COMPLETION INSTRUCTIONS 

A. Please type or print all required information required in the appropriate SECTION(S) of this Form.  FAILURE 
TO COMPLETE THE APPLICABLE PART(S) OF THIS FORM MAY RESULT IN YOUR BID OR 
PROPOSAL BEING DISQUALIFIED.  

B. By completing this form and listing the Certified HUB Subcontractors, the CMAR indicates that he has 
contacted the listed HUBs and the authorized representatives agree as to price, terms and conditions, and 
scope of the proposed subcontract.  Should this contract be awarded to your company you agree to 
subcontract with the listed HUBs for the price and at the terms, conditions, and scope as disclosed. 

C. Any additional efforts that were made by the CMAR should be documented and available upon request, as 
supporting documentation to this form.  Completion of this form will aid in determining the level of effort that 
was put forth by the CMAR in soliciting HUB Subcontractors to participate on this contract. 

D. CMAR may go beyond the good faith efforts listed when soliciting HUB subcontractors. 

 
21.22.2 If after disclosure of Certified HUB Subcontractors, and before or during performance of any subsequent subcontract, 

it becomes necessary to terminate or reduce a Subcontractor’s contract, the Contractor is required to: 
 

A Complete the HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form (EXHIBIT C) and submit to the HUB staff. 
 

B Make a good faith effort to substitute another Certified HUB Subcontractor, and if unable to, provide 
evidence why you could not. 

 
C Obtain pre-approval from the Travis County Purchasing Agent/or the HUB Coordinator of all changes 

involving Certified HUB Subcontractors.  Modifications to the HUB Subcontracting Participation Declaration 
are permitted only after award of the bid and solely with the prior written approval of the Purchasing Office. 

  
21.22.3 Subcontractor Tracking Software System. 

The Travis County Purchasing Office implemented an electronic reporting system (Vendor Tracking System) to 
eliminate standard forms, and streamline the current manual process of tracking payments to all first-tier 
subcontractors/subconsultants by performing all such tracking procedures electronically. 

The selected CMAR shall be responsible for the use of the system, and require all subcontractors/subconsultants to 
be responsible for system reporting. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

44 

                    Training and additional information regarding the use of this system will be provided to the CMAR by Travis County 
Purchasing Office HUB Staff after contract award, but prior to commencement of contract performance.  

  
                   If you have any questions regarding this system or difficulty in locating Certified HUB Subcontractors contact the 

Travis County HUB staff at (512) 854-9700 for assistance. 
 

21.23  List of Exhibits 

The following exhibits are fully incorporated into this Agreement by reference: 

Ex. A  General Conditions Costs 
Ex. B  HUB Sub Declaration Form / Good Faith Effort Form 
Ex. C  Subcontractor Change Form 
 
 

 

BY SIGNING BELOW, the Parties have executed and bound themselves to this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.  

 

 

                 OWNER       CMAR 

 

By:___________________________    By: _________________________ 

 (original signature)      (original signature) 

 

 

______________________________    _____________________________ 

     

 

 

Date: _________________________    Date: _________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

   

 

By:___________________________     

 (original signature)       

 
Date: _______________________ 

 
 
 

Exhibit A – General Conditions Costs 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

45 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

46 

Exhibit B– HUB Program Subcontracting Declaration  
 

 Exhibit B  

 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

47 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

48 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

49 

 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

50 

SECTION 00700 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
FOR 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
BUILDING AGREEMENTS 

 
ARTICLE 1 

 
1.1 CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP 
 
1.1.1 The Agreement shall not be construed to create any contractual relationship of any kind between 

the Architect/Engineer and the CMAR.  Nothing contained in the Agreement shall create any 
contractual relationship between the Owner or the Architect/Engineer and any Subcontractor or 
Sub-subcontractor, as those terms are defined herein. 

 
 
1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION, AND INTENT 
 
1.2.2 By executing the Agreement, the CMAR represents that he has visited the site, familiarized 

himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his 
observations with the requirements of the Agreement. 

 
1.2.3 The intent of the Agreement is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and 

completion of the Work.  Work not covered in the Agreement shall be required if it is consistent 
therewith and is reasonably inferable as being necessary to produce the intended results.  Words 
and abbreviations which have well-known technical or trade meanings are used in the Agreement 
in accordance with such recognized meanings. 

 
1.2.4 The interrelation of the Specifications, the Drawings and the schedules (excluding the Work 

Progress Schedule) is as follows:  the Specifications determine the nature and setting of the 
materials; the Drawings establish the quantities, dimensions and details of the materials and 
Work; and the schedules give the locations.  Should the drawings disagree with another 
requirement, or with one another, or with the Specifications, the better quality or greater quantity 
of work or materials shall be performed or furnished.  Figures given on the Drawings govern small 
scale drawings. 

 
1.2.5 The organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and the arrangement 

of the Drawings shall not control the CMAR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in 
establishing the extent of Work to be performed by any trade. 

 
1.2.6 Where any section of General Conditions is modified or deleted, or any paragraph, subparagraph 

or clause thereof is modified or deleted, unaltered provisions of that section, paragraph, 
subparagraph or clause remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
 ARTICLE 2 
 
 ARCHITECT/ENGINEER 
 
2.1 DEFINITION 
 

Architect/Engineer (or “A/E”) is a person registered as an architect pursuant to Chapter 1051, 
Tex. Occ. Code , or a person defined as an engineer pursuant to Chapter 1001, Tex. Occ. Code. 
The term Architect/Engineer, as used in these General Conditions, shall include Architects, 
Engineers, or person having both skills.  The term is used for ease of reference and does not 
imply skills which may not apply to the professional utilized in this Project.  The definition of 
Architect/Engineer shall also include those consultants registered as a landscape architect 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

51 

pursuant to Chapter 1051, Tex. Occ. Code, registered as a professional engineer pursuant to 
Chapter 1001, Tex. Occ. Code, and other firms employed to provide professional architectural or 
engineering services and having overall responsibility for the design of a project or a significant 
portion thereof.  The Architect/Engineer is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if 
singular in number and masculine in gender. 

 
2.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
2.2.1 The administration of the Agreement shall commence with the award of the Agreement, and shall 

terminate upon receipt of all closeout documentation and deliverables and certification of final 
payment of the Agreement by the County.  The contracting plan will be based on a single CMAR (the 
“CMAR”). 

 
2.2.2 The Architect/Engineer will administer the Agreement as hereinafter described.  The 

Architect/Engineer will be the Owner's representative during the Project on matters related to the 
intent and interpretation of the Contract Documents.  The Architect/Engineer will advise and 
consult with the Owner.  The Architect/Engineer will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner 
only to the extent provided in the Agreement. 

 
2.2.3 The Architect/Engineer shall pay all fees associated with the Plan Review and site development 

permit to ensure that the Building Permit, as defined herein, is ready for CMAR at the beginning 
of the Project. 

 
2.2.4 The Architect/Engineer will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to 

familiarize himself with the progress and quality of the Work and to determine if the Work is 
proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.  However, the Architect/Engineer will not 
be required to make continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work.  
On the basis of his on-site observations as an architect/engineer, he will keep the Owner 
informed of the progress of the Work, and will endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and 
deficiencies in the Work. 

 
2.2.5 Neither the Architect/Engineer nor the Owner will be responsible for and will not have control or 

charge of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the Work.  Neither the Architect/Engineer nor the 
Owner will be responsible for or have control or charge over the acts or omissions of the CMAR, 
Subcontractors, or any of their agents or employees, or any other person performing any of the 
Work or failure of any of the aforementioned to carry out the Construction Work in accordance with 
the Agreement Documents. 

 
2.2.6 The Architect/Engineer and the Owner shall at all times have access to the Work wherever it is in 

preparation or progress.  The CMAR shall provide facilities for such access so the 
Architect/Engineer and the Owner may perform their respective functions under the Agreement. 

 
2.2.7 Based on the Architect/Engineer's observations and an evaluation of the CMAR's Applications for 

Payment, as defined herein, the Architect/Engineer may, upon the Owner’s request, advise the 
Owner on the amounts owing to the CMAR. 

 
 
2.2.8 The Architect/Engineer shall render interpretations necessary for the proper execution or 

progress of the Construction Work with reasonable promptness upon receipt of a written request 
from the Owner or the CMAR.  He shall render written decisions, within a reasonable time but no 
greater than five (5) calendar days after receipt of Requests for Information (RFI’s) and no more 
than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of submittals.  The Architect/Engineer shall notify the 
County immediately if more time is required for reasonable cause.  The County shall review the 
cause for the extension, and if it is justified, issue a time extension.  Interpretations and decisions 
of the Architect/Engineer shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the 
Contract Documents and shall be in written and/or graphic form.  In his capacity as interpreter, he 
will endeavor to secure faithful performance by the CMAR. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

52 

2.2.9 The Architect/Engineer shall have the authority, with the concurrence of the County, to reject 
Work that does not conform to the Agreement Documents.  When, in the Architect/Engineer’s 
reasonable opinion, it is necessary or advisable in order to implement the intent of the Agreement 
Documents, the Architect/Engineer shall, with the County’s prior approval, have authority to 
require special inspection or testing of the Construction Work in accordance with the provisions of 
the Agreement Documents, whether or not such Construction Work be then fabricated, installed 
or completed. 

 
2.2.10 However, neither the Architect/Engineer's nor the Owner's authority to act under this 

subparagraph 2.2., nor any decision made by them in good faith either to exercise or not to 
exercise such authority, shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Architect/Engineer or 
the Owner to the CMAR, any Subcontractor, any of their agents or employees, or any other 
person performing any of the Work. 

 
2.2.11 The Architect/Engineer and the Owner will review and approve or take other appropriate action 

upon CMAR's submittals, such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, as defined in 
Section 01300, but only for conformance with the design concept of the Work and with the 
information given in the Agreement.  Such action shall be taken in accordance with the Submittal 
Schedule.  The Architect/Engineer shall notify the County immediately of any potential delays in 
meeting the response time.  The Architect/Engineer’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate 
approval of any assembly of which the item is a component. Approval of a specific item by either 
the Architect/Engineer or the Owner shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item 
is a component.  The Owner has the option to delegate review of any submittal to the 
Architect/Engineer as sole reviewer.  Generally, all color selections must have Owner approval. 

 
2.2.12 The Architect/Engineer shall prepare Change Orders, as defined herein, in accordance with 

Article 12, and will have authority to order minor changes in the Work provided such changes do 
not require an adjustment of the Contract Sum or the Substantial Completion Date.  

 
2.2.13 In accordance with paragraph 9.8, upon receipt from the CMAR of a request for a Substantial 

Completion inspection with a list of items to be completed or corrected, the Architect/Engineer and 
Owner will perform an inspection.  As a result of this inspection, the Architect/Engineer will prepare a 
punch list of the items needing correction.  Upon determination by the County that the Construction 
Work has been substantially completed, the Architect/Engineer will issue a Certificate of Substantial 
Completion. 

 
2.2.14 After the CMAR completes the required corrections, and notifies the Architect/Engineer, then the 

Owner will accompany the Architect/Engineer and the CMAR on the final inspection to ensure that 
the Construction Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and to the 
satisfaction of the Owner and the Architect/Engineer.  Architect/Engineer will notify the Owner in 
writing that the Construction Work has been performed according to the Agreement Documents. 

 
2.2.15 In accordance with paragraph 9.9, the Architect/Engineer shall receive from the CMAR and inspect 

all warranties, guarantees, bonds, O&M manuals and similar required material to make sure that all 
such materials are received and satisfy the requirements of the Agreement Documents.  The 
Architect/Engineer will send to the Owner for review these close-out documents, and will issue a 
final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the requirements of paragraph 9.9. 

 
2.2.18 In case of the termination of the employment of the Architect/Engineer, the Owner shall appoint 

an architect/engineer, against whom the CMAR makes no reasonable objection, whose status 
under the Agreement shall be that of the former Architect/Engineer. 

 
 ARTICLE 3 
 
 THE OWNER 
 
3.1 DEFINITION 

 
The Owner is the County of Travis and shall be referred to as if singular in number and masculine 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

53 

in gender.  The term Owner means the Travis County Commissioners Court, the Director of the 
Travis County Facilities Management Department (the “Director”), or authorized representative of 
the Director. 
 

3.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER 
 
3.2.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner will furnish all surveys 

describing the physical characteristics, legal limitations, and utility locations for the site of the 
Project, and a legal description of the site. 

 
3.2.2 Except as provided in subparagraph 4.7.1, or unless otherwise provided in the Contract 

Documents, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary rights of way and easements required 
for the construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in 
existing facilities. 

 
3.2.3 Information or services under the Owner's control shall be furnished by the Owner with 

reasonable promptness to avoid delay in the orderly progress of the Work. 
 
3.2.4 The Owner shall forward all instructions to the CMAR in writing.    No communication or direction 

from the Owner shall be interpreted as a change to the Agreement unless provided in writing and 
processed as a Change Order in accordance with Article 12, Changes in Work. 

 
3.2.5 The Owner shall approve and monitor the Work Progress Schedule. 
 
3.2.6 The Owner shall observe the construction work for quality assurance, notify the CMAR in writing 

of defective work, and maintain a log of such deficiencies.  This activity does not relieve the 
Architect/Engineer of his responsibility for construction observations as noted in subparagraph 
2.2.4.  The Owner’s right to accept defective work is described in the Agreement and in Article 13. 

 
3.2.7 The Owner shall maintain a log of outstanding issues until they are closed. 
 
3.2.8 The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner set forth in the 

Agreement and in these General Conditions. 
 
3.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK 
 

If the CMAR fails to correct defective work as required by Article 13 or persistently fails to carry 
out the Work in accordance with the Agreement, the Owner may, in writing, order the CMAR to 
stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated.  
However, this right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the 
Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the CMAR or any other person or entity, except to 
the extent required by subparagraph 6.1.3. 

 
3.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK 
 

If the CMAR defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Agreement and 
fails within seven (7) days after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and 
continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, 
after seven (7) days following receipt by the CMAR of any additional written notice and without 
prejudice to any other remedy he may have, make good such deficiencies.  In such case an 
appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from the payments then or thereafter due 
the CMAR the cost of correcting such deficiencies, including compensation, if any, for the 
Architect/Engineer’s additional services made necessary by such default, negligence, or failure.  
If the payments then or thereafter due the CMAR are not sufficient to cover such amount, the 
CMAR shall pay the difference to the Owner within thirty (30) days after receipt of written 
demand. 

 
 ARTICLE 4 
 CMAR 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

54 

  
4.1 DEFINITION 
 

The CMAR is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and shall be referred to as 
if singular in number and masculine in gender.  The term CMAR means the CMAR or his 
authorized representative. 

 
4.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
4.2.1 The CMAR shall exercise due diligence in carefully studying the Contract Documents and shall report to 

the Architect/Engineer and the Owner, in a timely manner, any error, inconsistency or omission he may 
discover. This obligation includes the CMAR’s Pre-Construction Phase Services described in Article 5 
and Article 15 of the Agreement. The report should be in the form of a Request for Information (RFI).  
For purposes of this paragraph 4.2, the RFI shall be considered “timely” if it is provided as soon as 
practicable but in no event later than 10 days after the CMAR’s discovery of the error, inconsistency or 
omission.   The CMAR shall perform no portion of the Work at any time without the necessary part of the 
Agreement or, where required, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, or Samples for such portion of 
the Work. 

 
4.2.2 If the CMAR observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance with applicable laws, statutes, 

building codes, or regulations in any respect, he shall promptly notify the Architect/Engineer and the 
Owner in writing.  Any necessary changes shall be accomplished by appropriate modification, as 
described in the Agreement. 

 
4.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES 
 
4.3.1 The CMAR shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention.  He shall be solely 

responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures, and for 
coordinating all portions of the Work. 

 
4.3.2 The CMAR shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees, 

Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a 
contract with the CMAR. 

 
4.3.3 The CMAR shall not be relieved from his obligations to perform the Work either by the activities or duties 

of the Architect/Engineer in his administration of the Agreement, or by inspections, tests, or approvals 
required or performed under Article 7 by persons other than the CMAR. 

 
4.3.4 In the execution of the Agreement, the CMAR must comply with all applicable state and federal laws, 

including but not limited to laws concerned with labor, equal employment opportunity, safety and 
minimum wages.  The CMAR shall make himself familiar with and at all times shall observe and comply 
with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct 
of the Work, and shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the Owner and its official representatives 
against any claim arising from violation of any such law, ordinance or regulation by himself or by his 
Subcontractor or his employees.  

 
4.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS 
 
4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, the CMAR shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, 

equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and 
other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, whether 
temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. 

 
4.4.2 The CMAR shall at all times observe and conduct himself with strict discipline and shall enforce such 

strict discipline and good order among his employees.  The CMAR shall not employ to perform the 
Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him.  The CMAR and all workers 
employed by him shall have such skill and experience as will enable them to properly perform the 
duties assigned them.  If, in the opinion of the Owner, the CMAR, or any person employed by the 
CMAR or a Subcontractor, does not perform the Work in a proper and skillful manner, or is 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

55 

disrespectful, intemperate, disorderly, or otherwise objectionable, such person shall at the written 
request of the Owner be forthwith removed from the Project.  If the person so removed is employed by 
the CMAR or a Subcontractor, such person shall be discharged and shall not be employed again on 
any portion of the Work without the written consent of the Owner.  If the person so removed is the 
CMAR himself, the Owner may treat the incident giving rise to such removal as a breach of contract 
and may enforce any and all remedies for default provided herein.  The CMAR shall furnish such 
suitable machinery, equipment, and construction forces as may be necessary, in the opinion of the 
Owner, for the proper prosecution of the Work.  Failure to do so may cause the Owner to withhold all 
payments which have or may become due or the Owner may suspend the Work until his requests are 
complied with. 

 
4.4.3  The risk of loss of the materials and equipment shall not pass to the Owner until final payment takes 

place.  Title transfers to the Owner upon interim construction payments for such materials and 
equipment.  

 
4.4.4 Storage of Materials 
 
4.4.4.1 CMAR shall store materials to preserve their quality and fitness for the Work.  When considered 

necessary by the Architect/Engineer or the Owner, the materials must be placed on wooden 
platforms or other hard, clean surfaces and not on the ground.  The materials must be placed 
under cover when so directed.  Stored materials shall be located so as to facilitate prompt inspection, 
and offsite storage shall be in an approved, bonded warehouse. 

 
4.4.4.2 When approved by the Architect/Engineer, selected materials or products may be pretested and 

approved for use, provided they are stored in an area meeting the requirements set forth by the 
Architect/Engineer. 

 
4.5 WARRANTY 
 

The CMAR represents and warrants to the Owner and the Architect/Engineer that all materials and 
equipment furnished under this Agreement will be new unless otherwise specified, and that the Work 
will be of good quality, free from faults and defects, and in conformance with the Agreement.  Any 
portion of the Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly 
approved and authorized, may be considered defective.  If required by the Owner, the CMAR shall 
furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. The CMAR further 
represents and warrants to the Owner that all items delivered and all services rendered will conform to 
the Agreement Documents, and will be of merchantable quality, good workmanship, and free from 
defects.  The CMAR further agrees to provide copies of applicable warranties or guaranties to the 
Architect/Engineer, who shall forward to the Owner upon completion.  Copies will be provided within 
ten (10) days after the Certificate of Substantial Completion is issued.  Return of merchandise under 
warranty shall be at the CMAR's expense. 

 
4.6 TAXES 
 

The CMAR shall comply with the provisions set forth in the Agreement regarding all sales, consumer, 
use, and other similar taxes for the Work or portions thereof. 

 
4.7 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES 
 
4.7.1 The CMAR shall cooperate with applicable city or other governmental officials at all times where their 

jurisdiction prevails.  The CMAR shall secure and pay for the building permit (as applicable) and for all 
permits, permanent utilities and governmental fees, licenses, and inspections necessary for the proper 
execution and completion of the Work which are legally required at the time the Bids are received.  
The Architect/Engineer will pay for TDLR review and inspection fees, site plan review and permit 
fees, and building permit review fees.  

 
4.7.2 The CMAR shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful 

orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the Work.  The parties acknowledge that 
some of the ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of some public authorities may not be enforceable 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

56 

against a County project. 
 
4.7.3 If the CMAR observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance with applicable laws, 

statutes, building codes, and regulations in any respect, he shall promptly notify the 
Architect/Engineer and Owner in writing, and any necessary changes shall be accomplished by 
appropriate modification, as described in the Agreement. 

 
4.7.4 If the CMAR performs any Work when he knows or should know it to be contrary to such laws, 

ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the Architect/Engineer and the 
Owner, he shall assume full responsibility and shall bear all costs attributable thereto. 

 
4.8 ALLOWANCES 
 
4.8.1 The CMAR shall include in the GMP all allowances stated in the Agreement Documents.  Items 

covered by these allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons as the 
Owner may direct, but the CMAR will not be required to employ persons against whom he makes 
a reasonable objection. 

 
4.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement: 
 

A. these allowances shall cover the cost to the CMAR, less any applicable trade discount, of 
the materials and equipment required by the allowance delivered at the site, and all 
applicable taxes; 

 
B. the CMAR's costs for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs, and 

other expenses contemplated for the original allowance shall be included in the GMP and 
not in the allowance; and 

 
C. whenever the costs are more than or less than the allowance, the GMP shall be adjusted 

accordingly by Change Order, as defined in the Agreement, the amount of which will 
recognize changes, if any, in handling costs on the site, labor, installation costs, 
overhead, profit, and other expenses. 

 
4.9 SUPERINTENDENT 
 

The CMAR shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in 
attendance at the Project site during the progress of the Work.  The superintendent shall be 
satisfactory to the Owner and shall not be changed without written approval of the Owner.  The 
superintendent shall represent the CMAR and all communications given to or by the 
superintendent shall be as binding as if given to or by the CMAR.  Important communications 
shall be confirmed in writing. 

 
4.10 CMAR’S WORK PROGRESS SCHEDULE  
 

The CMAR shall prepare and submit for the Owner's approval and Architect/Engineer's 
information a fully developed Work Progress Schedule (“WPS”), as such term is defined in the 
Agreement.  The WPS shall relate to the entire Project as the Contract Documents require, and 
shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.  The WPS shall be in a 
format approved by the Owner and shall show the critical path through the project. The WPS shall 
directly relate to the Schedule of Values in a line-by-line manner.  The CMAR shall adhere to the 
WPS.  Should the CMAR depart more than seven (7) days from this schedule for the projected 
Substantial Completion Date, then CMAR shall deliver a plan to the Owner as to how CMAR shall 
reform his practices to return to the original WPS; or should the Owner allow, deliver a new WPS.  
The WPS shall be updated by the CMAR on a monthly basis (preceding each application for 
payment) and shall separately note any changes in logic and duration made since the previous 
update.  Each update shall be submitted in electronic format as well as paper copy. 

 
4.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

57 

The CMAR shall maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of the Plans and 
Specifications and any amendments related thereto or to other parts of the Agreement, in good 
order and marked currently to record all changes made during construction, and approved Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, and Samples.  These shall be available to the Architect/Engineer and 
the Owner and shall be delivered to the Architect/ Engineer for the Owner upon completion of the 
Work. 

 
4.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES 
 
4.12.1 “Shop Drawings” shall mean drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specifically prepared 

for the Work by the CMAR or any Subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate 
some portion of the Work. 

 
4.12.2 “Product Data” shall mean illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, 

brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by the CMAR to illustrate a material, 
product, or system for some portion of the Work. 

 
4.12.3 “Samples” shall mean physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship, 

and establish standards by which the Work will be judged. 
 
4.12.4 The CMAR shall review, approve and submit, in accordance with Section 01300, so as to cause 

no delay in the Work or in the Work of the Owner or any separate CMAR, all Shop Drawings, 
Product Data, and Samples required by the Agreement. 

 
4.12.5 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, the CMAR represents 

that he has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, and field construction 
criteria related thereto, or will do so, and that he has checked and coordinated the information 
contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Agreement. 

 
4.12.6 The CMAR shall not be relieved of responsibility for any deviation from the requirements of the 

Agreement by the Architect/Engineer's or the Owner's approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
or Samples under subparagraph 2.2.10 unless the CMAR has specifically informed the Owner in 
writing of such deviation at the time of submission and the Owner has given written approval to 
the specific deviation.  The CMAR shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions 
in the Shop Drawings, Product Data, or Samples by the Architect/Engineer's or the Owner’s 
approval thereof. 

 
4.12.7 No portion of the Work requiring submission of a Shop Drawing, Product Data, or Sample shall be 

commenced until the submittal has been approved by the Architect/Engineer and the Owner as 
provided in subparagraph 2.2.  All such portions of the Work shall be in accordance with 
approved submittals. 

 
4.13 USE OF SITE 
 

The CMAR shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits, 
and the Agreement and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with any materials or 
equipment.  If the Owner contemplates more than one contractor being on the Owner's property, 
then the CMAR shall respect the sites designated for work by other contractors. 
 

4.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING OF WORK 
 
4.14.1 The CMAR shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting, or patching that may be required to 

complete the Work or to make its several parts fit together properly. 
 
4.14.2 The CMAR shall not damage or endanger any portion of the Work or the work of the Owner or the 

work of any contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering any work, or by excavation.  The 
CMAR shall not cut or otherwise alter the work of the Owner or any other contractor except with 
the written consent of the Owner and of such other contractor.  The CMAR shall not unreasonably 
withhold from the Owner or any other contractor his consent to cutting or otherwise altering the 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

58 

Work. 
 
4.15 CLEANING UP 
 
4.15.1 The CMAR at all times shall keep the worksite free from accumulation of waste materials or 

rubbish caused by his operations.  At the completion of the Work he shall remove all his waste 
materials and rubbish from and about the Project as well as all his tools, construction equipment, 
machinery, and surplus materials. 

 
4.15.2 If the CMAR fails to clean up at the completion of the Work, the Owner may do so as provided in 

paragraph 3.4 and the cost thereof shall be charged to the CMAR. 
 
4.16 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

The CMAR shall forward all communications to the Owner with information copy to the 
Architect/Engineer.  Requests for technical information may be forwarded directly to the 
Architect/Engineer with information copy to the Owner.  The CMAR shall advise the 
Architect/Engineer and the Owner of coordination needs with other contractors on the Owner's 
property. 
 

4.17 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS; INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION 
 
4.17.1 The CMAR shall pay all royalties and license fees.  If the CMAR has reason to believe that the 

design, process, or product specified is an infringement of a patent or other proprietary or 
intellectual property right of any third party, he shall be responsible for such loss unless he promptly 
gives such information to the Owner in writing.  The CMAR warrants that all applicable patents, 
copyrights or other proprietary or intellectual property rights of any third party which may exist on 
items that will be supplied under the Agreement have been adhered to and further warrants that the 
Owner shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights.  Warranties granted the Owner shall 
apply for the duration of this Agreement or for the life of equipment or supplies purchased, 
whichever is longer.  The Owner must not extend use of the granted exclusive rights to any party 
other than the Owner’s employees or those persons with whom the Owner has established a 
relationship aimed at furthering the public interest, and then only for official public uses.  The Owner 
will not knowingly or intentionally violate any applicable patent, license, copyright or other 
proprietary or intellectual property right of any third party.   

4.17.2  CMAR SHALL PROTECT, DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY OWNER FROM AND 
AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, JUDGMENTS AND LOSSES ARISING FROM 
INFRINGEMENT OR ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OF ANY UNITED STATES 
PATENT, COPYRIGHT, TRADE SECRET OR OTHER PROPRIETARY OR 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT THAT ARISE OUT OF ANY OF THE WORK 
PERFORMED BY CMAR OR THE USE BY CMAR, OR BY OWNER AT THE 
DIRECTION OF CMAR, OF ANY ARTICLE OR MATERIAL. UPON BECOMING 
AWARE OF A SUIT OR THREAT OF SUIT FOR PATENT OR COPYRIGHT 
INFRINGEMENT, OWNER SHALL PROMPTLY NOTIFY CMAR AND CMAR SHALL 
BE GIVEN FULL OPPORTUNITY TO NEGOTIATE A SETTLEMENT. CMAR DOES 
NOT WARRANT AGAINST INFRINGEMENT BY REASON OF OWNER’S OR A/E’S 
DESIGN OF ARTICLES OR THEIR USE IN COMBINATION WITH OTHER 
MATERIALS OR IN THE OPERATION OF ANY PROCESS. IN THE EVENT OF 
LITIGATION, OWNER AGREES TO COOPERATE REASONABLY WITH CMAR 
AND PARTIES SHALL BE ENTITLED, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SUCH 
LITIGATION, TO BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE. 
 

4.18 GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION 
 
4.18.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE CMAR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND 

HOLD HARMLESS THE OWNER AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

59 

AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, 
JUDGMENTS, EXPENSES, AND LIABILITY OF ANY KIND INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO ATTORNEYS' FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF 
THE WORK, OR PROVISION OF GOODS BY CMAR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDED 
THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS, CAUSE OF ACTION, SUIT, JUDGMENT OR 
EXPENSE (1) IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO BODILY INJURY, SICKNESS, DISEASE, OR DEATH, 
OR TO INJURY TO OR DESTRUCTION OF TANGIBLE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE LOSS 
OF USE RESULTING THEREFROM, AND (2) IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY ANY 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF THE CMAR, ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, ANYONE 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THEM, OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE 
ACTS ANY OF THEM MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT THE INJURY, 
DEATH, DAMAGE CLAIM, LOSS, OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN PART BY A PARTY 
INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.  SUCH OBLIGATION SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO 
NEGATE, ABRIDGE, OR OTHERWISE REDUCE ANY OTHER RIGHT OR OBLIGATION OR 
INDEMNITY WHICH WOULD OTHERWISE EXIST AS TO ANY PARTY OR PERSON 
DESCRIBED IN THIS PARAGRAPH. 

 
4.18.2 In any and all claims against the Owner or any of their agents or employees by any employee of the 

CMAR, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this paragraph 4.18 shall 
not be limited in any way by any limitation in the amount or type of damages, compensation or 
benefits payable by or for the CMAR or any Subcontractor under workers' or workmen's 
compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

 
4.19 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS 
 
4.19.1 IN ADDITION, THE CMAR AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, SAVE, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE 

OWNER, ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, ATTORNEYS' FEES, ACTION 
OR CLAIMS AND FROM ALL LIABILITY AND DAMAGES FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, 
DEATH OR DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PROPERTY IN CONSEQUENCE 
OF ANY NEGLIGENCE, ERROR OR OMISSION IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
AGREEMENT BY THE CMAR AND FROM ANY CLAIMS OR AMOUNTS ARISING OR 
RECOVERED UNDER THE WORKERS' COMPENSATION LAWS, THE TEXAS CIVIL PRACTICE 
& REMEDIES CODE SECTION 101.002, ET SEQ. (TEXAS TORT CLAIMS ACT) OR ANY OTHER 
LAWS WHETHER HE IS WHOLLY OR PARTIALLY AT FAULT.  HE SHALL FURTHER SO 
INDEMNIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DEATH OR DAMAGES 
SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR LIABILITY OR DAMAGES TO PROPERTY OF ANY 
CHARACTER OCCURRING OR RESULTING FROM ANY ACT, OMISSION, NEGLECT OR 
MISCONDUCT ON HIS PART IN THE MANNER OR METHOD OF EXECUTING THE WORK; OR 
FROM FAILURE TO PROPERLY EXECUTE THE WORK; OR FROM DEFECTIVE WORK OR 
MATERIALS. 

 
4.19.2 The CMAR shall not be released from these responsibilities until all claims have been settled and 

suitable evidence to that effect furnished to the Commissioners' Court. 
 
4.19.3 The CMAR's attention is directed to the fact that all hidden utilities and installations as may be 

shown on the plans have been taken from the best available information.  The Owner makes no 
representations that information provided is complete or accurate.  There may be other utilities or 
installations.  The CMAR shall proceed with appropriate caution and shall save and hold 
harmless the Owner from any and all suits or claims resulting from damage by his operations to 
any pipeline or underground installation. 

 
 
4.20 WAGE RATES 
 
4.20.1 The CMAR is required to pay not less than the wage scale of the various classes of labor as shown on 

the "Prevailing Wage Schedule" provided by the Owner.  The specified wage rates are minimum rates 
only, and the Owner will not consider any claims for additional compensation made by the CMAR 
because of payment by the CMAR of any wage rates in excess of the applicable minimum rate 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

60 

contained in the Prevailing Wage Schedule.  
 
4.29.2 Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2258, Texas Government Code, the CMAR shall forfeit as a 

penalty to the Owner, sixty dollars ($60.00) for each laborer, workman or mechanic employed, for 
each calendar day, or portion thereof, if such laborer, workman or mechanic is paid less than the said 
stipulated minimum rates for any work done under the Agreement, by him, or by any Subcontractor 
under him.  The CMAR and each Subcontractor shall keep, or cause to be kept, an accurate record 
showing the names and occupations of all laborers, workmen and mechanics paid less than the said 
stipulated minimum rates for any work done under the Agreement, by him, or by any Subcontractor 
under him.  The CMAR and each Subcontractor shall keep, or cause to be kept, accurate records 
showing the names and occupations of all laborers, workmen and mechanics employed in connection 
with the Work, and showing also the actual per diem wages paid to such workers, which record shall 
be open at all reasonable hours for the inspection by the Owner. In the event of any such wage rate 
violation, the penalty shall be in addition to the proper restitution of wages.  The restitution may 
become a condition of future payment by the Owner.   

 
4.20.3 Certain public works require under the minimum wage schedule to list not only "Building Construction" 

wage rates but also "Incidental Paving and Utilities" wage rates.  The CMAR's attention is called to the 
fact that all classes of work within the area of the building shall be paid "Building Construction" wage 
rates.  A set of the applicable labor rates for public works projects is set forth in the front end of the 
RFP. 

 
4.21 CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES 
 

Should the CMAR suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the 
Owner or of any of his employees, agents, or others for whose acts he is legally liable, the claim shall 
be made in writing to the Owner within ten (10) calendar days after the first observance of such injury 
or damage.  
 

4.22 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CMAR is an independent contractor, operating 
solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities applicable to him as an 
independent contractor.  No employee of CMAR shall be considered an employee of COUNTY, or 
gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY'S personnel policies.  Both parties 
expressly acknowledge and agree that none of CMAR'S employees have a contractual relationship 
with the COUNTY. 

 

 

 
ARTICLE 5 

 
SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
5.1 DEFINITION 
 
5.1.1 “Subcontractor” is defined in Article 2 of the Agreement.  
 
5.1.2 A “Sub-subcontractor” means a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a 

Subcontractor or another Sub-subcontractor to perform any of the Work.  The term Sub-
subcontractor is referred to as if singular in number and masculine in gender and means a Sub-
subcontractor or an authorized representative thereof. 

 
 
5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACT AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK 
 
5.2.1 The CMAR’s identification of, Owner’s objection to, and proposed substitution of Subcontractors 

shall comply with Article 5 of the Agreement.  
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

61 

 
5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS 
 

By an appropriate written agreement, the CMAR shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of 
the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the CMAR by the terms of the 
Agreement, and to assume toward the CMAR all the obligations and responsibilities which the 
CMAR, by the Agreement, assumes toward the Owner and the Architect/Engineer.  The 
agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Architect/Engineer under 
the Agreement with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that the 
subcontracting thereof will not prejudice the Owner's nor the Architect/Engineer's rights, and shall 
allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the CMAR-Subcontractor 
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the CMAR that the CMAR, by 
the Agreement, has against the Owner.  Where appropriate, the CMAR shall require each 
Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with his Sub-subcontractors.  The CMAR shall 
make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, a copy 
of the Agreement to which the Subcontractor will be bound by this paragraph 5.3, and identify to 
the Subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at 
variance with the Agreement.  Each Subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such documents 
available to his Sub-subcontractors.  

 
ARTICLE 6 

 
 WORK BY THE OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
 
6.1 THE OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS 
 
6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform work related to the Project with his own forces, and 

award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project. 
 
6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the 

site, the term Contractor in the Agreement in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes 
such separate Agreement for Construction Services. 

 
6.1.3 The CMAR shall coordinate the Work with other contractors and with the Owner and the Owner's 

labor crews.  
 
 
6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
6.2.1 The CMAR shall afford the Owner and other contractor’s reasonable opportunity for the 

introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their work, and 
shall connect and coordinate his Work with theirs as required by the Agreement.  

 
6.2.2 If any part of the Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of the Owner or any 

other contractor, the CMAR shall, prior to proceeding with the Work, promptly report to the 
Architect/Engineer any apparent discrepancies or defects in such other work that render it 
unsuitable for such proper execution and results.  Failure of the CMAR so to report shall 
constitute an acceptance of the Owner's or separate contractors' work as fit and proper to receive 
his Work. 

 
6.2.3 CMAR may share responsibility for defective work not reported, yet known by CMAR to be 

deficient. 
 
6.2.4 Should the CMAR wrongfully cause damage to the Work or property of the Owner, or to other 

work on the site, the CMAR shall promptly remedy such damage as provided in subparagraph 
10.2.5. 

 
6.2.5 Should the CMAR wrongfully cause damage to the Work or property of any other contractor, the 

CMAR shall upon due notice promptly attempt to settle with such other contractor by agreement, 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

62 

or otherwise to resolve the dispute.  If such separate contractor sues or initiates a proceeding 
against the Owner on account of any damage alleged to have been caused by the CMAR, the 
Owner shall notify the CMAR who shall defend such proceedings at the CMAR's expense.  If any 
judgment or award against the Owner arises therefrom the CMAR shall pay or satisfy it and shall 
reimburse the Owner for all attorneys' fees and court or other costs which the Owner has 
incurred.  The Owner shall have the right to select counsel for any such defense. 

 
6.3 THE OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP 
 

If a dispute arises between the CMAR and other contractors as to their responsibility for daily and 
other periodic cleaning up as required by paragraph 4.15, the Owner may clean up and charge 
the cost thereof to the contractors the Owner determines responsible therefor. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE 7 
 

TESTING 
 
7.1 If the Agreement, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having 

jurisdiction require any portion of the Work to be inspected, tested, or approved, the CMAR shall 
give the Owner and Architect/Engineer timely notice of its readiness so the Owner and 
Architect/Engineer may observe such inspection, testing, or approval.  The CMAR shall bear all 
costs of such inspections, tests, or approvals required by public authorities.  Unless otherwise 
provided, the Owner shall bear all costs of other inspections, tests, or approvals. The CMAR 
acknowledges and agrees that Loc. Gov’t Code § 271.118 requires that the Owner must provide 
or contract for, independently of the CMAR, the inspection services, the testing of construction 
materials engineering, and the verification testing services necessary for acceptance of the facility 
by the Owner. The Owner shall select those services in accordance with Section 2254.004, Gov’t 
Code. 

 
7.2 If the Architect/Engineer determines that any portion of the Work requires special inspection, 

testing, or approval which paragraph 7.1 does not include, he will, upon written authorization from 
the Owner, instruct the CMAR to order such special inspection, testing or approval, and the 
CMAR shall give notice as provided in paragraph 7.1.  The Owner shall bear the costs of such 
tests, and an appropriate amendment shall be issued. 

 
7.3 If any special inspection or testing reveals a failure of the Work to comply with the requirements 

of the Agreement, the CMAR shall bear all costs thereof and of any subsequent testing, including 
compensation for the Owner and Architect/Engineer's additional services made necessary by 
such failure. 

 
7.4 Required certificates of inspection, testing or approval shall be requested by the CMAR and 

promptly delivered by him to the Architect/Engineer.  After reviewing the certificates of inspection, 
the Architect/Engineer will forward the certificates to the Owner with approvals or 
recommendations as appropriate. 

 
7.5 If the Architect/Engineer is to observe the inspections, tests, or approval required by the 

Agreement, he will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the source of supply. 
 
7.6 The Architect/Engineer may require materials to be inspected, tested and approved before being 

incorporated in the Work.  Any of the Work in which such materials are used without prior 
required test and approval or written permission of the Architect/Engineer may be ordered 
removed and replaced at the CMAR's expense.  The selection of the method of testing shall be 
designated by the Owner.  When requested, the CMAR shall furnish a complete written statement 
of the origin, composition, and/or manufacture of any or all materials that are to be used in the 
Work.  The Owner may contract with an independent testing laboratory to perform field testing.  
Where the CMAR notifies the Owner of scheduled Work requiring sampling and testing and the 
CMAR cancels the Work for any reason whatsoever after the laboratory personnel have departed 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

63 

their office for the project site, the testing laboratory shall bill the Owner for their time and travel 
expenses and the Owner shall deduct said charges from amounts due the CMAR. 

 
7.7 PLANT INSPECTION 
 

If the volume of the Work, Progress Schedule, and other considerations warrant, the 
Architect/Engineer may undertake the inspection of materials at the source.  It is understood, 
however, that no obligation is assumed to inspect materials in that manner. 

 
Plant inspection will be undertaken only upon condition that: 
 
(a) The cooperation and assistance of the CMAR and the producer with whom he has 

contracted for materials is assured. 
 
(b) The representative of the Architect/Engineer shall have full entry at all times to such parts 

of the plant as may concern the manufacture or production of the materials ordered. 
 

(c) Where inspection requirements are such that it is necessary to use scales, measures 
and/or other equipment which may be required by the Architect/Engineer for the control 
of production and use of materials, the CMAR shall be responsible for furnishing and 
calibrating such equipment. 

 
(d) In those cases where inspection of any item is requested for periods other than daylight 

hours, it shall be provided under the following conditions: 
 

(1) Continuous production of materials for the Owner’s use is necessary due to the 
production volume being handled by the plant. 

 
(2) The lighting provided by the plant is approved by the Architect/Engineer to be 

adequate to allow satisfactory inspection of the material being produced. 
 

(e) Materials produced under the Owner’s inspections will be for the Owner’s use only unless 
released in writing by the Architect/Engineer. 

 
7.8 PRETESTED MATERIALS 
 

Subject to conditions established in a written agreement between a supplier and the 
Architect/Engineer, pretested and approved materials may be incorporated into the Work. 

 
7.9 SOURCES OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY OF MATERIALS 
 
7.9.1 The Architect/Engineer shall approve the source of supply of each of the materials before delivery 

is started.  At his option, the Architect/Engineer may sample and test materials to determine 
compliance with the Agreement Documents before delivery is started.  If it is found after testing 
that sources of supply previously approved do not produce uniform and satisfactory products, or if 
the product from any source proves unacceptable at any time, the CMAR shall furnish materials 
from other approved sources.  Only materials conforming to the requirements of the Agreement 
Documents and approved by the Architect/Engineer shall be used in the Work.  All materials 
being used are subject to inspection or test at any time during their preparation or use.  Any 
material which has been tested and accepted at the source of supply may be subjected to a 
check test after delivery and all materials which, when retested, do not meet the requirements of 
the Specifications, will be rejected.  No material which after approval has in any way become unfit 
for use shall be used in the Work.   

 
 If, for any reason, the CMAR selects a material which is approved for use by the 

Architect/Engineer by sampling and testing or other means, and then decides to change to a 
different material requiring additional sampling and testing for approval, the expense for such 
sampling and testing may be deducted from any monies due or to become due to the CMAR. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

64 

7.9.2 Where reference is made to the test procedures, ASTM, AASHTO or bulletins for the quality of 
materials or sampling and testing, the latest standard, tentative standard or bulletin issued prior to 
the date of the Bid shall govern. 

 
7.9.3 If it is the normal trade practice for manufacturers to provide warranties or guaranties for the 

materials and equipment provided herein, the CMAR shall turn over and/or pass through the 
guarantees and warranties over to the Architect/Engineer.  The scope and extent of such 
warranties or guarantees will not be a factor in selecting the successful Bidder. 

 
 ARTICLE 8 

 
 TIME 
 
8.1 DEFINITIONS 
 
8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, the “Contract Time” is the period of time allotted in the Contract 

Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work as defined in subparagraph 8.1.3, including 
authorized adjustments thereof. 

 
8.1.2 The “Date of Commencement” of the Work is the date established in the Notice to Proceed.  If 

there is no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Agreement or such other date as may be 
established therein. 

 
8.1.3 The date of “Substantial Completion” of the Work or designated portion thereof is the date 

approved by the Owner and certified by the Architect/Engineer when construction is sufficiently 
complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can occupy or utilize the 
Work or designated portion thereof for the use for which it is intended.  A Certificate of 
Occupancy or Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, issued by the governing authority, is required 
for Substantial Completion unless waived by the Owner. 

 
8.1.4 The word "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean a calendar day. 
 
8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION 
 
8.2.1 Time is of the essence in the performance of the Agreement. 
 
8.2.2 The CMAR shall begin the Work on the Date of Commencement.  The CMAR shall carry the 

Work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion within 
the Contract Time. 

 
8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME  
 
8.3.1 When a delay defined herein as excusable prevents the CMAR from completing the work within 

the Contract Time, the CMAR shall be entitled to an extension of time, and in certain instances to 
compensation for the direct cost of delay, as set forth in 8.3.1.3.  The Contract Time shall be 
extended by the number of calendar days lost by reason of excusable delay, as measured by the 
CMAR’s Work Progress Schedule (or current update).  All extensions of time shall be given in 
calendar days.  In no event will an extension of time be granted for delays that merely extend the 
duration of non-critical activities, or which consume only float without delaying the Project 
completion date. 
 
8.3.1.1 Time Extensions for weather days shall be granted in accordance with Section 018000. 
 
8.3.1.2 Non-Weather Excusable Non-compensable Delay.  The CMAR shall be entitled only to 

an extension of time for unforeseen delays not within the control of or arising from the 
fault of either the CMAR or the Owner caused by the following: 

 
a. Strikes and labor disputes that cause unusual delay to the Work onsite or to the 

delivery of materials or equipment to be incorporated into the Work; 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

65 

b. Physical damage to the work caused by circumstances beyond the control of the 
CMAR; 

c. War, acts or threats of terrorism, civil unrest, or insurrection; 
d. Other unforeseeable causes beyond the control of either the CMAR or the Owner. 

 
8.3.1.3 Excusable Compensable Delay.  The CMAR shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment 

of cost as well as a time extension for delays caused by the following: 
 

a. Failure of the Owner or the Architect/Engineer to take timely actions as required 
under the Contract Documents, or to provide information required by the Contract 
Documents and necessary for the CMAR to proceed with the Work in a timely 
manner; 

b. Detrimental or obstructive actions of separate contractors employed by the Owner; 
c. Failure of the Owner to provide access to the Work site as provided in this 

Agreement; 
d. Failure of the Owner to provide materials which are to be furnished by the Owner, as 

required under the Contract Documents, consistent with the Work Progress 
Schedule; 

e. Errors or omissions in design which the Architect/Engineer corrects by means of 
Change Order(s); 

f. Unanticipated physical conditions at the Site which the Architect/Engineer corrects by 
means of Change Order(s); 

g. Owner requested Change Orders; 
h. Suspensions for cause under 8.3.1.4 which are determined not to have been within 

the control of the CMAR; or 
i. Suspensions for convenience under 8.3.1.5 which prevents the CMAR from 

completing the Work within the Contract Time. 
 
The CMAR's compensation in the event of such delays, items 8.3.1.3.a – i above, shall 
be the cost of extended general conditions for the period of delay.  Extended general 
conditions costs incurred solely as a result of the delay shall be determined pursuant to 
Article 12. 

 
8.3.1.4 Suspension of Work for Cause.  The Owner may, at any time without prior notice, 

suspend all or any part of the Work, if, in the Owner’s sole discretion, it is considered 
reasonably necessary to do so to prevent or correct any condition of the Work, which 
constitutes an immediate safety hazard, or which may reasonably be expected to impair 
the integrity, usefulness or longevity of the Work when completed.  The Owner shall give 
the CMAR a written notice of suspension for cause, setting forth the reason for the 
suspension and identifying the Work to be suspended.  Upon receipt of such notice, the 
CMAR shall immediately stop the Work so identified. As soon as practicable following the 
issuance of such a notice, the Owner, with the assistance of the Architect/Engineer, shall 
initiate and complete an investigation of the circumstances giving rise to the suspension, 
and shall issue a written determination of their cause.  The CMAR will not be entitled to 
an extension of time or compensation for delay resulting from a suspension if the 
Owner’s investigation determines that the cause was within the control of the CMAR. 

 If the cause is determined not to have been within the control of the CMAR, and the 
suspension prevents the CMAR from completing the Work within the Contract Time, the 
suspension is an Excusable Compensable Delay.  Suspensions of work under this 
provision shall be no longer than is reasonably necessary to identify and remedy the 
conditions giving rise to the suspension. 

 
8.3.1.5 Suspension of Work for Owner’s Convenience.  Upon seven (7) Construction days’ prior 

written notice to the CMAR, the Owner may at any time without breach of the Agreement 
suspend all or any portion of the Work for a period of up to thirty (30) days for its own 
convenience.  The Owner shall give the CMAR a written notice of suspension for 
convenience, which shall set forth the number of days for which the Work, or any portion 
of it, will be suspended, and the date on which the suspension of Work shall cease.  
When such a suspension prevents the CMAR from completing the Work within the 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

66 

Contract Time, it is Excusable Compensable Delay.  A notice of suspension for 
convenience may be modified by the Owner at any time on seven (7) calendar days’ prior 
written notice to the CMAR.  If the Owner suspends the Work for its convenience for 
more than sixty (60) consecutive calendar days, the CMAR may elect to terminate the 
Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Article 14. 

 
8.3.1.6 Concurrent Delay.  When the completion of the Work is simultaneously delayed by more 

than one of the categories described under 8.3.1, the CMAR will be entitled to a time 
extension only for the period of concurrent delay determined to be excusable and will be 
entitled to compensation only for the period of concurrent delay determined to be 
excusable and compensable. 

 
8.3.1.7 Except as expressly provided under 8.3.1, the CMAR shall not be entitled to an extension 

of the Contract Time, and shall bear all responsibility for financial risks which may accrue 
from various causes of delay in the construction progress. 

 
8.3.2 Any request for extension of time shall be made in writing to the Owner not more than five (5) 

business days after the commencement of the delay; otherwise, it shall be waived.  Such request 
shall state the nature of the delay, activities potentially affected, and shall be accompanied by 
sufficient written evidence to document the delay.  In the case of a continuing delay only one (1) 
request is necessary.  The CMAR shall provide an estimate of the probable effect of such delay 
on the progress of the Work.  A conference shall be held between the CMAR and Owner within 
five (5) business days of the commencement of the delay to establish a proposed new Work 
Progress Schedule for the Work. 

 
8.3.2.1 Contents of Time Extension Requests.  Each time extension request shall be 

accompanied by a quantitative demonstration of the impact of the delay on Project 
completion time, based on the current Work Progress Schedule.  Time extension 
requests shall include a reasonably detailed narrative setting forth (1) the nature of the 
delay and its cause, (2) the basis of the CMAR’s proposed entitlement to a time 
extension, (3) documentation of the actual impacts of the delay, and any concurrent 
delays, (4) description and documentation of steps taken by the CMAR to mitigate the 
effect of the delay, including, when appropriate, the modification of the Work Progress 
Schedule, and (5) such other information that the CMAR considers necessary to justify its 
request for an extension of time.  No time extensions shall be granted for delays that do 
not affect the Project completion time. 

 
8.3.2.2 Owner’s Response.  The Owner shall respond to the time extension request by providing 

to the CMAR written notice of the number of days granted, and giving its reason if this 
number differs from the number of days requested by the CMAR.  A Change Order 
reflecting the extension of time shall be executed by the parties in accordance with Article 
12 and the extension of time is effective on the date the Change Order is approved.   

 
8.3.3 All changes to the Contract Time or GMP made as a result of such requests shall be by Change 

Order, as provided under Article 12. 
 
8.4 FAILURE TO COMPLETE WORK ON TIME  
 
8.4.1 The Contract Time for the completion of the Work is an essential element of the Agreement.  The 

CMAR's failure to complete the Work within such time will cause damage to the Owner. 
 
8.4.2 Should the CMAR fail to complete the Work within the Contract Time, including all officially 

approved extensions thereto, the Owner shall collect from the CMAR or deduct from any funds 
owed him the amount named as liquidated damages in the Contract Documents. 

 It is agreed that the County’s actual damages would be extremely difficult, impractical, or 
impossible to calculate and, therefore, the amount of liquidated damages, as set forth in the GMP 
Proposal is agreed to be a reasonable estimate of the County’s actual damages and will be 
retained as liquidated damages and not as a penalty.  Liquidated damages will be in the amount 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

67 

of $2,000 for each day past the date established for Substantial Completion of the CMAR’s Work 
on the Project. 

 
8.4.3 After the Substantial Completion inspection by the Owner, the CMAR will be allowed sixty (60) 

days within which to correct all deficiencies listed in the inspection Punch List, unless extended 
by mutual agreement.  Failure of the CMAR to complete such corrections within the stipulated 
time will be reported to the CMAR's surety for correction.  In the event there is no surety, the 
Owner may initiate action to complete corrective work out of the remaining Agreement funds in 
accordance with paragraph 3.4 and 14.1. 

 
8.5 FORCE MAJEURE  

 
If the performance by either party of any of its obligations under the Agreement is interrupted or 
delayed due to an act of God or the common enemy or as the result of war, riot, civil commotion, 
sovereign conduct, or the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to the Agreement, 
then it shall be excused from performance for such period of time as is reasonably necessary to 
remedy the effects thereof. 

 
 ARTICLE 9 
 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
9.1 GMP (Guaranteed Maximum Price) 
 
9.1.1 The GMP is defined and described in the Agreement between Travis County, Texas and CMAR 

and, including authorized adjustments thereto, is the total amount payable by Owner to the 
CMAR for the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 

 
9.1.2 The Project will be bid out to subcontractors at or near the 100% Construction Document Phase.  

The CMAR will include a CMAR Contingency in its GMP equal to a percentage of the Cost of the 
Work.  The exact percentage will be the percentage proposed by the CMAR in the CMAR’s RFP 
response.  All buy-out savings post-GMP will be transferred into the CMAR Contingency.  All 
transfers out of the CMAR Contingency to cover any Project cost will require Owner approval, 
which will not be unreasonably withheld.  At Final Completion any and all unused CMAR 
Contingency funds will be kept by the Owner. 

 
9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 
9.2.1 Before the first Application for Payment, as defined herein, the CMAR shall submit to the 

Architect/Engineer a schedule of values allocated to the various portions of the Work, prepared in 
such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner or the 
Architect/Engineer may require.  This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner or the 
Architect/Engineer, shall be used only as a basis for the CMAR's Applications for Payment.  

 
9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 
 
9.3.1 At least five (5) days before the date for each progress payment established in the Agreement, 

the CMAR shall submit to Owner an itemized “Application for Payment”, dated and substantiated, 
as the Owner may require, reflecting retainage as provided elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
9.3.2 Payments may be made on account of materials or equipment not incorporated in the Work but 

delivered and suitably stored at the site.  If approved in advance by the Owner, payments may 
similarly be made for materials or equipment suitably stored at some other location agreed upon 
in writing.  Payments for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned 
upon submission by the CMAR of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner 
to establish the Owner's title to such materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's 
interest, including applicable insurance and transportation to the site for those materials and 
equipment stored off the site. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

68 

9.3.3 The CMAR warrants that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered by an Application for 
Payment will pass to the Owner either by incorporation in the construction or upon the receipt of 
payment by the CMAR, whichever occurs first, free and clear of all liens, claims, security 
interests, or encumbrances, hereinafter referred to in this Article 9 as "liens"; and that no Work, 
materials, or equipment covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired in the 
CMAR's behalf, or by any other person performing Work at the site or furnishing materials and 
equipment for the Project.  Rather, the purchase shall be in the Owner’s behalf. 

 
9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT 
 
9.4.1 Owner will, within five (5) days after the receipt of the CMAR's Application for Payment, either 

certify his approval and forward the Application for Payment, with a copy to the CMAR, for such 
amount as the OWNER determines is properly due, or notify the CMAR in writing his reasons for 
withholding a Certificate for Payment as provided in subparagraph 9.6.1. 

 
9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by Owner, based on his 

observations at the site as provided in the Contract Documents and the data comprising the 
Application for Payment, that the Work has progressed to the point indicated, that the quality of 
the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the CMAR is entitled to 
payment in the amount certified.  This certification is subject to an evaluation of the Work for 
conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any 
subsequent tests required by or performed under the Contract Documents, to minor deviations 
from the Contract Documents correctable prior to completion of the Work, and to any specific 
qualifications stated in the Certificate for Payment.  However, by issuing a Certificate for 
Payment, Owner shall not thereby be deemed to represent that he had made continuous on-site 
inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work or that he has made any examination to 
ascertain how or for what purpose the CMAR has used the monies previously paid on account of 
the GMP. 

 
9.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
9.5.1 After Owner has received the Application for Payment, the Owner shall make payment within 

thirty (30) days.  Objections to payment shall be for any incurred breach of the Contract 
Documents by the CMAR, including, but not limited to, the specific grounds for withholding 
payment set forth in subparagraph 9.6.1.  The Owner shall retain not less than five percent (5%) 
of each payment until final completion and acceptance of all Work covered by the Agreement 
unless the retainage amount is reduced following Substantial Completion subject to paragraph 
9.8.2. 

 
9.5.2 The CMAR shall promptly pay each Subcontractor, upon receipt of payment from the Owner, out 

of the amount paid to the CMAR on account of such Subcontractor's work, the amount of which 
said Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting the percentage actually retained, from payments to the 
CMAR on account of such Subcontractor's work.  The CMAR shall, by an appropriate agreement 
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to his Sub-
subcontractors in similar manner.  All payments to Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors shall 
be made within ten (10) days of receipt of payment for work claimed in an Application for 
Payment that Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor performed.  Such Application for Payments 
shall designate the dollar amount of work which Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor provided to 
allow for the Owner’s tracking of Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) requirements. 

 
9.5.3 The Owner may, on request and at his discretion, furnish to any Subcontractor, if practicable, 

information regarding the percentage of completion or the amounts applied for by the CMAR and 
the action taken thereon by the Architect/Engineer and the Owner on account of work done by 
such Subcontractor. 

 
9.5.4 Neither the Owner nor the Architect/Engineer shall have any obligations to pay or to see to the 

payment of any monies to any Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

69 

9.5.5 No Certificate for Payment, nor any Progress Payment, nor any partial or entire use or occupancy 
of the Project by the Owner, shall constitute an acceptance of any Work not in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. 

 
9.6 PAYMENTS WITHHELD 
 
9.6.1 Owner may decline to certify payment and may withhold his Certificate for Payment in whole or in 

part, to the extent reasonably necessary, if in his opinion he is unable to make representations to 
the Owner as provided in subparagraph 9.4.2.  In such situations, Owner will notify the CMAR as 
provided in subparagraph 9.4.1.  If the CMAR and Owner cannot agree on a revised amount, 
Owner will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which he is able to make 
such representations to the Owner. Owner may also decline to certify payment or, because of 
subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent observations, he may nullify the whole or any 
part of any Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in his 
opinion to protect the Owner from loss because of: 

 
1. defective Work not remedied; 

 
2. third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims; 

 
3. failure of the CMAR to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials, 

or equipment; 
 

4. reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the 
GMP; 

 
5. damage to the Owner or another Contractor; 

 
6. reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time; 

 
7. failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; or 
 
8. failure of the CMAR to correct any serious violation (as determined the Travis County 

Project Safety Manager) of OSHA standards or non-compliance with Article 10 - 
Protection of Persons and Property.  

 
9.6.2 When the above grounds in subparagraph 9.6.1 are removed, payment shall be made for 

amounts withheld because of them. 
 
9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT 
 
9.7.1 If the Owner does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the CMAR, within seven 

(7) days after receipt of the CMAR's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the 
CMAR within thirty-seven (37) days of receipt of the Application  for Payment, then the CMAR 
may, upon ten (10) additional days' written notice to the Owner, commencing upon Owner’s 
receipt of such notice, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. 

 
 The GMP shall be increased by the amount of the CMAR's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay, 

and start-up, which shall all be effected by appropriate Change Order in accordance with 
paragraph 12.3. 

 
9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 
9.8.1 When the CMAR considers that the Work, or a designated portion thereof which is acceptable to 

the Owner, is substantially complete as defined in subparagraph 8.1.3, the CMAR shall prepare 
for submission to the Owner and the Architect/Engineer a list of items to be completed or 
corrected.  The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the 
CMAR to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.  When the Owner and 
the Architect/Engineer, on the basis of an inspection, determine that the Work or designated 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

70 

portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect/Engineer will then prepare a “Certificate of 
Substantial Completion” which shall show the date of Substantial Completion established by the 
Owner, shall state the responsibilities of the Owner and the CMAR for security, maintenance, 
heat, utilities, damage to the Work, and insurance, and the time within which the CMAR shall 
complete the items listed therein.  Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall 
commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof 
unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.  The Certificate of 
Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the CMAR and Owner for their written acceptance of 
the responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate of Substantial Completion.  

 
9.8.2 Upon Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof and upon application by 

the CMAR and certification by the Architect/Engineer, the Owner shall make payment, reflecting 
adjustment in retainage, if any, for such Work or portion thereof, as provided in the Contract 
Documents or shall notify the CMAR in writing of any objections to payment within the time 
provided in the Contract Documents for payment.  Objections to payment shall be for any 
uncured breach of the Contract Document by the CMAR, including, but not limited to, the specific 
grounds for withholding payment set forth in paragraph 9.6.1. 

 
9.9 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT 
 
9.9.1 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon 

receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect/Engineer will promptly make such 
inspection and, when he finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the 
Agreement fully performed, he will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that on 
the basis of his observations, and inspections the Work has been completed in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due 
the CMAR, and noted in said final Certificate for Payment is due and payable.  The 
Architect/Engineer's final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that the 
conditions precedent to the Contractors being entitled to final payment as set forth in 
subparagraph 9.9.2 have been fulfilled. 

 
 
9.9.2 Neither the final payment nor the remaining retained percentage shall become due until the 

CMAR submits to the Architect/Engineer (1) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and 
equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or his property 
might in any way be responsible, have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) consent of surety, if 
any, to final payment, and (3) if required by the Owner, another date establishing payment or 
satisfaction of all such obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens arising out of 
the Agreement, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner.  If any 
Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the CMAR may 
furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify Owner against any such lien.  If any such 
lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, the CMAR shall refund to the Owner all 
monies that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien, including costs and 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

 
9.9.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through 

no fault of the CMAR or by the issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the 
Architect/Engineer so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the CMAR and certification 
by the Architect/Engineer, and without terminating the Agreement, make payment of the balance 
due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted.  If the remaining balance for Work 
not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, 
and if bonds have been furnished as provided in paragraph 9.9.2, the written consent of the 
surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and 
accepted shall be submitted by the CMAR to the Architect/Engineer prior to certification of such 
payment.  Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment. 

 
9.9.4 The acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver and release of all claims as set forth in 

Article 9 of the Agreement. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

71 

ARTICLE 10 
 
 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
 
10.1 SAFETY REGULATIONS 
 
10.1.1 It shall be the duty and responsibility of the CMAR to be familiar with and comply with all 

requirements of Public Law 91-596, 29 U.S.C. Secs. 651 et seq., the Occupational Safety and 
Health Act of 1970. (OSHA) and all amendments thereto, and to strictly enforce and comply with 
all of the provisions of the Act. 

 
10.1.2 The CMAR shall have a copy of the current applicable OSHA safety and health regulations on 

site. 
 
10.1.3 CMAR shall be responsible for any fines, penalties or charges by any regulatory body by reason 

of any violation of safety or health regulations by the CMAR or Sub-contractor. 
 
10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
 

The Provisions of this Article 10shall be referred to collectively as the “Safety Program”. 
 
10.2.1 The CMAR shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable 

protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:  
 

1. all employees on the Work and all other persons who may be affected thereby;  
 
2. all the Work and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage 

on or off the site, under the care, custody, or control of the CMAR or any of his 
Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors; and  

 
3. other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, 

pavements, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or 
replacement in the course of construction.  

 
10.2.2 The CMAR shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and lawful orders of any public authority or authority having jurisdiction bearing on the 
safety of persons or property for their protection from damage, injury, or loss. 

 
10.2.3 The CMAR shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and progress of the Work, 

all reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 
warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of 
adjacent utilities. 

 
10.2.4 When the use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment is necessary 

for the execution of the Work, the CMAR shall exercise the utmost care and shall carry on such 
activities under the supervision of properly qualified personnel. 

 
10.2.5 The CMAR shall promptly remedy all damage or loss to any property referred to in paragraph 

6.2.4 and clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in whole or in part by the CMAR, any 
Subcontractor, any Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, 
or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and for which the CMAR is responsible 
under clauses 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to the acts or omissions 
of the Owner or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose 
acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the CMAR.  
The foregoing obligations of the CMAR are in addition to his obligations under paragraph 4.18. 

 
10.2.6 The CMAR shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty shall 

be the prevention of accidents.   
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

72 

10.2.7 The CMAR shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger the 
safety of the CMAR or the work. 

 
10.3 EMERGENCIES 
 
10.3.1 In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the CMAR shall act, at his 

discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss.  Any additional compensation or 
extension of time claimed by the CMAR on account of emergency work shall be determined as 
provided in Article 12 Changes in Work.  

 
10.4 CMAR DUTIES FOR SAFETY PROGRAM 
 
10.4.1 The CMAR shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions 

and programs in connection with the Work.  This requirement applies continuously and is not 
limited to normal working hours. 

 
10.4.2 Temporary items such as, but not limited to; scaffolding, staging, lifting, and hoisting devices, 

barricades, and safety and construction procedures necessary for completion of the Project shall 
be the responsibility of the CMAR and his sub-contractors and shall comply with all applicable 
codes and regulations.  It shall not be the responsibility of the Owner, Project Safety Manager, as 
defined herein, or their representatives to determine if the CMAR, a sub-contractor or their 
representatives are in compliance with the aforementioned regulations. 

 
10.5 SAFETY PLANNING 
  
10.5.1 The effectiveness of the Safety Program depends upon the active participation and sincere 

cooperation of all Contractors' employees and the coordination of their efforts in carrying out the 
following basic responsibilities.  It shall be the responsibility of all Contractors to: 

 
1. Properly plan all work to eliminate personal injury, property damage, and the loss of 

productive efforts. 
 
2. Establish and maintain a system for early detection and correction of unsafe practices and 

conditions. 
 
3. Provide adequate protection for adjacent public and private properties and to ensure the 

safety of the public at all times. 
 
4. Establish and conduct safety education programs designed to gain, stimulate and maintain 

the interest and active participation of all employees through: 
 

A. Safety meetings and communication. 
 
B. Investigation of accidents/incidents that have caused or could cause injuries and damage 

to determine the cause and the taking of necessary corrective actions. 
 
C. Use of proper work procedures, personal protective equipment and mechanical guards. 
 
D. Safety instruction for individual employees and safety training programs. 
 
E. Maintenance of records of accidents, incidents and losses and development of 

injury/losses experience summaries. 
 

10.6 ADMINISTRATION AND ORGANIZATION 
 
10.6.1 Travis County will designate an Owner’s representative to act as the “Project Safety Manager”.  

The Project Safety Manager will: 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

73 

1. Interpret regulations and Agreement requirements as they apply to the safety and health of 
persons on the Work site. 

 
2. Perform regular inspections of the Work areas to monitor and enforce Contractor compliance 

with the Safety Program. 
 
3. Stop any unsafe work practices in progress. 
 
4. Report all accidents immediately to Owner and the Travis County Risk Manager. 
 
5. Identify hazards and their mitigation. 
 
6. Attend all meetings that can impact safety. 
 
7. Be a resource for safety and health to all entities involved in the construction Project. 
 

10.6.2 All Contractors and Sub-contractors working on the Project shall designate an experienced and 
competent onsite “Safety Representative”. 

 
1. The name of the onsite Safety Representative will be provided to the Owner and the Project 

Safety Manager prior to the CMAR or Sub-contractor starting Work at the job site. 
 
2. The Safety Representative shall have successfully completed the 10-hour minimum OSHA 

construction safety-training course prior to commencement of the Work. 
 
3. The CMAR shall submit a copy of its training certificates, issued by the training organization, 

as evidence of completion of the aforementioned safety training courses to the Owner and 
the Project Safety Manager prior to commencement of the Work. 

 
4. The Safety Representative shall be responsible for implementing the Safety Program, 

ensuring that job site safety requirements and procedures are being accomplished, 
conducting safety inspections of Work being performed, conducting weekly safety meetings 
with craft employees and submitting reports as identified in the Contract Documents. 

 
5. The Safety Representative shall have the authority to correct unsafe acts or conditions. 
 
6. The Safety Representative shall be responsible for a continuing survey of its operations, to 

ensure that the probable causes of injury of accident are controlled and that operating 
equipment, tools and facilities are used, inspected and maintained as required by applicable 
safety and health regulations. 

 
7. The Safety Representative shall make frequent and regular inspections of the job site.  

Unsafe acts and/or conditions noted during inspections shall be corrected immediately.  
 
10.6.3 CMAR Construction Safety Responsibilities 
 

1. All Contractors, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors working on this Project shall comply 
with this Safety Program and shall be responsible for its implementation and for providing the 
means and methods required for compliance. 

 
2. The CMAR shall furnish all information concerning safety of his operation on the Project as 

may be reasonably required by Owner or the Project Safety Manager. 
 

3. The CMAR shall develop, present, ensure attendance and successful completion of each 
Contractor and Sub-contractor worker in a Site Specific Safety Orientation prior to their 
deployment on the jobsite and start of Work.  The training will include topics specific to the scope 
of Work including: 

 
 Procedures for emergency evacuation 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

74 

 Hazardous material used on the job site. 
 Proper work attire 
 Personal protective equipment 
 Reporting injuries and accidents 
 Stopping/restarting work in an imminently hazardous situation 

 
4. The CMAR shall instruct each employee on the job site in the recognition and avoidance of 

unsafe acts and/or conditions applicable to the Work environment to control or eliminate 
injury or illness.  The CMAR shall enforce the Project and statutory safety rules with its 
employees. 

 
5. The CMAR is responsible for notifying Owner of any hazardous chemicals or substances that 

are brought or caused to have been brought on the job site.  The CMAR is responsible for the 
legal storage, use and disposal of waste of any hazardous chemicals or substances. 

 
6. The CMAR shall provide Owner with a copy of CMAR’s “Hazard Communication Program” 

and the “Material Safety Data Sheet(s)” (MSDS) for the chemical(s) or substance(s) intended 
for use on the site.  A bookcase, centrally located, will be dedicated for this information.  The 
CMAR is responsible for keeping this information current.  

 
7. The CMAR and any subcontractors so notified shall make all reasonable efforts to correct 

unsafe conditions or acts.  Satisfactory corrective action shall be taken within the specified 
abatement time.  If the Sub-contractor refuses to correct unsafe or unhealthy conditions or 
acts, or eliminate fire hazards, Owner may take steps in accordance with the Agreement. 

 
8. The CMAR shall require each of his Subcontractors (all tiers), vendors and suppliers to abide 

by the Project safety and health requirements.  
 
9. The CMAR shall not load or permit any part of the Work to be loaded so as to endanger the 

safety of the CMAR or the Work. 
 
10. The CMAR shall provide to Owner and Project Safety Manager an emergency on-call phone 

number, suitable to contact the CMAR’s representative 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 
during the duration of the Agreement and Work. 

 
11. Tool Box Training – The CMAR and Subcontractors will hold weekly safety training in their 

work area with their entire crew. 
 
10.7 STOPPING AND RESTARTING WORK 
 
10.7.1 The Owner shall have the right to stop Work whenever safety violations are observed which could 

imminently jeopardize the well-being of personnel and equipment.  The expense of any such 
Work stoppage and resultant standby time shall be charged to the CMAR and deducted from the 
next Application for Payment. 

 
10.7.2 Work that has been stopped for safety reasons can only be restarted when the full corrective 

action have been implemented and the hazardous conditions or actions no longer exist.  The 
decision to restart the Work will be made with the concurrence of Owner, the Project Safety 
Manager, the CMAR and his affected Sub-contractor(s) and will be documented in writing. 

 
10.8 SPECIFIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
 
10.8.1 Fall Protection 

 
1. At no time shall any employee be exposed to the potential of a fall of six (6) feet or more 

without using required fall protection.  Each employee on a walking/working surface six (6) 
feet or more above lower levels shall be protected from falling by the use of a guardrail 
system, a safety net system, or a personal fall arrest system. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

75 

2. The CMAR shall prepare a “Fall Protection Program”, which means a detailed written 
description of how the CMAR and his Subcontractors will comply with the six (6) foot fall 
protection requirements for the protection of all employees throughout all phases of the Work.  
The Fall Protection Program shall be submitted to the Project Safety Manager for review and 
acceptance prior to the commencement of Work.  The Fall Protection Program shall be 
maintained on site and be available upon request. 

 
10.8.2 Drug and Alcohol Testing 
 

1. Employee impairment is prohibited - No employee will use unlawful drugs or report for work 
or will work impaired by any substance, lawful or unlawful. 

 
2. All CMAR and Sub-contractor employees are required to report to work in proper condition to 

perform their assigned duties.  As a necessary part of the overall commitment to maintaining 
a safe and productive Work environment, the possession, use, manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, or presence of any controlled substance or alcohol will be prohibited on all 
Travis County construction sites. 

 
3. All employees of the CMAR and any Subcontractors will be required to be tested for 

substance abuse.  Results of all post-accident and reasonable suspicion tests will be 
provided to Owner and the Project Safety Manager. 

 
4. Post-accident test. 

 
A. CMAR and Sub-contractor employees involved in accidents or incidents will be required 

to be tested for substance abuse. 
 
B. The costs for this testing will be the responsibility of the CMAR, Subcontractor, or as set 

forth in their contracts with Travis County. 
 
C. Specimen collection for drug testing and the alcohol test will be completed within four (4) 

hours of the accident. 
 
D. Employees who produce a confirmed positive test will be permanently prohibited from 

working on any Travis County construction site permanently. 
 

5. Reasonable suspicion test. 
 
A. Where reasonable suspicion exists that an employee of the CMAR or any Subcontractor 

exhibits signs of substance abuse as detected by trained and knowledgeable supervision, 
the employee will be required to be tested for substance abuse. 

 
B. The costs for this testing will be the responsibility of the CMAR, Subcontractor, or as set 

forth in their contracts with Travis County. 
 
C. Specimen collection for drug testing and alcohol testing will be completed within four (4) 

hours of the accident. 
 
D. Employees who produce a confirmed positive test will be permanently prohibited from 

working on any Travis County construction site permanently. 
 

6. Reporting Testing Results 
 
A. Confidentiality - All test results will be treated as medically confidential. 
 
B. All test results will be maintained in a secure file maintained by Owner or the Project 

Safety Manager. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

76 

C. Acceptable documentation in lieu of actual test results, shall include a memorandum on 
the employer’s letterhead stating: 
 The employee’s full name,  
 The employee’s social security number,  
 The drug test date, an indication that drug results were negative, and 
 the name of laboratory in which the tests were performed. 
 

10.8.3 Fire Protection 
 
1. The CMAR is responsible for the development of the following programs and procedures: 
 

A. a fire protection and prevention program, 
  
B. a flame/spark/hot work permit procedure, and 
 
C. a flammable/combustible liquid storage/dispensing procedure 
 
These programs and procedures are to conform to OSHA and NFPA standards and must be 
submitted to the Project Safety Manager for review and acceptance prior to the 
commencement of Work. 

 
2. The CMAR shall be responsible for fire protection in his work and operational areas, including 

offices, tool rooms, and storage area 24 hours per day, seven days per week through the 
duration of the Agreement.  Approved firefighting equipment, in adequate quantities must be 
provided and maintained by the CMAR and the Contractors employees must be trained in the 
usage of such equipment. 

 
3. Fire protection equipment will be made available during all phases of construction. 
 

10.8.4 Tobacco-Free Work Site 
 

1. Travis County employees, contractors, sub-contractors, clients, invitees, and visitors may not 
use tobacco products on any Travis County property, indoors or outdoors, including parking 
lots, vehicles (private and County-owned or leased), and garages. 

 
2. Tobacco is not allowed at any worksite occupied by County employees or contractors, 

regardless of property ownership. 
 
3. Tobacco products include, but are not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, chewing tobacco, snuff, 

pipe tobacco, and any product that appears to be a tobacco product, such as an electronic or 
water vapor cigarette. 

 
4. The CMAR shall be responsible for enforcing the tobacco-free policy described in this section 

and ensuring compliance by his employees, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and other 
persons under the CMAR’s control or supervision.  The CMAR shall post appropriate signage 
communicating this policy in all work and operational areas of the Project site. 

 
10.8.5 All lifting and rigging procedures will be submitted to the Project Safety Manager for review and 

acceptance prior to lifting and erecting materials and/or equipment. 
 
10.8.6 The CMAR shall immediately report all accidents and incidents relating to construction activity to 

the Owner and the Project Safety Manager.  The primary responsibility for the accident/incident 
investigation lies with the CMAR.  However, each Contractor is expected to cooperate to the 
fullest extent in the Owner's investigation of all accidents and incidents.  

 
 
10.8.7 Personnel Clothing 

 
1. Shirts shall be worn at all times.  Sleeveless shirts and tank tops are not permitted. 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

77 

 
2. Long pants are required. 
 
3. Hard leather work shoes/boots are required.  Tennis type shoes, sandals, docksiders, hush 

puppies, steel-toed sneakers or bare feet are prohibited.  Additional foot protection shall be 
worn for certain operations such as, operating tamping equipment or jackhammers and 
where employees handle or carry heavy tools, objects, etc. Contractors are urged to 
recommend safety shoes to be worn by all employees. 

 
10.8.8 Personnel Protective Equipment 

 
1. CMAR is responsible for determining, training in use, providing and requiring the use of 

appropriate personal protective equipment in all operations where there is an exposure to 
hazardous conditions. There will be specific job site requirements established by Owner and 
the Project Safety Manager.  All records shall be maintained at a location accessible to the 
Owner and the Project Safety Manager. 

 
2. Approved hard hats meeting specifications contained in American National Standards 

Institute (ANTI), Z16.89.1-1916.81 and/or Z16.89.2-1971 are required in the construction 
area at all times.  CMAR's personnel must wear hard hats clearly marked with employee 
name, and company logo.  

 
3. Safety glasses with attached side shields meeting ANTI Z87.1-1989 are required in 

construction areas at all times. 
 

10.8.9 As required by OSHA, the CMAR shall designate all “Competent Persons” in writing to the Owner 
and Project Safety Manager prior to such any work requiring their participation.  Their 
qualifications for such designation as a Competent Person will be submitted with their 
designation.  Competent persons are required for areas that shall include but may not be limited 
to: 
 
1. Scaffolding 
2. Excavation and Trenching 
3. Fall Protection 
4. Rigging Equipment 
5. Cranes and Hoists 
6. Aerial Lift Procedures 
7. Sling and Wire Rope Inspection 
8. Demolition 
9. Fire Protection 
10. Ionizing Radiation 
11. Assured Grounding Conductor Program 
 

10.8.10 First Aid 
 
1. The CMAR shall have at least one onsite employee trained in first aid at all times, and that 

employee shall be able to administer first aid when needed. 
 
2. The CMAR shall ensure that first aid supplies approved by the CMAR’s consulting physician 

shall be easily accessible onsite when required. 
 

10.8.11 The CMAR is responsible for maintaining a copy of “Contractor’s Hazard Communication 
Program” and “Material Safety Data Sheet(s)” on site for the CMAR’s own reference and 
employee training. 

 
10.8.12 The use of explosives is strictly prohibited unless authorized in writing by the Owner and any 

other governing entities having jurisdiction in the locality of the Project.  When the use or storage 
of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment is necessary for the execution of the 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

78 

Work, the CMAR shall exercise the utmost care and shall carry on such activities under the 
supervision of properly qualified personnel.  

 
10.8.13 Critical Lifts 

 
1. Critical lifts are determined by any one of the following conditions: 
 

A. Individual loads weighing 30 tons or more 
 
B. Lifts requiring more than one crane to handle a common load 
 
C. Load exceeds eighty-five percent (85%) of the crane capability as shown on the 

applicable crane manufacturer’s load charts for the configuration to be used. 
 
D. Items specially classified due to physical dimensions, susceptibility to internal damage 

and schedule impact. 
 
E. Parts, components, assemblies, or lifting operations designated as such because the 

effect of dropping, upset, or collision of items could: 
 
1. Cause significant delay 
 
2. Cause undetectable damage resulting in future operational or safety problems 
 
3. Result in significant release of radioactivity or other undesirable condition 
 
4. Present a potentially unacceptable risk of personal injury or property damage. 
 

2. Critical lifts require a written rigging plan for handling operations, approved by the CMAR’s 
superintendent, CMAR’s Safety Representative, the Owner, and the Project Safety Manager 
prior to lift. 

 
10.8.14 Environmental  

 
1. The CMAR shall notify the Owner of any hazardous waste it will generate during performance 

of the Work.  The CMAR has the direct responsibility for maintaining proper storage of these 
wastes while on site and will verify to the Owner in writing that the wastes have been 
disposed of in a legal manner. 

 
2. The CMAR shall keep the site, free from accumulation of water, no matter what source or 

cause.  The CMAR shall dispose of water in such manner as will not endanger public health 
or cause damage or expense to Owner’s or adjacent property.  The CMAR shall comply with 
requirements of any public agencies having jurisdiction.  If sewers and streets are allowed to 
be used for drainage or disposal of water during construction, the CMAR shall maintain and 
leave these satisfactorily clean upon completion of Work. 

 
3. CMAR shall not pour, bury, burn, nor in any way dispose of a chemical on the job site without 

the permission of the Owner. 
 
4. CMAR shall, at its expense, provide suitable facilities to prevent the introduction of any 

substances or materials into any stream, lake or other body of water which may pollute the 
water or constitute substances or materials deleterious to fish and wildlife. 

 
5. CMAR shall perform the Work as not to discharge into the atmosphere from any source 

whatever, smoke, dust, or other air contaminants in violation of the laws, rules and 
regulations of the governmental entities having jurisdiction. 

 
 
 ARTICLE 11 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

79 

 
 INSURANCE 
 
11.1 CMAR'S/SUB-CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
11.1.1 The CMAR shall purchase and maintain liability insurance, and shall likewise ensure that all of his 

Subcontractors and their Sub-subcontractors purchase and maintain such insurance, as will 
protect them from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from the CMAR's 
operations under the Agreement, whether such operations are carried out by the CMAR,  by any 
Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of the, or by anyone for whose 
acts any of them may be liable:  

 
1. claims under workers'  compensation laws, disability benefits, and other similar employee 

benefit acts;  
 

2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death 
of an employee;  

 
3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person 

other than an employee; 
 
 4. claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are 

sustained (1) by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the 
employment or failure to offer employment, of such person by the CMAR, or (2) by any 
other person;  

 
5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of 

tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and  
 

6. claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle.  

 
11.1.2 The insurance required by subparagraph 11.1.1 shall include contractual liability insurance 

applicable to the CMAR's obligations under paragraph 4.18. 
 
 
11.2 OWNER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
11.2.1 The CMAR shall purchase and maintain an Owner's Protective Liability policy as will protect the 

Owner and his employees, agents, officers, elected officials, and consultants against claims 
which may arise from operations of the CMAR, his Subcontractors, and their Sub-contractors 
and/or premises which are the subject of the Agreement unless equivalent coverage is provided 
by Contractor's Commercial or Comprehensive General Liability policy. 

 
11.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 
11.3.1 The Owner may purchase and maintain property insurance upon the entire Work at the site to the 

full insurable value thereof.  This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the CMAR, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors of the Work and shall insure against the perils of fire and 
extended coverage and shall include "all risk" insurance for physical loss or damage including, 
without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, and malicious mischief. 

 
11.3.2 The Owner may purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance as may be required 

by the Contract Documents or by law.  This insurance shall include the interest of the Owner, the 
CMAR, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors of the Work.  

 
11.3.3 Any loss insured under subparagraphs 11.3.1 and 11.3.2 is to be adjusted with the Owner and 

made payable to the Owner as trustee for the insureds, as their interests may appear.  The 
CMAR shall pay each Subcontractor a just share of any insurance monies received by the 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

80 

CMAR, and by appropriate agreement shall require such Subcontractor to make payments to his 
Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.  

 
11.3.4 The Owner may purchase insurance for risks other than those described in subparagraphs 11.3.1 

and 11.3.2 in the Contract Documents.  
 
11.3.5 The Owner as trustee shall deposit in a separate account any insurance proceeds so received, 

and he shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach.  
 
11.3.6 The Owner as trustee shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers.  
 
11.3.7 If the Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to 

substantial completion thereof, such occupancy or use shall not commence prior to a time 
mutually agreed to by the Owner and CMAR and to which the insurance company or companies 
providing the property insurance have consented by endorsement to the policy or policies.  This 
insurance shall not be canceled or lapsed on account of such partial occupancy or use.  Consent 
of the CMAR and of the insurance company or companies to such occupancy or use shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
11.3.8 The CMAR shall be responsible for paying to repair any such losses as enumerated in Article 10 

to the extent that such losses are not covered by the Owner's insurance, including all policy 
deductibles.   

 
11.4 INSURANCE SCHEDULES 
 
11.4.1 The CMAR shall not commence Work under the Agreement until he has obtained all the 

insurance required hereunder and certificates of such insurance have been filed with and 
reviewed by the Owner.  Acceptance of the insurance certificates by the Owner shall not relieve 
or decrease the liability of the CMAR.  Owner shall be named as an additional insured on the 
policies.  CMAR shall not change or modify the insurance coverage without prior notice to the 
Owner. 

 
11.4.2 Unless otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, the CMAR shall provide and maintain, 

until the Work covered in the Agreement is completed and accepted by the Owner, the minimum 
insurance coverages in the following schedule.  

 
The minimum required limits may be achieved by purchasing an excess liability policy so long as such 
policy provides coverages at least as broad as the primary insurance.  
 
11.4.3 1. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance 

 
a. Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be as required by law and shall include 

an “all states” or “universal” endorsement.  
 

b. Employer's Liability Insurance shall be written for not less than $500,000 per 
occurrence. 

 
2. Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance 

 
a. Minimum Limits: 

 
Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 
Aggregate  $1,000,000 

 
b. The following coverages must be specifically insured and certified with no 

internal sublimits.  A separate aggregate limit is acceptable for the 
Products/Completed Operations hazard: 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

81 

1) Independent Contractors Contingent Liability or Owners Protective 
Liability 

2) Products/Completed Operations Liability  
 

3) Contractual Liability 
 

4) "X, C, U" Hazard Liability (if applicable) 
 

5) Personal Injury Liability including claims related to employment 
 

6) Broad Form Property Damage Liability, or deletion of the "Care, Custody, 
and Control" exclusion 

 
7) Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Automobile Liability 

 
8) Waiver of Defense of Municipal Liability Immunity 

 
3. Builders Risk Insurance 
   

1) Completed value form in an amount equal to the GMP plus Architect fees on 
a replacement cost basis. 
 

2) The policy shall name as insureds The Owner, CMAR, and all subcontractors 
on an equal basis. 
 

3) The policy shall be written on an “All Risk” form, to include at 
least the perils of Fire, Lightening and extended coverage theft, vandalism, 
malicious mischief, and collapse 

 
11.4.4 This furnishing of the required insurance coverages, as may be modified by special Conditions, is 

one of the CMAR's initial requirements of the Agreement that must be performed before a Notice 
to Proceed can be issued, and if not provided within 15 calendar days after receipt of the Notice 
of Award, may result in forfeiture of the CMAR's Bid Security.  All insurance policies shall be open 
to inspection by the Owner, and copies of policies shall be submitted to the Owner upon written 
request. 

 
11.4.5 The contractual liability is to be written on a blanket basis for all written or oral contracts, or 

specifically endorsed to acknowledge the contractual relationship between the insured and the 
Travis County. 

 
11.4.6 All certificates of insurance shall provide that the insurance company shall give the County an 

affirmative statement, with no qualifications, that thirty (30) days prior written notice will be given 
to the County in the event of policy cancellation, non-renewal or material reduction in coverage 
provided under the policy, including impairment of any aggregate limits less than $1,000,000. 

 
11.4.7 A waiver of subrogation in favor of Travis County will be endorsed to all policies.  Travis County 

will be named as an additional insured where the County’s interest may appear. 
 
11.4.8 Insurance shall be procured from a reputable insurance company having an AM Best rating of 

A+5 or better. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
 

CHANGES IN WORK 
 
12.1 CHANGE ORDERS 
 
12.1.1 A “Change Order” is a written modification to the Agreement signed by the Owner, the 

Architect/Engineer, and the CMAR issued after award of the Agreement authorizing a change in 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

82 

the Work and an adjustment, if any, in the GMP or the Contract Time.  The GMP and the Contract 
Time may be changed only by Change Order.  A Change Order signed by the CMAR indicates 
his agreement therewith, including the adjustment in the GMP or the Contract Time. 

 
12.1.2 Routine changes in the Agreement shall be formally initiated by the Architect/Engineer by means 

of a “Change Proposal Request” form detailing requirements of the proposed change.  The 
CMAR shall prepare a Change Proposal (“CP”) based on the CPR form.  This action may be 
preceded by communications between the CMAR, Architect/Engineer, and Owner concerning the 
need for and nature of the change, but such communications shall not constitute a basis for 
beginning the proposed Work by the CMAR.  Except for emergency conditions defined in 
subparagraph 12.1.10 or for conditions described in subparagraph 12.2.3, approval of the 
CMAR's Change Proposal by the Architect/Engineer and Owner will be required for authorization 
to proceed with the Work being changed.  Without prior approval the CMAR may be required to 
remove Work so installed. 

 
12.1.3 The cost or credit to the Owner resulting from change in the Work shall be determined in one or 

more of the following ways: 
 

1. by mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient 
substantiating data to permit evaluation; 

 
2. by unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon; or 

 
3. by a cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually 

acceptable fixed or percentage fee.  (The CMAR shall keep and present, in such form as 
the Architect/Engineer or the Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with 
appropriate supporting data for inclusion in a Change Order.) 

 
12.1.4 All proposed costs for Change Order Work must be supported by an itemized accounting of 

material, equipment, and associated itemized installation costs in sufficient detail to permit 
analysis by the Architect/Engineer and Owner using current estimating guides and/or prices.  
Photocopies of Subcontractor and significant vendor proposals supporting the CMAR’s Change 
Proposal shall be furnished unless specifically waived by the Owner.  The CMAR shall provide 
written response to a Change Proposal Request within ten (10) days of receipt, unless otherwise 
specified in the Supplementary Conditions. 

 
12.1.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the “Change Order Base Cost” shall be 

limited to the following: 
 
a. The total cost of materials and supplies, reflecting all available discounts, itemized by cost 

and quantity; 
 
b. The total cost of all labor, including the cost of additional supervision, itemized to show man-

hours by trade and classification and burdened hourly rates (which include social security tax, 
unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, and workers' 
compensation insurance); 

 
c. The rental value of equipment and machinery calculated for each type of equipment used in 

performing the changed Work, based on hours of use.  Unless otherwise specified, prices for 
use of machinery and equipment shall be determined by using 80 percent of the latest 
schedule of “Equipment Ownership Expense” adopted by Associated General Contractors of 
America.  Mobilization costs will not be allowed except when the CMAR demonstrates that 
the need to mobilize a piece of equipment arose solely because of the changed Work; 

 
d. All transportation costs for delivery and handling of materials, equipment, and supplies, and 

the removal of waste or debris; 
 
e. All storage costs in excess of thirty (30) days for materials and supplies, if necessitated solely 

by the changed Work; 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

83 

 
f. Sales taxes are not to be included in charges for materials that are tangible personal property 

incorporated into the Project or completely consumed at the job site and services required by 
or integral to the performance of the Agreement, as provided in Texas Tax Code Section 
151.311.  Sales taxes are allowed on all other charges, including the cost of labor, overhead 
and materials, which do not become part of the finished Project or are not completely 
consumed at the jobsite.  Such taxable charges shall be separated from non-taxable charges. 

 
12.1.6 The amounts that the CMAR or a Subcontractor adds to the Change Order Base Cost for 

overhead and profit will also be considered by the Owner before approval is given.  The amounts 
established hereinafter are the maximums that are acceptable to the Owner without a full and 
complete justification acceptable to the Owner. 

 
a. To the total of the Change Order Base Cost, the CMAR will be allowed to add a percentage 

as noted below to cover overhead and profit combined.  Overhead shall be considered to 
include insurance other than mentioned above, office supervisors and assistants, use of 
small tools, incidental job burdens and general home office expense, and no separate 
allowance will be made therefor except as allowed under Article 8.  Allowable percentages for 
overhead and profit on changes will be applied consistent with the GMP proposal. 

 
b. [Intentionally deleted.] 
 
c. On changes involving both additions and deletions, percentages for overhead and profit will 

be allowed only on the net addition. 
 
d. The amount of credit to be allowed by the CMAR to the Owner for any deletion or change 

which results in a net decrease in the GMP will be the amount of the actual net cost. 
 
12.1.7 When an Excusable Compensable Delay, as defined under 8.3.1.3, occurs, the CMAR shall be 

entitled to an extension of time and to compensation for the cost of extended general conditions 
related to the delay, as set forth below: 
 
1. The CMAR shall notify the Owner of a request for an extension of time as described under 

8.3.2.  The CMAR and Owner recognize and agree that it is beneficial to each other to 
identify factors affecting the CMAR’s cost of performance, and to take prompt action to 
control them.  Therefore, it is agreed that the CMAR shall not be entitled to request a cost 
adjustment for extended general conditions unless the required notice is submitted timely. 

 
2. The cost adjustment proposal shall be based on itemized documented costs actually 

incurred.  If and only if the actual cost claimed cannot be demonstrated with reasonable 
certainty, the CMAR may utilize industry-recognized mathematical formulas or models to 
compute the proposed cost adjustment. 

 
3. No markup is authorized on the Change Order Base Cost of extended general conditions. 

 
12.1.8 No payments can be made on such work until the final amount is agreed and the Change Order 

approved. 
 
12.1.9 The execution of a Change Order by the Owner and the CMAR constitutes the full, final and 

complete settlement of all claims with regard to the modifications contained in the Change Order 
for foreseeable impacts on the GMP or the Contract Time. 

 
12.1.10 Emergency changes to save life or property may be initiated by the CMAR alone with the claimed 

cost of such Work to be fully documented as to necessity and detail of the reported costs in 
accordance with subparagraph 12.1.5. 

 
 
12.2 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVE 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

84 

12.2.1 A Construction Change Directive, (a “CCD”), is a written order prepared by the PM and signed by 
the Owner and Architect/Engineer, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis 
for adjustment, if any, in the GMP or Contract Time, or both.  The Owner may by Construction 
Change Directive, without invalidating the Agreement, order changes in the Work within the 
general scope of the Agreement consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the GMP, 
and the Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.  All such changes in the Work shall be 
performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 

12.2.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used if one of the following circumstances applies: 
 
1. If the CMAR fails to provide a written Change Proposal within 10 days of receiving a Change 

Proposal Request or fails or refuses to execute an agreed Change Order within the time 
required to prevent a delay to the Work Progress Schedule; 

 
2. If negotiations fail to achieve an agreed price; or 
 
3. If, in the Owner’s judgment based on the Work Progress Schedule, a failure to authorize the 

CMAR to proceed with a Change Order under the normal process may adversely affect the 
timely completion of the Work. 

 
12.2.3 Any unexpected circumstances which necessitates an immediate change in order to prevent 

damage to the Work in place, to avoid a delay in the Work Progress Schedule, or to maintain 
safety shall be expedited by verbal communication and authorization between the CMAR, 
Architect/Engineer and Owner with written Construction Change Directive following as soon as 
may be practical.  Should consultation with all other interested parties be precluded by events, 
the Owner may act alone.  A limiting not-to-exceed estimate of cost will be requested prior to 
authorizing Work to proceed.  Should a cost estimate be impractical for any reason, the Owner 
may authorize the use of detailed cost records of such Work to establish and confirm the actual 
costs for documentation in a formal Change Order. 

 
12.2.4 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the GMP, the basis and 

method for determining the cost or credit to the Owner shall be in accordance with either 
subparagraph 12.1.3 or as described below. 

 
12.2.5 If the CMAR does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment of the GMP, 

the CMAR shall be paid “Actual Field Cost” plus overhead and profit.  “Actual Field Cost” is 
calculated to include the same costs as outlined in 12.1.5, also known as the Change Order Base 
Cost.  Overhead and profit is determined in accordance with subparagraph 12.1.6.  The Owner 
may direct the form in which accounts of Actual Field Cost shall be kept and records of those 
accounts shall be made available to the Owner.  When CMAR’s field office must be maintained 
solely on account of such extra work; then the cost to maintain and operate the same shall be 
included in Actual Field Cost. 

 
12.2.6 When Actual Field Cost is used to determine the cost of the Construction Change Directive, the 

CMAR’s representative and the County inspector shall compare records of Work done for the 
CCD at the end of each day.  Copies of these records will be made upon suitable forms approved 
for this purpose by the Owner and signed by both the Owner’s and the CMAR’s representatives, 
one copy being forwarded to the Owner and one to the CMAR.  All claims for work performed for 
the CCD shall be submitted to the Architect/Engineer by the CMAR upon certified statements to 
which shall be attached certified copies of invoices covering the cost of, and the freight charges 
on, all materials used in such Work.  Such statements shall be filed not later that the tenth day of 
the month following that in which the work was actually performed.  The statements shall 
separate charges in accordance with subparagraph 12.1.5. 

 
12.2.7 When the Owner and CMAR agree on the adjustments to the GMP and Contract Time, such 

agreement shall be recorded by preparation and execution of an appropriate Change Order in 
accordance with 12.1. 

 
12.3 CONCEALED CONDITIONS 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

85 

 
12.3.1 The CMAR is responsible for having visited the site and having ascertained pertinent local 

conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the site or building, the 
character and extent of existing Work within and adjacent to the site, and any other Work being 
performed thereon at the time of the submission of its proposal.  Any failure to do so will not 
relieve it from responsibility for successfully performing the Work without additional expense to 
the Owner. 

 
12.3.2 If, in the performance of the Agreement, subsurface, latent or concealed conditions at the site are 

found to be materially different from the information included in the Contract Documents, or if 
unknown conditions of an unusual nature are discovered differing materially from the conditions 
usually inherent in Work of the character shown and specified, the CMAR shall notify Owner in 
writing of such conditions before proceeding with the Work. If necessary, the Owner shall develop 
a solution and provide it to CMAR.  If the solution prompts changes to the GMP and/or Time, the 
Agreement shall be adjusted under Article 12 hereof. 

 
 
 
12.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST 
 
12.4.1 If the CMAR wishes to make a claim for an increase in the GMP, he shall give the 

Architect/Engineer written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the occurrence of the event 
giving rise to such claim.  This notice shall be given by the CMAR before proceeding with the 
Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property in which case the CMAR shall 
proceed in accordance with paragraph 10.3.  No such claims shall be valid unless so made.  Any 
change in the GMP resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order. 

 
12.4.2 If the CMAR claims that additional cost is involved because of, but not limited to, (1) any written 

interpretation (2) any order by the Owner to stop the Work pursuant to paragraph 3.3 where the 
CMAR was not at fault, or (3) failure of payment by the Owner pursuant to paragraph 9.7, the 
CMAR shall make such claim as provided in subparagraph 12.4.1. 

 
 
 
 ARTICLE 13 
 
 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
 
13.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK 
 
13.1.1 If any portion of the Work should be covered contrary to the request of the Architect/Engineer or 

the Owner or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if 
required in writing by the Architect/Engineer or the Owner, be uncovered for their observation and 
shall be replaced at the CMAR's expense. 

 
13.2 CORRECTION OF WORK 
 
13.2.1 The CMAR shall promptly correct all Work rejected by the Architect/Engineer or the Owner as 

defective or as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether observed before or after 
Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed.  The CMAR shall 
bear all costs of correcting such rejected Work, including any and all additional costs incurred by 
the Owner as a result thereof. 

 
13.2.2 If any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the 

CMAR shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the 
Owner has previously given the CMAR a written acceptance of such condition.  This obligation 
shall survive termination of the Agreement.  The Owner shall give such notice within ten (10) days 
after discovery of the condition. 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

86 

 
13.2.3 The CMAR shall remove from the site all portions of the Work which are defective or non-

conforming and which have not been corrected under these General Conditions and under the 
Agreement, unless removal is waived in writing by the Owner. 

 
13.2.4 If the CMAR fails to correct defective or non-conforming Work as provided in these General 

Conditions and in the Agreement, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Paragraph 3.4. 
 
13.2.5 If the CMAR does not proceed with the corrections of such defective non-conforming Work within 

a reasonable time fixed by written notice from the Architect/Engineer or the Owner, the Owner 
may remove it and may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the CMAR.  If the 
CMAR does not pay the cost of such removal and storage within ten (10) days thereafter, the 
Owner may upon ten (10) additional days' written notice sell such work at auction or at private 
sale and shall account for the net proceeds therefor, after deducting all costs that should have 
been borne by the CMAR, including compensation for the Architect/Engineer's additional services 
made necessary thereby.  If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which the CMAR should 
have borne, the difference shall be charged to the CMAR and an appropriate Change Order shall 
be issued.  If the payments then or thereafter due the CMAR are not sufficient to cover such 
amount, the CMAR shall pay the difference to the Owner. 

 
13.2.6 The CMAR shall bear all costs of making good all Work of the Owner or separate contractors 

destroyed or damaged by such correction or removal. 
 
13.2.7 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 13.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with 

respect to any other obligation which the CMAR might have under the Contract Documents, 
including Paragraph 4.5 hereof.  The establishment of the specific obligation of the CMAR to 
correct the Work has no relationship to his obligation to comply with the Contract Documents, nor 
to proceedings which may be commenced to establish the CMAR's liability with respect to his 
obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. 

 
13.3 ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING WORK 
 
13.3.1 If the Owner prefers to accept defective or nonconforming Work, he may do so instead of 

requiring its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect a 
reduction in the GMP where appropriate and equitable.  Such adjustment shall be effected 
whether or not final payment has been made. 

 
 
 ARTICLE 14 
 
 TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
14.1 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER 
 
14.1.1 If the CMAR is adjudged a bankrupt, or if he makes a general assignment for the benefit of his 

creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of his insolvency, or if he persistently or 
repeatedly refuses or fails, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply 
enough properly skilled workmen or proper materials, or if he fails to make prompt payment to 
Subcontractors or for materials or labor, or persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations or order of any public authority having jurisdiction, or otherwise is guilty of a 
substantial violation of a provision of the Contract Documents, then the Owner may, without 
prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving the CMAR and his surety, if any, seven (7) days' 
written notice, terminate the employment of the CMAR and take possession of the site and all 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment, and machinery thereon owned by the CMAR 
and may finish the Work by whatever method he may deem expedient.  In such case the CMAR 
shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished. 

 
14.1.2 If the unpaid balance of the GMP exceeds the cost of finishing the Work, including compensation 

for the Architect/Engineer's additional services made necessary thereby, such excess shall be 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

87 

paid to the CMAR.  If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the CMAR shall pay the difference 
to the Owner.  The amount to be paid to the CMAR or to the Owner, as the case may be, shall be 
certified by the Architect/Engineer, upon application, in the manner provided in paragraph 9.4, 
and this obligation for payment shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

 
14.2 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 
 
 Failure by either party in performing any of its provisions shall be a breach of contract, in which 

case, either party may require corrective action within ten (10) days after date of receipt of written 
notice citing the exact nature of the breach.  Failure to take corrective action or failure to provide a 
satisfactory written reply excusing failure within the prescribed ten (10) days shall be a default.  The 
defaulting party shall be given a twenty (20) day period within which to show cause why the 
Agreement should not be terminated for default.  Commissioners Court may take whatever action 
as its interest may appear, resulting from the notice.  All notices shall be issued by the Purchasing 
Agent or the Owner’s legal representative only and all replies shall be made in writing to the 
Purchasing Agent at the address provided herein.  Notices issued by or to anyone other than the 
Purchasing Agent or Owner’s legal representative shall be void, and shall be considered as not 
having been issued or received.  The defaulting party shall be liable for actual damages as 
stipulated in this Agreement.  Liquidated damages, if specified in the Agreement, may also apply.  
The Owner may enforce the performance of this Agreement in any manner allowed by law in the 
event of breach or default, and may contract with another party with or without solicitation of bids or 
further notification to the CMAR.  As a minimum, the CMAR shall be required to pay any difference 
in the cost of securing the products or services covered by this Agreement, or compensate for any 
loss or damage the Owner derived if it is necessary to contract with another source because of his 
default, plus reasonable administrative costs and attorney's fees.  If termination for default occurs, 
Owner and its officials, agents and representatives shall not be liable for loss of any profits 
anticipated to be made. 

 
14.3 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice if the Commissioners 

Court finds that termination serves the public interest, or results from any law, ordinance, 
regulation, or court order if termination is not authorized for any other reason.  The Owner may not 
terminate the Agreement under this paragraph if it intends to award a contract for similar 
requirements to another Contractor within six months of termination.  If the Owner terminates this 
Agreement under this paragraph, it must pay the CMAR the cost directly attributable to Work done 
or supplies obtained in preparation for compliance with this Agreement prior to termination.  The 
Owner is not required to pay costs that are recoverable in the normal course of doing the business 
in which the CMAR is engaged or costs which can be recouped by selling the Work done or 
supplies obtained.  If the Owner pays for supplies or materials, these supplies and materials 
become the property of the Owner and the CMAR must deliver them to the place designated by the 
Purchasing Agent.  The Owner is not liable for any loss of profits caused by this termination. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
 
 OTHER CONDITIONS OR SERVICES 
 
15.1 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the CMAR shall perform all services and 

responsibilities required of the CMAR by these General Conditions for Travis County Building 
Agreements using at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent contractor in Travis 
County, Texas would use under the same or similar circumstances.  Nothing in these General 
Conditions for Travis County Building Agreements shall be construed to relieve the CMAR of this 
duty. 

 
15.2 Any oral representations or modifications concerning these General Conditions for Travis County 

Building Agreements shall be of no force or effect, excepting a subsequent modification in writing, 
signed by the party to be charged.  NO OFFICIAL, AGENT, EMPLOYEE, OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OWNER MAY MODIFY OR AMEND THESE GENERAL 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

88 

CONDITIONS FOR TRAVIS COUNTY BUILDING AGREEMENTS, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO 
EXPRESS AUTHORITY GRANTED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

 
END OF GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

89 

SECTION 01010 
 

SUMMARY OF WORK 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY OFFICE BUILDING  
 

 
1.0 THE PROJECT 

 
1.1 In November 2011, Travis County purchased the 0.5 acre property located at 416 W. 11th 

Street, at the northwest corner of San Antonio and 11th streets in downtown Austin, Texas. 
The Project is the development of this site as a seven-story, 130,000 GSF office building with 
a three-level, underground, 70,000 GSF 140-space parking structure for a combined total 
Project area of 200,000 GSF. The Project is intended to serve the space needs through 2035 
of the District Attorney’s Office and two associated Grand Jury suites, along with appropriate 
building amenity spaces, including ground floor retail space which could be a food service. 
The building structure and envelope will be designed for an extended life of 75 years. In 
accordance with the Travis County “Green Building Policy”, this Project will seek LEED Silver 
certification at a minimum. The Project must be sensitive to the historic urban neighborhood.  
The Project should be a recognizable component of the multi-building County justice campus 
which is anchored by the historic Heman Marion Sweatt Travis County Courthouse across 
the street. The site improvements must incorporate streetscape elements which are 
compatible and coordinated with the City of Austin “Great Streets” planning for 11 th and San 
Antonio Streets.  The Project scope also includes a secure staff access tunnel to connect this 
building with the Criminal Justice Center across 11th Street.  

 
1.2 The Architecture/Engineering (“A/E”) team, engaged under separate contract with the 

County, will be responsible for the architectural and engineering services for the Project.  The 
Project delivery method will be Construction Manager at Risk.  The Construction Manager at 
Risk (“CMAR”) will be contracted during the early design phase in order to provide advisory 
input during the design phase concerning Project constructability, cost and related issues.  At 
the end of the design phase, the CMAR will negotiate the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(“GMP”) for the construction of the Project.  During the construction phase, the CMAR will act 
as the general contractor, with all construction subcontractors contracted to and directly 
supervised by the CMAR.  The Travis County Facilities Management Department (“FMD”) is 
the Project Manager for this Project and the County point-of-contact for the A/E and the 
CMAR, whose work FMD will oversee and support on behalf of the County’s interests.  For 
purposes of this assignment, certain references to “County” may refer to the Facilities 
Management Department as applicable. 

 
 
1.0 PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 
1.1 Office building – 130,000 GSF, seven-stories  

 
1.1.1 Large shared conference room (Building Amenity) – 900 NSF 
1.1.2 Ground floor retail suite – area to be determined during schematic design. 
1.1.3 District Attorney Suite(s) – approximately 90,800 NOSF total office suites with 

staff and support spaces, organized according to operational units, including 
private offices, open offices, conference and other types of meeting and team 
work rooms, media room, copy/print rooms, law library, file rooms, storage rooms 
for evidence, supplies, and equipment, server room, reception and waiting areas 
and staff break rooms. 

1.1.4 Grand Jury Suites – 3,800 NOSF total, organized into two suites which will 
accommodate four Grand Juries including Grand Jury rooms, conference rooms, 
reception, coffee bar and restroom; with separation from District Attorney suites. 

1.1.5 Primary circulation, vertical circulation and services spaces 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

90 

1.2 Parking structure – underground, 140 spaces, 70,000 GSF. 
1.3 Underground tunnel – crossing under W. 11th Street to connect the new District Attorney 

Office Building with the existing Criminal Justice Center Complex (CJC) (which includes the 
Gault Building) on the south side of W. 11th St.  The CJC is a secure County facility.  The 
security of the CJC is managed and monitored by the Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO).  
All work performed and workers performing work in the CJC will be subject to the security 
requirements of the TCSO. 

 
2.0 PROJECT GOALS 

 
2.1 Sustainability & Energy Efficiency:  Comply with the Travis County Green Building Policy. 

The Project is seeking LEED Silver certification for New Construction at a minimum.  Utilize 
"best practices" to achieve the highest practical level of energy efficiency.  Design to provide 
natural lighting to the greatest number of occupants.  Utilize regionally sourced and rapidly 
renewable material resources as much as possible.  

 
2.2 Health, Safety & Security:  Comply with local, state and national codes for site and building 

design, fire and life safety, accessibility and health.  Select materials and designs that 
promote healthy environments and minimize exposure to mold and hazardous elements, 
excessive noise, uncomfortable temperatures and high humidity levels. In addition to 
compliance with ADA and Texas Accessibility Standards, address the ergonomic and 
accessibility needs of children and the elderly. Incorporate security features and systems in 
coordination with the adopted County security plan for the Project. 

 
2.3 Quality, Compatibility & Functionality:  Balance goals to achieve high quality of appearance, 

performance, reliability, durability, maintainability, and sustainability, with careful 
consideration of initial cost versus life-cycle cost.  Select durable and functionally suitable 
materials and equipment. 

 
2.4 Maintainability:  Material and equipment selections should consider County maintenance and 

repair methods and policies.  Design for ease of maintenance, availability of repair parts and 
labor, cost effectiveness, dependability and vendor and manufacturer warranty service and 
support. 

 
2.5 Specific design goals:  The Project will be designed to meet the County’s Project 

Requirements:  the “Owners Project Requirements” or “OPR” which will be developed by the 
Consultant during the Pre-Design Phase.  
 

2.5.1 Project design must meet the DMU-CURE zoning requirements as described in 
City of Austin Zoning Case C14-2012-0103. To accommodate the sloping site 
conditions and meet the 6.5 FAR requirement, it is expected that half of lowest 
office floor will be designed below grade.  The Project design must also 
accommodate the zoning height limit of 100 ft. and comply with the more 
restrictive height limitations of the Capital View Corridors as they impact various 
portions of the site. 
 

2.5.2 Security requirements for both the office building and parking structure are 
important and will require careful analysis beginning in Pre-Design and 
throughout the Design Phases. 

 
3.0 Utilize high quality materials that are aesthetically compatible with the existing building and reflect 

the regional character of Travis County. Materials and furnishings should be durable, cleanable and 
resist aging. 

 
4.0 Incorporate state-of-art media technology as needed for large conference rooms.   

 
5.0 Lighting designs will include general and decorative lighting, interior and exterior, responsive to 

safety issues, applicable regulations, and the urban context. 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

91 

6.0 Projected Schedule:  This proposed Project schedule is subject to negotiation with the selected 
Consultant.  These time frames are consecutive and include County reviews, approvals and 
associated activities. 
 
9 Months - Pre-Design Phase and Design Phases (which includes overlapping CMAR Procurement 
Phase)  
19 Months - Construction Phase (NTP to Substantial Completion) 
  2 Months - Transition Phase (from Substantial to Final Completion) 
10 Months - Warranty Phase (to one year anniversary of Substantial Completion) 
As needed - LEED Certification Phase (to completion of certification) 

 
 

END OF SECTION 01010 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

92 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

 
 
 
  

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



RFP #P1309-005-RV 
 

93 

 
PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Approve Contract Award for Courier Service for Daily Mail Delivery, IFB No. 1309-
002-CW, to the responsive low Bidder, Roderick W. Addison d/b/a Interstate 
Express Delivery Service. 

 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

This contract will provide courier services for daily mail deliveries for RMCR. 

IFB No. 1309-002-CW was issued on September 9, 2013.  A total of thirty-three (33) 
vendors were solicited and nine (9) bids were received.  The apparent low Bidder, 
Precise Delivery Plus has requested their bid be withdrawn from consideration due 
to their misinterpretation of the specifications.  Precise Delivery Plus did not realize 
the specifications required service local to Travis County.  The request to withdraw 
letter from Precise Delivery Plus is attached with the agenda backup.  Travis County 
RMCR department recommends award to the responsive low bidder, Roderick W. 
Addison d/b/a Interstate Express Delivery Service, a State of Texas HUB certified 
vendor. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
 

Award Amount:  $19,800 
Contract Type:  Unilateral, Term 

 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 
 

Solicitations Sent: 33   Responses Received: 9 
HUB Information: 3   % HUB SubContractor: N/A 

 

 Funding Information: 
 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000890 
  Comments:  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Bid #1309-002-CW - COURIER SERVICE FOR DAILY MAIL DELIVERIES

Creation Date  Sep 6, 2013 End Date Sep 30, 2013 9:00:00 AM CDT
Start Date Sep 9, 2013 2:50:27 PM CDT Awarded Date  Not Yet Awarded

1309-002-CW--01-01   DAILY DELIVERY COURIER SERVICE
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

precise delivery plus First Offer -  $1,100.00     12 / month $13,200.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: eleven thousand 
Total Amount Text: Thirthteen thousand two hundred
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Interstate express delivery service [Ad] First Offer -  $1,650.00     12 / month $19,800.00   Y Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Lonestar Delivery & Process First Offer -  $2,000.00     12 / month $24,000.00   Y Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Capitol Courier First Offer -  $2,121.00     12 / month $25,452.00   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: two thousand one hundred and twentyone dollars 
and no cents
Total Amount Text: twentyfive thousand four hundred fiftytwo 
dollars and no cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Act Fast Delivery of Travis Co, Inc First Offer -  $2,200.00     12 / month $26,400.00   Y Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Austins Courier Elite First Offer -  $2,520.00     12 / month $30,240.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Two thousand five hundred twenty
Total Amount Text: Thirty thousand two hundred forty
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

CERNX INC First Offer -  $2,800.00     12 / month $33,600.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Two Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars
Total Amount Text: Thirty Three Thousand Six Hundred
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

International Building Services First Offer -  $2,850.00     12 / month $34,200.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Two Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Dollars
Total Amount Text: Thirty Four Thousand Two Hundred Dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

C & D Couriers First Offer -  $4,800.00     12 / month $57,600.00   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: n
Total Amount Text:  n
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: $300.00 per day.   

Supplier Totals
  precise delivery plus $13,200.00    
 Bid Contact donald silmon 

don.silmon65@yahoo.com
Ph 972-571-8953   

 Address 2307 oak lane suite 110
Geand Prairie, TX 75051 

 Qualifications  DBE   HUB   MBE   SB   TX   

Bid 1309-002-CWTravis County

BidSync9/30/2013 3:40 PM p. 2

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Interstate express delivery service [Ad] $19,800.00    
 Bid Contact Roderick Addison 

Interstate815@aol.com
Ph 512-983-4069   

 Address 9903 plover street
Austin, TX 78753 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Lonestar Delivery & Process $24,000.00    
 Bid Contact chris kurzadkowski 

chris@lonestardeliveryonline.com
Ph 281-935-4048   
Fax 866-804-3049

 Address 1020 Hercules Ave
houston, TX 77058 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Capitol Courier $25,452.00    
 Bid Contact Michael Lindahl 

info@capitolcourieronline.com
Ph 512-444-4077   
Fax 512-444-5728

 Address 4109 Todd Ln. #1400
Austin, TX 78744 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Act Fast Delivery of Travis Co, Inc $26,400.00    
 Bid Contact Randy Carmichael 

rcarmichael@actfastdelivery.com
Ph 512-291-9600   
Fax 512-291-9604

 Address 632 Raplh Ablando
# 203
Austin, TX 78748 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Austins Courier Elite $30,240.00    
 Bid Contact Darrell Edwards 

darrell@austinscourierelite.com
Ph 512-296-9685   

 Address 1720 Lomita Dr.
Leander, TX 78641 

 Qualifications  HUB   MBE   SB   
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  CERNX INC $33,600.00    
 Bid Contact Shawn A Chaudhery 

shawn.c@cernx.com
Ph 916-374-8070   
Fax 916-374-8077

 Address 859 Stillwater Rd
Unit 1
West Sacramento, CA 95650 

 Qualifications  SB   
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  International Building Services $34,200.00    
 Bid Contact Hye Kim 

yosan80@hotmail.com
Ph 512-833-8466   

 Address 8204 N. Lamar Blvd.,B-16
Austin, TX 78753 

 Qualifications  CISV   SB   
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  C & D Couriers $57,600.00    
 Bid Contact Ken Harris 

kharris@cdcouriers.com
Ph 214-217-7322   

 Address 2029 McKenzie Drive
Suite 100
Carrollton, TX 75006 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**

Bid 1309-002-CWTravis County

BidSync9/30/2013 3:40 PM p. 3

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Bid 1309-002-CWTravis County

BidSync9/30/2013 3:40 PM p. 47

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



 

 

 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT & COMMUNICATION RESOURCES 
314 West 11th Street , Suite 110   PO Box 1748   Austin, TX 78767   Tel: (512) 854-9575 Fax: 854-4560 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV, CTP 

 

FROM: Tom Ashburn, Support Services Manager 

   

DATE: October 2, 2014 

 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Award, Bid #1309-002-CW Courier Services 

 

 

RMCR has reviewed the bids and recommends award to the low bidder Interstate Express Delivery 

Service. The Funds Reservation associated with this procurement is 3000000890. Thank you for your 

assistance in this matter.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Funds Reservation 300000890
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 10/02/2013

Posting date 10/02/2013

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by ASHBURT

Last changed by

Created on 10/02/2013

Last changed

More Data

Text Courier Services

Reference

Overall Amount              19,800.00  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 511730

Fund 0001

Cost center 1570080001

Vendor

Funds center 1570080001

G/L account 511730

Due on

Customer

Text Courier Services

Amount            19,800.00  USD

Earmarked fund 300000890 printed on 10/02/2013/13:10:42 Side 1 of 1

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Precise Delivery Plus
2307 Oak Lane, Suite 110
Grand Prairie, TX 75051
Ofc: 972-262-6688
Fax: 972-262-6621 —

Mission Statement:
Email: precise.dehveryplus7yahoo.com Quality deliver,’ with a plus. We operate with

Donald L. Silmon. Owner honest)’, il7tegtity and respect irs better than the
rest!

October 3, 2013

Travis County Purchasing Department
Attn: CW Bruner
P.O. Box 1748
Austin,TX 78767

Dear Mr. Bruner:

After careful consideration of the spec’s and location of the job site, I opted to withdraw my bid. My

location in the Grand Prairie,TX area poses a dilemma, as I have no physical address in the Travis County

area. I will keep a stem lookout for future jobs you offer in my area.

Sincerely,

—

— -

1 ,C)

0<
—r rr
—

C’)

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Item 22Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:  October 22, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Winn, 512-854-4728 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
1. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING A 
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH BEN HUR SHRINE CENTER FOR USE OF 
THE BEN HUR SHRINE CENTER, 7811 ROCKWOOD LANE  IN AUSTIN, 
TEXAS AS AN EARLY VOTING AND ELECTION DAY POLLING 
LOCATION FOR THE NOVEMBER 5, 2013 JOINT GENERAL AND 
SPECIAL ELECTIONS. 
2. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING A 
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH LOST CREEK MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT  FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BUILDING AT 1305 QUAKER 
RIDGE DRIVE IN AUSTIN, TEXAS AS AN EARLY VOTING AND 
ELECTION DAY POLLING LOCATION FOR THE NOVEMBER 5, 2013 
JOINT GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTIONS. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Early Voting and Election Day Polling Location Leases for Ben Hur Shrine 
Center and Lost Creek Municipal Utility District public building. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Susan Bell, Chief Deputy Clerk, 512-854-9587 
Michael Winn, Director of Elections, 512-854-4728/632-5927 
Michelle Parker, Assistant Director of Elections, 512-854-9193/914-6575 
 
Related Departments Elizabeth Winn, County Attorney’s Office 854-9415 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 23Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



Meeting Date: October 22, 2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineering Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Bowlin, Division Director of Development Ann 
Services and Long Range Plann~ 

Department Head: Ste i la, P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Todd, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 

12, 2013 to receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an 

instrument to vacate a 10 foot wide public utility easement located along the 

northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of River Place, Section 15 - Precinct 

Two. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate a 

10 foot wide public utility easement (PUE), more specifically described as an electric 

easement (EE), located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 10, Block D of 

River Place, Section 15. The easement is dedicated per plat note. The subject lot 

fronts on James Ryan Way, a street maintained by Travis County. 


The electric utility company operating in the area has stated they have no objection 

to vacating the subject easement. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation requests 

meets all Travis County standards. As such, TNR staff recommends setting the 

public hearing. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like resolve an 

encroachment issue. It seems a retaining wall was constructed within the boundaries 

of the subject easement without having the easement vacated. Vacating the 

easement should remedy the encroachment issue. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


Item C3Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Req uest Letter 
Utility Statements 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

C1nthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR (512) 854-7561 

cc: 
Stacey Scheffel Permit Program 

Manager 
TNR (512) 854-7565 

SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services long Range Planning - River Place, Section 15 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



ORDER OF VACATION 


STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owner requests the vacation of a ten foot wide public utility easement 
(more specifically described as an electric easement) located along the northwesterly side lot line of Lot 
10, Block D of River Place, Section 15 as recorded at Volume 103, Pages 56-60 of the Real Property 
Records of Travis County, Texas; 

WHEREAS, the electric utility company known to be operating in the area has indicated they have 
no need for the public utility (electric) easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department recommends the 
vacation of the subject public utility (electric) easement as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners Court 
held a public hearing on November 12, 2013 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 
orders that the ten foot wide public utility (electric) easement located along the northwesterly side lot line 
of Lot 10, Block D of River Place, Section 15 , as shown and described in the attached field notes and 
sketch, is hereby vacated. 

ORDEREDTHISTHE ___ DAYOF___ _ ___ 20l3. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD 
PRECINCT ONE PRECINCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PRECINCT THREE PRECINCT FOUR 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



---

;:: 

l:) =", 

Z 
QC -.... 
L5 0 

f....CIl <'I 

:z 

l-
Z 

NW 
l:l 

~ r-
I 

W W 

b ~ 
I") N 
-.q a 
I") a 
h m 
a N 

:z :z 

N 
~ ~ 

I") .n 

oo 

SKETCH Tel ACCOMPANY FIELD NoTES FOR PARTIAL EASE 
NT AELE SfI LOT 9 

P.OJl. 
• j • . . ' ~ • 1 

92.8t>'-
0 

I")a:: r ...t: m0 ~ 
I n r- ID ---. -- R==555.00', A=24.86' 

U 

CB::S 44'25'36- W. 24.86' 


" ~ 
c::PARrlAL EASE ENT I :§

RELEASE AREA ~ 

993 SQ.FT. OR 0.023 AC. C\J 

s.-.SI 
~ 

=::--- ~ 

LOT 10 
BLOCk D 
RIVER PI.JCE. SfCTlOH '5 

V. 'OJ, Pc. 56-60 

N r- ROss ~ AND Jf.N4£fTf MCI\I[R
N~ a r- -.... DOc. NO. 20lJ124509 

w 0 "¢ ---' TCAo PARCa 10: 0 JJ9J.ro8.f.20 en N ill,..., N N 

Vl 0 0 0::J 0 ~ ~ 
0 0 0~ N N N 

R==tO.OO' A==8.92' 
.------ CB==S 18"04'28- W, 8.63' 


> c:; u 


W 

N0: 
:::;) 

U 

-- - S 82"JO'47 8 W / 
10.00' / - (10' E.E.) _ _ " 

C, ----.. - ...·---_L 
N 4702'14 8 W - 68.6B~ 

(N 4052'52" W 68.58') 

JAMES RYAN WA Y 

20' 20' 
d 

WWW.BANO 
West North loop I 

1404 . 512'4" E-6969.Off!ce ~ 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

WWW.BANO
http:R==tO.OO
http:R==555.00


-----------------

~ &0 

________~~~~~~44~~ 

~-~
______~~~L~~ ~~~ 

""A§JJ-.Ur..) 

___~ ~~"-f::::J~4\.oQ!o-.-=~

:lvIA It:. 

___--.;.;..:._-=J:.....=~d < 

.f.dt:uv :fa ~~~~-=--~=--___ 

~ LA4L~L ~~~~~~U-___ 

- , 
~~~~~#~~~/tt ~ ~~~~O

~j{9'wL· tJll.w ~ ~'U..trJ ~ ~ 
~~P ::t.J...a.iA ..)iattL .dJ!L« J 

M..f.h.IUL' j~~ 

~~~cyv{,~&........._~~!oG.!.::::!~:l...lJL.~.L.-----
~~) {fJ..u..L :t:Icvr., ) -to . ~~!6:::.....~~~____ 

_~.~~.tCL!J.;.o.."s."""",--____ 

/ 

___-"':>-:>"L.kL~~ ti 

__~-----lI~~~__ .jALU ~ 
___ ~#~ tIM-~---.::::L.Y.d.&~-A.M.--=~~____ 

AUMdtd ~ d,J...()..&a ~"4l~o-i ___________ 

__~~(l;L .t:ML ~ 'W--l-~ C44u ~..::-___ 

7hS/3 

______-+.~-~~4 78~~-~~~_______________________________ 


~ 2=5~~~~~~ _______________________ 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http:A�JJ-.Ur


x 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

SU;YFN M MANU LA P F CQ{jNTY FXFCPIIYF 

411 West 13th Street 
Executive Office Building 
PO Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR V ACA TION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County for the vacation of property 
at 10224 James Ryan Way (address) and/or 
Lot 10, Block D, River Place, Section 15 (legal description) and as 

described on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the Commissioners' Court of 
Travis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

document. 


We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

document. A descdption of the required easement is attached. ~ 


~~ 
Printed Name 
Mgr., PIRES 

Title 
Austin Energy 

Utility Company or District 
September, 30, 2013 

Date 
Please return this completed form to: 

Ross & Jeanette McIver 

Name 
10224 James Ryan Way 

Address 
Austin, TX 78730 

City/State/Zip 

morphew@vvm.com 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

mailto:morphew@vvm.com


Travis CAD - Map of Property ID 583749 for Year 2013 

474650 

474652 

\ 474661 

474662 \ 

~\ 

474663 

474664 474658 
583739 

583740 

583746 

- Streets 

ID Selected P ,o perty 

Property Details 
Account 

Property ID: 583749 
Geo ID: 0139340942 

Type : Real 
Legal Description : LOT 10 BLK D RIVER PLACE SEC 15 

Location 
Situs Address: 10224 JAMES RYAN WAY TX 78730 
Neighborhood : RIVER PLACE INTERIOR 

Mapsco: 522F 
Jurisdictions: OA, 03, 2J, 52, 59, 68, 69 

Owner 
Owner Name : NUNES GARY & CORINNE 

Mailing Address: , 2161 EL MONTE DR, , THOUSAND OAKS, CA 91362-1826 

Property 

Appraised Value: $597,625.00 

http ://propaccess. traviscad .org/ Map/View/Map/ 1/ 583749/20 13 _----,--p_=p"'-~ ~r!-~sc:'---- s_____c_- jro W == s___;_" :..=I7 ==
r-l.1p D.sOa.mer. ThiS tBX map wa s t omplled solei.,. for t l'le !,lSI!' of r eAD. Areas deD~Cled by t/",ese c l\J ltal products are apprO;o; lmate, and are not r.ec!'Isanly accurate to mapping, surveying or ~'ij: ,n~rlng standards. ConchJslons drawn from t hiS 
,n flaffih:Uon re t he respon!iIDi lity a ' ttH! USI!1". Thoe r CA D ma k ,,~ 1'10 cla iMs, promiSte'S Or Quar ,lIDteol!!S about the accuracy , ccmpleteness or adeQUacy of th,,; mformatron an d e)Cp resslv dl'ic!lum'i liabi lity for dny errors and cmi<;;sions The mapped data 

does not con'St ltut e a leQC!l1 document 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http://propaccess
http:597,625.00


of 

) 

~\ 
~\..Q 

. (1 Ho llow 

vJ .. 
~~r/nso.. 

00\\0 . 

. \50 1' ~ 
0~\ ( 'I 

City 
of 

Austin 
~ 
~ 

CJ 
~ 

Q;)v % 
'5'/<9. 

<:-.;::-

Cl...:-s ,,;r' .« W2 ' •• 
~ ..... 

Ptffrve 

t Lake ' Mifts__ 0 

q} 
. ~ 
Q: 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



___ 

, 	

, --. ~'-.... 

/ -"'-----"1/ ' I WILLIAMSON COUNTY"/ 
. '":' ... . I~' 

/ jl,.' { , ",.' " J ,; " 
.,,- I n "1 ................I '-."'-, ' 

, "--__j \, , f' ~ I -~-,J..-\ 
, 	 " 

. ......... Qoj 


/ 	
, j ''1 ,-l...ji,. ._/J \. ~ ~_\ \ I 

" '-..1t.-.
II' .- ".". , l '-./1 City of
i f/, 	 --'\" ~_ ~-; ..I_	 , 1\ 1 	 Leander 

...... ...~L 	 ~ '\ \. 
'-. .... \ 

., 	 I ~ 
~ 	 't, . 

~-

I 	 I ..... /PRECINCT 3 • 
""P.,_ ~ ..... 	 - '" .;,.~ ". 

i../
\ ...~" . 

UUI'__ tI" . - 

... 
'\ 	 (/ (?-~ ' 

~ 	 . , ' 04,. 11 ' 

-. 	 ....."., ,-""'- ' tt' 

'll!!ClI . _ .... 
A 

City ofJ Jonestown .....,..11 ~ 

I f ~,.,...-~ 	 "~ 
; ... ,) r 	 ...<.1\ /\, 

. ~~ 
,~~>, ·i 	 /~ 

.... i"jo lll J! !,.J \ '-,-.,,../ \ City of 14' 
Lago Vistat:Y~., 	 5T " ".. -'. 

\ 
-:', ....: ... 0 ~. --:.- ..... 

"'I~ IlttHlll' "'......:~ .........- - .... 	 .... \ ~- I '~ l ~~. 

";. ~~ 	 ~ . \ 

I 
r 

& ...,~ ..J, 0- D1' 	 .k/>
.......f,. ""'- p.. J
I , 4. ofrJJ\ , "".I. ...'_~.,.... 	 '- ,Village of,...,,"\--....~ ...,\ 	 '---J \'.

Point

I '\ .... Venture City of ",," r ,~
Lakeway 

Legend 

Road 
- Slate Marnlaned 

••••• Park 

Incof~lfed 

- Travis County Melnlailled 

Not Maintained 

-- Private 

Retedion of Dedication 

Undedicated, Private 

-- Railroad 

I Water Body. p,"", 
City JurisOctlon 

.2011 Commls~t Pf«:lnctJ 

''!:l , \-, '.•.t'}
" r'. i I ': 

' i\: " ~ ) p"",.~t'!\--Hugt-.~k ~"III 

Travis County Location Map 

1 

Source(!';. ) City 01 AU$Un Roads - COA 2013. 
UOIl'ICorporated Road$ ~ Tr it'.'is County 
2013, Cruk5- NHO 2005 , Parka - Trav1s

sti.. 
Afe 

Park 

" 

;- l'-;j'..,;- ,~ 

Th\s product 15'0( rnlormllillon. purposes QI1d mil)' nol hllVe be.n prillpared tor or be sUitable Millp Pr@paredby. Tr.-"K County, 
I~r leglll, enQln• • flng or -SuNeY\l19 purpos~s_ It doe.s nol repte,..,t an on-th~~.md survey Depl. 01 Transportatton & Nalur..1 
and reprllwnt5. only the .ppfOXlmilli r,lalN e Ioc<ltron 0' property bound ...l.... Tr ..... 5 COtJnty I Rnoun::es. D.-Ie 5:'21(2013 
has ptoduced ttU5 produc1 '01 reference purposes only and O"lIIrs no wer~'les lor Iht' Travis County Roadways, Map C Miles 
product''J <lcclJl'acy or complflteness 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http:on-th~~.md


• 


SKETCH TO ACCO ANY FIELD NOTES FOR PARTIAL EASE! 

• 
~I~ I ~o . CD m::r: ,.,., • • 
U .--r-cn 

~ w w 

C) 

I~ 
. . 
0 ,.,., 

z ,.,., N 
oc -..t o 
~ 

,.,., 0 

CD 
;.-, en 

N 0 N 

Z Z Z 

t-
Z 

NW N 
t.:> m 

~ 
,....: .-) .n 

u r- N 
,.,., 

0:::: 
<D r  0 

< .-) ,....: 0 

I LOT 9 
~~_ ~o.la 
IL"! .0 CO • :.a. 
~N~ / _- .• 

I ' : 1' / '. ' '', 
S 43'lB'59" E-- ., '".':: ' 

92.86' 

w 
>-Ie 

wLJ~ .. " ~co< 
~9- -
NCO O 
~NO 
z~~ 
~::zfr 
BOO::: 

m 
u 

C .-;
s: 

- ~ W }2- ----

B2.86' 

R=555.00·, A=24.86' 
CB=S 44'25'36" W. 24.86' 

PARTIAL EASEMENT 
RELEASE AREA 

993 SQ.FT. OR 0.023 AC. 

LOT 10 
BLOCK D 
RNER P~ SECTION 15 

V. 103, PG. 56-60 

> ROSS t.fCMR AND JEANETTE MCMR 
DOC. NO. 2013124509 

<I~ 
r- Io 
N 

t  - r -:.r-' 0w ~ 0 "<t
o en N <0 

c:J-III 
,.,., N N 

U11'~IOIO:::::> 0 0 0 
6 0 ci 0 
~ N N N 

W 

~ I ~ I N:::::> u u 
u 

VICTOR t.4. GAAZA. H.l"I 3:" 4740 

TeAD PARCEL. In: 0139340842 

/ ' 

R=10.00'. A=8.92' 
./CB=S 18"04'28" W, 8.63' 

~__\ S 82"30'47" W 
10.00' [ - (10' LE.)-~ 

N 4702'14" W 68.68" 
(N 46"52'52' W 68.58') 

ES RYAN WAY 
(50' R.O.W.) 

I, Victor M. Garza, licensed to practice Land Su~eying in the State of Texas. hereby certify 
that the foregoing metes and bounds legal description and sketch were based on on on the 

20' 
t::::s: - Iground survey, that all protrusions and encroachments into the easement area are accounted 

for induding but not limited to, building footprint. eaves and roof overhangs and all visible 
improvements whatsoever. 

LEGEND 
_ '/2" REIW! 1tJLWI)B • G SURVEYING, INC. 

--0- C<LCU!Jt1E) POINf 
-%--- '/2- 1_ PrP£ fUUHDDEWEY H. BURRIS &ASSOCIAlES, INC. ~-- 600 __ fOUHf) 

BL 8IJIlDIHC UHf:Surveyed by: B.t G SuMyinq, Inc. 	 P.UL. PU8UC IJTRJT'( ~ 

£f:. Et£CIRfC EASOIENr 
() Pf1I If. '03, PG. 56-SO

WWW.BANDGSURVEY.COM C./ol. CCJNrROL IIOHUJIENr 
R.O, w, RIG>(f' OF I114Y1404 West North Loop Blvd, Austin. Texas 78756 
P.D.B. PLACe OF ~Office 512'458- 6 96 9, Fox 5 12 '458-9845 

NT RELEASE 

----,{!;o.c. 

,C.M. 

I 
........ 

~ 
~ 
~ 

~ 
<='\J 

<:..S 
c:::JI 
~ 

~ 
::--

I~ 8 

~U) "'C ~ 
~~ 6 ~ , (!) c:::J c:::J 

:z: -, ----.j 

~~ Q5c:s 
~S Q5::t:

I ~ f.......p::; 
, c:::J ~ 
~ ---.J~
(/) < 


~ 
f....... 
"'CI 
t3 

I 
"'C 

ct 
ess 
is:: 

C.M. 

0 20' 
=-t ==:j 

REVISED: 08, 13 

EXHIBIT '8' 

SHEET 3 OF 3 

DATE: 08/19/13 
SCALE: 1-w 2fI 

JOB I: 80800713_TILER 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

http:WWW.BANDGSURVEY.COM


EXlDBIT"A" 	 PARTIAL EASEMENT RELEASE AREA 
PG.l OF 3 

BEING 993 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.023 OF AN ACRE, TRACT OF LAND, MORE 
OR LESS, OUT OF LOT 10, BLOCK D, RIVER PLACE, SECTION 15, A 
SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN VOLUME 103, PAGES 56-60 OF THE PLAT 
RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS CONVEYED TO ROSS MCIVER 
AND JEANETTE MCIVER IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2013124509 OF THE 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A 
PORTION OF A 10.0 FOOT ELECTRIC EASEMENT (E.E.) CREATED BY SAID 
RIVER PLACE, SECTION 15 SUBDIVISION; SAID 993 SQUARE FEET, OR 
0.023 OF AN ACRE, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES 
AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING at a Yz" rebar found in the westerly line of Lot 9, said River Place, 
Section 15, said point being the western most comer of Lot 8, Block A, River Place at 
Panther Hollow Creek, a Subdivision of record in Document No. 200400081, Official 
Public Records of said County and being the eastern most comer of said Lot 10; from 
which a Yz" rebar found in the easterly right of way line of James Ryan Way, being the 
southwesterly comer of said Lot 8, and the southwesterly comer of said Lot 10 bears, S 
45°19' 16" W (Bearing Basis), a distance of 121.38 feet; 

THENCE N 43°18'59" W, with the common boundary lines of said Lot 9 and said Lot 
10, a distance of 82.86 feet to a calculated point in the southerly line of said 10 foot E.E. 
for the southeasterly comer and the PLACE OF BEGINNING, hereof; 

THENCE running through said Lot 10 with the southerly line of said 10 foot E.E., being 
the southerly line hereof, the following three (3) calls: 

1. 	 24.86 feet along the arc ofa curve to the left, having a radius of 555.00 
feet and chord bearing and distance of S 44°25'36" W for 24.86 feet to a 
calculated point, said point being the point of tangency of said Easement 
and the Tract hereof; 

2. 	 S 43°06'55" W, a distance of81.68 feet to a calculated point, said point 
being the point of curvature of said Easement and the Tract hereof; 

3. 	 8.92 feet along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 10.00 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of S ] 8°04'28" W, a distance of 8.63 feet 
to a calculated point, said jX.lint being the southeasterly corner hereof; 

THENCE S 82°30'47" W. nmning through said Easement and continuing through said 
Lot 10. being the southerly line hereof, a distance of 10.00 feet to a calculated point at the 
intersection point of the northerly right of way line ofBig View Drive and the easterly 
right of way line of said James Ryan Way, for the southwesterly corner hereof; 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm



PG.20F3 

TIIENCE 7.72 feet along the arc of a curve to the right, having a radius of 20.00 feet and 
a chord bearing and distance ofN 03°34'30" E, for 7.67 feet to a calculated point for the 
northwesterly comer hereof; 

THENCE N 42°36'04" E, departing said right of way and running through said Lot 10 
and said 10 foot Basement, a distance of 116.74 feet to a calculated point in the 
aforementioned westerly line ofLot 9 for the northeasterly comer hereof; from which a 
W rebar found at the northwesterly comer of said Lot 9, being the northeasterly comer of 
said Lot 10 bears, N 43°18'59" W, a distance of 0.79 feet; 

THENCE S 43°}8'59" E, with the common boundary line of said Lots 9 and 10, running 
through said easement, a distance of9.21 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING hereof 
and containing 993 square feet OT 0.023 of an acre of land, more or less. 

TIllS DESCRIPTION TO BE USED WITH THE ATTACHED SKETCH ONLY. 

~'"' ;?'~r - 7/2 2/ 13 
VICTOR M. GARZA~.-L-.S-.-AW4I'-4-0--------'----- --'--D-A-T-E- -

B & G SURVEYING, INC. 
1404 W. NORTH LOOP BLVD. 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78756 
(5]2) 458-6969, FAX: (512) 458-1129 

B0800713 ER LEGAL 
TeAD Parcel ID: 0139340842 
]1tlp:l/www.bandgsurvey.col11 

Created on 10-17-13 @ 3:00 pm

www.bandgsurvey.col11

	Item 01
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	9546 : Contract Award, Program Manager for New TC CFCH
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	PBO Award Recommendation, 10-22-2013 CFCH Contract Award
	PSA No. 4400001655, Program Mgmt. Svcs. for Development of New CFCH


	Item 17
	9628 : Renewal 08T00263OJ, Mod # 5, Excess Workers Comp, Frost Insurance Agency
	Excess Workers Compensation - Executive Summary PAM Modification # 5 for Contract # 08T00263OJ
	FY14 Renewal Review Memo
	FY14 Vendor Proposal Renewal --- 2013 Revised WC Premium Due to Aircraft Charge Adjustment
	Funds Reservation 300000895
	Vendor Signed Copy - Modification Excess Workers Compensation Contract 08T00263OJ SAP 4400000027 Mod # 5 Final


	Item 18
	9592 : Mod 3 for Dr. Cynthia Brinson
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Dept memo
	mod 3 dr brinson


	Item 19
	9626 : A/E for 416 West 11th Street RFQ Q1306-014-RV
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	FM Memo for PSP Award
	PSA, 416 West 11th Street consultants signature


	Item 20
	9593 : RFP for CMAR 416 West 11th
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	FMD CMAR RFP Recommendation
	RFP for CMAR DRAFT


	Item 21
	9627 : Contract Award, Bid # 1309-002-CW, Courier Services, Interstate Express Delivery Service
	Courier Service for Daily Mail Delivery - Executive Summary PAM 2013 Bid # 1309-002-CW
	Tabulation_Packet_for_Bid_1309-002-CW - Summary Only
	Bid_award_Courier
	Funds Reservation 300000890
	Notice to Withdraw Letter from Precise Delivery Plus


	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item C3



